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THE MANAGING BOARD IN 2006 

Carlo Bozotti (1952) 

O '  

O 
President and Chief Executive Oficer, serving as the Sole Member of the Managing Board 
upon his appointment at the 2005 annual general meeting of shareholders held on 
March 18,2005. 
Italian nationality 
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THE SUPERVISORY BOARD IN 2006 

Gérald Arbola (1948) - Chairman 
First appointed 2004 :, 

Managing Duector of h e v a  S.A. 
Current term expires at the 2008 AGM 
French nationality 

B m o  Steve (1941) -Vice Chairman 
Fust appointed 1989 ,~ 
Former Managing Dector  of Finmeccanica 
Current term expires at the 2008 AGM 
Italian nationality 

Tom de Waard (1946) i, 
Fust appointed 1998 ~ 

Partner of Clifford Chince 
Current term expires at the 2008 AGM 
Dutch nationality 

Maîteo del Fante (1966) 
First appointed 2005 
Chief Financial Offcer of Cassa Depositi e Prestiti S.P.A. in Rome 
Current term expires at the 2008 AGM 
Italian nationality ~ 

Douglas Dunn (1944) 
Fust appointed 2001 
Chairman of the Board'of Directors of ARM Holdings plc 
Current term expires at the 2009 AGM 
Bntish nationality 

Francis Gavois (1935) 
Fust appointed 1998 
Former Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief Executive Offcer of Banque 
Française du Commerce Exténeur (BFCE) 
Term expired at îhe 2006 AGM 
French nationality 

Didier Lamouche (1959) 
Fint appointed in 2006" 
Chairman and CE0 of Groupe Bull 
Current term expires at ,$e 2009 AGM 
French nationality 

Didier Lombard (1941)l 
Fust appointed 2004 ,, 

Chairman and Chief Executive Oficer of France Telecom 
Current t em expires at 'e 2008 AGM 
French nationality 
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Antonino Turicchi (1965) 
First appointed 2005 
Managing Director of Cassa Depositi e Prestiti S.P.A. in Rome 
Current term expires at the 2008 AGM 
Italian nationality 

Roberî M. White (1938) 
First appointed 1996 
University Professor Emeritus Camegie Mellon University 
Current tem expires at he 2007 AGM 
American nationality 
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD 

Tbe supervision of d e  policies and actions of the Managing Board is entrusted to the 
Supervisory Board, wlich, in the two-tier corporate struchm under Dutch law, is a separate 
body and fully independent of the Managing Board. This independence is also reflected in the 
requirement that members of the Supervisory Board be neither a member of the Managing 
Board nor an employee of the Company. in fulfilling their duties under Dutch law, OUT 
Supervisory Board mëmbers serve the best interests of al1 the Company’s shareholders, as 
wel1 as those of OUT $siness. The Supervisory Board supervises and advises the Managing 
Board in performing i? management tasks and setting the direction of the Company’s affairs 
and business. Tbe members of the Supervisory Board are carefully selected on the basis of 
their combined expertise, their knowledge of the Company and its affairs, and of the business 
in which we operate. D e  Supervisory Board is empowered to recommend to the general 
meeting of shareholde+ persons to be appointed as members of the Supervisory Board or of 
the Managing Board. Accordhg tb Article 16 paragraph 1 sub (i) of the Company’s articles 
of association, cerîain lmanagement decisiom, including OUT pluri-annual plans and budget, 
require the approval of the Supervisory Board. The Supervisory Board through its various 
committees including ‘lthe Strategic Committee, the Audit Committee, the Compensation 
Committee and the N o p a t m g  and Corporate Govemance Committee which al1 report to it, 
further supervises the structure and management of systerhs of intemal business controls and 
the fmancial reporting process. It determines the remuneration of the sole member of the 
Managing Board withm the remuneration policy adopted by the general meeting of 
shareholders. ï ñ e  activities of the Supervisory Board Commitîees are descnbed in thiis report. 

As in prior years, the~,Supervisory Board discussed developments in the area of corporate 
govemance in 2006. Furthermore, &e Supervisory Board discussed the implementation of 
section 404 of the US Sarbanes-Oxley Act and its requirements regardmg assessmenf review 
and monitoring of intemal controls over financial reporting. 

Meetings and activities of the Supervisory Board 

ï ñ e  Supervisory Board met 11 t h e s  in the course of 2006, including meetings by telephone 
conference; as outïmed by the table below, al1 of its members who were in office during the 
full year participated in 7 or more of these meetings. The sole member of the Managing 
Board, President and i~Chief Executive Oficer (“CEO) assisted by the Chief Operathg 
Officer (“COO), OUT Chief Financial Officer (“CFO) and OUT Director of Strategy were als0 
present at the meetings of the Supervisory Board except when they discussed the 
composition, functioning and remuneration of the Managing Board. On several occasions 
other members of the executive management team gave presentations on their area of 
business to the Supervisory Board. 

I . .  
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Number of meetings 
d e n d e d  in 2006"' 
Geraid Ahaia .................. 
Manea dei Fante"' .......... 
Tom de Waard ................. 
Douglas Dunn ................. 
Francis Gavois""' .......... 
Didier houche"y'x'' ,., 
Didier Lombard ............... 
B u o  Steve ..................... 
Antanino Twicchi ........... 
Roben M. Wñitc ............. 

- Fuil Campenrition Smtcgie 
Board Comminee Commhot - 

I 1  5 4 
I I  - - 

- - 4 
7 
8 5 4 
11  6 4 

6 4 
4 

L I  
10 

- - 

- 

Audit 
Committee 
- 

Nominsthg 
i n d  Corporate 

Governaace Ad hoc 
Comminee Committn 

8 I 

( i )  inciudes meetings attended by way of conference call. 
(2) Mr. Francis Gavois, who was a Supmisory Baard member until the 2 0 6  annual general d n g  of shareholders on 
April 27.2W6, was replaced by Mr. Didier Lamouche immediately following m e  annnai generai meeting ofshareholders. 
(3) Aminted fa non-votine absmer to Audit Comminee. . . . .  
(4) Mr. Lamuche's tahl~aaendance of seven Supervisdry Board meeting includes Wo meeting in which he wag 
represented by Mr. Arboia 

The remuneration of the Supervisory Board members is described in Notes 16 and 31 to the 
Company's 2006 Consoiidated Financial Statements. 

Biographies of the Supervisory Board members are available in Annex 1 of this Supervisory 
Board Report as wel1 as on the Company's website. 

In 2006, the Supervisory Board's activities included, inter alia: 

Approval of the Company's consolidated accounts, profit and loss accounts, 
balance sheet and cash-flow statement in U.S. GAAP as publisbed quarterly 
by the management, including review and approval of the associated press 
release. 

Approval of the Company's 2005 statutory annual accounts under IFRS. 

Approval of the proposal to appoint members to the Supervisory Board as 
submitted to OUT 2006 annuai general meeting of shareholders, as weU as the 
appointment of members for the Committees of the SupeMsory Board 

Approval of the amount and f i ~ l  conditions for the Company's 2016 
Convertible Bond Offering and resolution upon the issuance of the number of 
shares to serve the relevant conversion. Approval of the amount, terms and 
conditions of the 2013 Senior Bond Offering, issued by a new f m c e  
subsidiary and guaranteed by the Company. 

Approval of the amendment to the Supervisory Board Stock-Based 
Compensation Plan. 

Approval of the compensation policy for Mr. Carlo Bozotti as sole member of 
the Managing Board, President and CE0 and Mr. Alain Dutheil as COO, 
outside the presence of Mr. Bozotti and Mr. Dutheil and pursuant to the 
Compensation Policy as approved by the general meeting of shareholders. 

e 
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Review of the CE0  and CO0 performance in 2006 with respect to the defmed 
performance criteria, outside the presence of Mr. Bozotti and Mr. Dutheil. 

Approval of the terms and conditions of the Key Employee Unvested Stock 
Award !Plan for 2006 (the “Employee Plan”), pursuant to an authorization 
granted: by the 2006 annual general meeting of shareholders; such terms and 
conditions als0 included, upon the recommendation of the Compemtion 
Committee, certain changes conceming the rights of heneficiaries in the event 
of tenxjmtion of employment by the Company for reasons not attributable to 
p e r s 0 9  performance, as wel1 as upon change of control. 

Approval of the amount of unvested stock awards to be granted to the CEO, 
subject;, to shareholder approval, and to the COO, and delegation to the 
Compe+sation Committee of the power to (i) approve the list of other 
beneficiaries under the Employee Plan upon the proposal of the Managing 
Board &d (ii) to grant to the Managing Board the right to make exceptional 
awards ‘to key employees under the “Employee Plan”. 

Approval of the conditions linked to the Company’s performance in sales, 
operating income &d return on net assets, which condition the vesting of 
unvestea stock awards granted under the Employee Plan, to the CEO, CO0 
and other key employees. 

U 

Approvd of the Company’s decision to terminate the Option Agreement with 
STMicroelectronics Holding ii B.V. and to set up an independent foundation, 
Stichting Continuïteit ST, to offer protection to the Company against actions 
considekd hostile by the Managing Board and the Supervisory Board, such as 
a creeping acquisition or an unsolicited offer on the Company’s ordinary 
shares, ,which are unsupported by the Managing Board and the Supervisory 
Board h d  which the board of the foundation determines would be contrary to 
the interests of the Company, its shareholders or other stakeholders, al1 in 
accordahce with the provisions of Dutch law. 

Approv$ of entering int0 an option agreement with Stichting Continuïteit ST, 
to replace a substantially similar option agreement dated May 31, 1999, as 
amended, hetween the Company and STMicroelectronics Holding 11 B.V. 

Review,, of the Company’s long-term strategy and business prospects, and 
approval of the general guidelines as wel1 as of the Company’s 2007 Budget. 

Review~~of the plans and progress of the Company in the area of Research and 
Development (“R&D) effectiveness and Key Projects. 

Review:of the proposals by the Nominating and Corporate Govemance 
Commiîtee regarding nominations for a new Superrisory Board member. 

Reviewloutside the presence of management of die functioning of the 
Supervisory Board and its individual members and discussion of the 
conclusions including the conclusions as regards the independence of the 
Supervisory Board members. 

-9- 



Furthermore, in 2006, the Supervisory Board, mandated the Audit Committee under the 
responsibility of its Chairman, to fully investigate the fraud which had occurred in the 
Company’s treasury department when under the responsibility of the Company’s former 
treasurer who retired at the end of 2005, and which had led the Managing Board to file a 
c r i m i ~ l  complaint with the Public Prosecutor in Lugano. The Supervisory Board noted that 
the fraudulent transactions did not have a material impact on the Company’s previously 
published fmncial statements. It also endorsed the changes in the Company’s treasuiy 
department, and enhanced internal control of treasury activities designed to prevent the 
occurrence of similar actions in the future. 

Fmally, the Supervisory Board devoted significant time to review the strategy, the market, 
business and fmancial risks and challenges of the Company. Such review was conducted in 
part by the Strategic Committee wbich monitored the new developments in the 
semiconductor market, evaluating both opporîunities as presented by the CE0 to strengthen 
the Company’s product offerings and portfolio and options for best securing the future of the 
Company’s flash memory business. These led in December 2006 to the Company’s decision 
to set up a new Flash Memory Group which incorporates al1 Flash Memory Operations, 
including R&D and product related activities, front and back end manufacturing, marketing 
and sales. 

The Audit Committee as pari of its quarterly review also considered a report by the Company 
management on its key business risks. 

The Supervisory Board‘s committees were indeed very active in 2006. 

Compensation Committee 

The Compensation Committee, wbose cunent members are Messrs. Arbola (Chairman), 
Steve, Turicchi, Lombard and de Waard, met six times in 2006. 

The Compensation Committee specifically reviewed and approved the Company’s Managing 
Board compensation policy and the compensation package of the President and CE0 for the 
year 2006, and proposed to the 2006 AGM, wbich approved it, the compensation policy for 
the President, CE0 and sole member of the Managing Board 

At the beginning of 2006, the Compensation Committee reviewed the 2005 performance of 
the President and CE0 in light of objectives and bonus eligibility criteria, and proposed to the 
Supervisory Board the adoption of the bonus for the Resident and CE0 for his performance 
in 2005. in Marcb 2006, the Compensation Committee fixed the eligibility criteria for the 
President and CE0 to receive a bonus for bis performance during 2006, which are based on 
the Company’s commercial, fmancial and market performances over the course of such fiscal 
year. 

Consequently, the remuneration of the sole member of the Managing Board, President and 
CE0 of the Company, comprises: 

- A base salary originally fixed at US$lOO,OOO but paid in euros, as remuneration for the 
position of sole member of the Managing Board. 

A base salary originally fixed at US$600,000 but paid in Swiss francs as the remuneration 
for the position of President and CEO. Such base remuneration is completed by: 

O 

O 

O 
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o A bonus whichmay reach up to 150% of the total base salary of US$700,000 subject 
to the realizatiön of ceriain conditions fixed by the Compensation Committee, and 
approved by the Supervisory Board relating to the Company's financial business and 
R&D performances. 

o A stock award, which offers to the President and CE0 the right to receive up to 
100,000 fìee shares, pursuant to the 2006 Employee Stock Based Compensation Plan 
for Key Employees approved by the general meeting of shareholders. The vesting of 
the unvested stock awards granted under such Plan is conditional upon certain 
predetermined ,performance criteria îked by the Compensation Committee havhg 
been met, and :continued presence with US. The predetermined performance criteria 
concemed Company revenues, operating income, and rehun on net assets. 

The President and CE0 further benefits from a pension plan that was granted in ïme with the 
pension benefits grankd to al1 employees of ST in Switzerland, of which the Compensation 
Committee has been Gformed, and wil1 be a beneficiary under a supplementary pension plan 
for the President and CE0 and other top executive management as approved hy the 
Supervisory Board in February 2006. 

The sole member of the Mana& Board, President and CEO, like the members of the 
Supervisory Board do not benefit from any loans or guarantees granted by the Company. 

ïñe Compensation C o k i t t &  also proposed to the Supervisory Board: 

An amendment to &e Supervisory Board Stock-Based Compensation Plan to clarify that 
if a beneficiary cebes to be a member or professional of the Supervisory Board, other 
than in case of voluntary resignation or dismissal for cause, the beneficiary is entitled to 
exercise the option'!rights within the duration of the Plan. 

The approval of the Unvested Stock Award Plan for Key Employees, includmg an 
amendment to provide for (i) continued vesting rigbts after termination of an employee's 
contract by the Company for reasons not attributable to such employee's hehavior, 
performance or actions and (ii) accelerated vesting in the event of change of control. 

- 

1: 
in 2006, the Compeytion Committee gmnted to members of the Supervisory Board and 
professionals options to purchase Company shares at their nomina1 value pursuant to the 
three-year stock-base? compensation plan for the SupeMsory Board members and 
professionals approved by the 2006 annual general meeting of shareholdem. 

Furthermore, in 2006,' the Compensation Committee prnposed to the Supervisory Board to 
maintain the same compensation for Supervisory Board members as was futed at the 2005 
annual general meeting of shareholdem. 

For 2007, the CompeLation Committee based on a benchmark of comparable companies 
performed by a leadihg consultant, proposed to the Supervisory Board to maintain the 
compensation of Supekisory Board members and professionals in 2007, but to fix at 15,000 
the number of stock options authoriwlg the subscription of shares in the Company's share 
capital at their nominal value awarded to Supervisory Board members and tn fix at 7,500 the 
number of stock optio& authorizimg the subscription of shares in the Company's share capital 
at their nominal value awarded to professionals of the Supervisory Board. 

1: 

O 

I 0  

- 1 1 -  



The reports of the Compensation Commitîee on these subjects were presented kom time to 
time and discussed by the Supervisory Board as a whole. 

Strategic Commiîîee 

The Strategic Commitîee, whose current members are Messrs. Arbola (Chairman), Steve, 
Turicchi, Lombard and White, met four times in 2006, in the presence of the CEO, the COO, 
the Director of Strategy and îhe CFO. Among its main activities, the Strategic Committee 
reviewed the Company’s long-term plans and prospects and various pocsible scenarios and 
opportunities to meet the challenges of the semiconductor markef including the evaluation of 
possible acquisitions, combinations or joint ventures, as weli as the market and business risks 
faced by the Company as presented by management. 

In 2006, the Strategic Committee monitored the Company’s plans for the Flash memory 
business, which lead to the announcement in December 2006 of the strategic repositionhg of 
such activities and the creation of a new Flash Memories Group. 

The Strategic Committee als0 was consulted on various other matters. 

The reports of the Strategic Commitîee were presented kom time to time and discussed by 
the Supervisory Board as a whole. 

Audit Commiîîee 

The current members of the Audit Commitîee are Messrs. de Waard (Chairman), Dunn and 
White and the current non-voting observers are Messrs. dei Fante and Lamoucbe. The Audit 
Commiîtee met 14 times during 2006 and operated in accordance with its Charter published 
on the Company’s website. At many of these meetings, the Audit Commitîee received 
presentations on current fmancial and accounting issues and had the opporhmity to interview 
the President and CEO, the CFO, tbe General Counsel and external and internal auditors. On 
several occasions, the Audit Committee met with outside U.S. legal counsel, who explained 
and analyzed actions required by the new NYSE’s f d  and amended corporate govemance 
rules and the Sarbanes-Oxley Act in addition, the Audit Commitîee regularly discussed the 
progress of implementation of intemal controls over f m c i a l  reporting and reviewed 
management’s conclusions as to the adequacy and appropnateness of intemal controls, 
including the progress of the Company with Section 404 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act. 

At the end of each quarter, prior to each SupeMsory Board meeting to approve the results 
and quarterly eamings press release which are publisbed by the Company with reference to 
US GAAP General Accounting Standards, the Audit Commitîee reviewed the interim 
fmncial information and the proposed press release and bad the opportunity to rake 
questions to management and the independent registered public accounting fm. in addition, 
the Audit Commitîee reviewed the quarterly “Operating and Financial Review and Prospects” 
and the interim Consolidated Fmancial Statements (and notes thereto) before they were filed 
with the SEC and voluntanly certified by the CE0 and the CFO (pursuant to sections 302 and 
906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act). 

The Audit Commitîee also reviewed the annual Consolidated Financial Statements under 
U.S. GAAP for the year ended December 31,2006 and tbe associated press release published 
on January 23, 2007 as wel1 as îhe Company’s 2006 Annual Report on Form 20-F as filed 
with the Secuities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) on March 14,2007. 
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in its 2006 meetings, the Audit Committee reviewed penodically matters relating to 
accounting policies and compliance with accounting standards. Compliance with statutory 
and legal requirements and regulations, particularly in the financial domain, was als0  
reviewed. important fmdings and identified risks were examined thoroughly in order to allow 
appropriate measures to be taken. With regard to the intemal audit, the Audit Committee 
reviewed the intemal audit charter, audit plan, audit scope and its coverage in relation to îhe 
scope of the external audit, as wel1 as the staffmg, independence and organizational stnicture 
of the intemal audit function and held separate meetings with the head of intemal Audit and 
the Company's Auditors. With regard to the extemal audit, the Audit Committee reviewed 
the proposed audit scope, approach and fees, the independence of the extemal auditors, their 
performance, non-audit services provided hy the extemal auditors. The Audit Committee also 
considered the report of the extemal auditors with respect to the annual fmancial statements 
and advised on the SupeMsory Board's statement to shareholders in the annual accounts. 

The Audit Committee als0 performed its annual self-assessment and reviewed and updated its 
Charter to reflect its duties in relation to intemal and extemal auditors. 

The Audit Committee reviewed the Company's 2006 statutory annual accounts using iFRS 
accounting principles which have been drawn up by management examined and audited by 
PncewaterhouseCoopers Accountants N.V., and proposed such accounts for the approval of 
the Supervisory Board. 

The Audit Committee noted that such accounts contain significant differences to the accounts 
published by the Company using U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Pnnciples, as 
contained in the Annual Report on Form 20-F filed by the Company with the SEC on March 
14, 2007, and approved the intention of management to continue to use U.S. GAAP as its 
primary reporting standard to ensure continuity and consistency in its f m c i a l  reporting. 

After discovery of a ñaud by the Company's former treasurer, which led the Company to file 
a criminal complaint with the Prosecutor in Lugano, the Audit Committee selecte4 with the 
approval of the Supervisory Board, an independent US law fm to conduct an independent 
investigation int0 treasuiy management procedures and controls designed to ensure that the 
wrong doings were limited to the Company's former treasurer and that the necessaiy 
procedures and controls were in place to prevent tbe repetition of such occurrence. Such 
investigation has led to an in-deptb review of the Company's procedures and several 
meetings of the independent investigators, the audit committee and the auditors outside the 
presence of the management. 

O 
The reports of the Audit Committee on these subjects were presented kom time to time and c3i 

Li.' 

I 
discussed by the Supervisory Board as a whole. 

O 

Nominating and Corporate Governance Commiîtee c::i 
C.!? 
! 

h J  

p:( 
q 
-4 

The current members of the Nominating and Corporate Govemance Committee are Messrs. 
de Waard (Chairman) Arbola, Steve and Turicchi. In 2006, the Nominating and Corporate 
Govemance Committee met two times before the 2006 annual general meeting of 
shareholders and five times after the 2006 annual general meeting of shareholders. 

The Nominating and Corporate Govemance Committee reviewed the desired profile, 
competence, structure and composition of the SupeMsory Board in general and in view of 
the pending expiration 'of the term of Mr. White. The report of the Nominating and Corporate 
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Govemance Committee was presented to and discussed in the Supervisory Board. The 
Nominating and Corporate Govemance Commiîtee met to evaluate the profdes of candidates, 
appointed a leading consulîant to search for candidates corresponding to the selected profile, 
and examined proposals to fill the position up for renewal at the 2007 annual general meeting 
of shareholders. 

In addition, on March 19, 2007, Mr. Turicchi communicated his resignation from bis position 
on the SupervisOT Board with effect as of the next annual general shareholders meeting, due 
to the increasing and significant time being required to perform his duties as Managing 
Director of Cassa Depositi e Prestiti. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, 
therefore, considered possihle candidates to fill the additional vacancy îhat would arke from 
Mr Turicchi’s resignation. 

In thii respect, the Nominating and Corporate Govemance Commiîtee advised the 
Supervisory Board on recommendations for the appointment of hvo new members of the 
Supervisory Board, to be submitted for approval at the annual general meeting of 
shareholders, to replace Messrs. White and Turicchi. 

The Nominating and Corporate Govemance Committee also evaluated the validiiy and 
enforceability of the ûption Agreement relating to the Company’s preference shares, met 
with Dutch lawyers and designated individuals to discuss the organization and set-up of an 
independent h t c h  foundation or Stichting, which has heen set up to take over the righîs and 
obligations of STMicroelectronics Holding II B.V. pursuant to the Option Agreement 
between the Company and STMicroelectronics Holding IJ B.V. relating to the preference 
shares. 

The reports of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee on these subjects were 
presented from time to time and discussed hy the Supervisory Board as a whole. 

Ad Hoc Committces 

in the course of 2006, the Supervisory Board set up two ad hoc committees. The first 
comprised of Messrs. del Fante, Gavois and de Waard met three times to review and approve 
the conditions relating to the Company’s r e fmc ing  which occurred in the first quarter of 
2006 and involved the issue of new Convertible Bon& and Senior Debt 

The second comprised of Messrs. Arbola and Steve, Chainnan and Vice C h a i i a n  of the 
SupeMsory Board met with the board members of Stichting Continuïteit ST before their 
appointment. 

Proposed Supervisory Board Member Appointments 

Pursuant to extensive research conducted by the Nominating and Corporate Governance 
Committee, on March 19, 2007, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee 
submitted its report to the Supervisory Board, identifying a candidate for the Supervisory 
Board position up for renewal at the 2007 annual general meeting of shareholders. in 
addition, the Nominating and Corporate Govemance Committee recommended a candidate to 
fill the additional vacancy that would be created as a result of the resignation of Mr. Turicchi. 

in view of the recommendations made by the Nominating and Corporate Govemance 
Committee, the Supervisory Board proposes to the general meeting of shareholders the 

O 
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appointment for a threë-year term, until the 2010 annual general meeting of shareholders, of 
Mr. Ray Bingham and Mr. Alessandro Ovi as new members of the Supervisory Board in 
replacement of Mr. Rohert White and Mr. Antonino Turicchi. 

Mr. Ray Bingham was selected, based on his international expenence in management 
íünctions for international technology companies, pursuant to the criteria established by the 
Supervisory Board as set out in the Company's Corporate Governance Charter. 
Mr. Alessandro Ovi, who served & Supervisory Board member of the Company for several 
y e m  until the 2005 +ual general meeting of shareholders, was proposed due to his valued 
expertise in the semiconductor industry and the Company. 

The Supervisory B o e  wishes to wannly thank Mr. Robert White for his significant 
contributions to the works of the SupeMsory Board, and in particular its Audit Committee 
since his appointment in 1996. 'The Supervisory Board also expresses its gratitude to 
Mr. Antonino Turicchi, for his valued contributions and expertise to the discussions of the 
Supervisory Board and its committees. 

Proposed 2007 Cash Dividend and Retained Earnings and Dividend Policy 

Upon the proposal of the Managing Board, the Supervisory Board decided to recommend to 
the 2007 annual general meeting of shareholders a cash dividend of $0.30 per share, 
representing an increase of 150% with respect to last year cash dividend distribution. 

I' 

This recommendation 'is consistent with the Company's dividend policy as communicated 
and discussed at the 2005 annual general meeting of shareholders whereby: 

a) The Company seeks to use its available cash in order to develop and enhance its 
position in the ipery capital-intensive semiconductor market while at the same time 
managing its cash resources to reward its shareholders for their investment and a t  
in the Company; 

Based on its annual results, projected capital requirements as weU as business 
conditions and 'prospects, the Managhg Board proposes each year to the Supervisory 
Board the allkation of its eamings involving whenever deemed possible and 
desirable in line with the Company's objectives and fmancial situation, the 
distribution of a cash dividend; and 

The Supervisoj Board, upon the proposal of the Managing Board, decides each year, 
in accordance iyith this policy, which portion of the profits shall be retained in 
reserves to f d d  future growth or for other purposes and makes a proposal to the 
shareholders concerning the amounf if any, of the annual cash dividend. 

b) 

c) 

Financial Statemen& 2006 

The financial statemenl of the Company for 2006, as presented by îhe Managing Board have 
been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers Accountants N.V., independent auditors. Their 
report has been included in the Other Information section of this Annual Report. We have 
approved the fmncial statements for submission to the annual general meeting of 
shareholders. 

<i:! 
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Resolutions submiîted to the 2007 annual general meeting of shareholders 

As in the past, the Supervisory Board has prepared with the Managing Board, the resolutions 
to be submitted for adoption at the Company’s annual general meeting of shareholders to be 
held on April 26,2007 in Amsterdam, the Netherlands. The text of the proposed resolutions 
and shareholder infomation is available on the Company’s website. Except as stated below, 
the resolutions are in h e  with the resolutions presented for shareholder adoption at prior 
annual general meetings of shareholdem. The Supervisory Board Report proposes also to 
refer to the commentaries contained in the “proposed resolutions and shareholder 
information” published on the Company’s website. 

Upon the proposal of its Compensation Conunittee and based on a benchmark of the practices 
of similar international companies, the Supervisory Board is proposing to increase the stock- 
based portion of the remuneration offered to its members, in order to attract and retain 
suitable candidates for this demanding position in a multinational environment and to modify 
accordingly the three year stock-based compensation plan for members and professionals of 
the Supervisory Board approved by the 2005 annual general meeting. 

Upon the proposal of the Managing Board, the Supervisory Board is proposing to authorize 
the Managing Board with the prior approval of the Supervisory Board to repurchase shares, 
when such repurchase shall be considered as being in the best interest of the Company’s 
shareholders and other stakeholders, for creating long-tem value. 

F‘ursuant to changes in Dutch Law following the implementation of the Thirteenth EU 
Directives on public îakeovers and other anticipated changes in Dutch legislation which wil1 
become effective in the near future, the Supervisory Board is proposing to update the 
Company’s articles of association, as regards: 

i) The power of the generai meeting of shareholders to reduce the issued share capital, 
and to fur the modalities of repayment for preference shares; 

ii) The rules regardmg the allocation of profits to the holden of preference shares if and 
when issue& 

iii) The power of the Managing Board and Supervisory Board to set a registration date for 
determining who shall be authorized to attend the Company’s general meetings of 
shareholden as wel1 as to authorize shareholders entitled to vote and other persons 
entitled to vote at general meetings of shareholders to vote by electronic means of 
communication within a period prior to the generai meeting of shareholders; 

iv) The authorized use of electronic m e m  of communications, including electronic 
voting, and webcasts of proceedings at a general meeting of shareholders, subject to 
decision by the Managing Board and approval of the SupeMsory Board; and 

v) The d e s  relating to the preparation period and time of publication of the statutory 
annual accounts, the annual report, the statement of the Company’s extemal 
accountant as wel1 as al1 other fmancial documents which must be made generally 
available together with the statutory annual accounts pursuant to a statutory 
obligation. 

e 

e 

e 

e ,  
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Conclusion 

Finally, the Supervisory Board, in conjunction wiîh the Managing Board, prepared the 
agenda for the upcoming 2007 annual general meeting of shareholders. The Supervisory 
Board also voted on March 20,2007 to adopt this report and recommend for adoption of the 
proposed resolutions. The agenda, proposed resolutions and other information regarding the 
upcoming 2007 annuai general meeting of shareholders are available on the Company's 
website and in print to any shareholder upon request. 

Approved by the SupeMsory Board on March 20,2007. 
, 

o 
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ANNEX 1 

O Curreot members of the Company’s Supervisory Board 

Gérald Arbola was appointed to our Supervisory Board at the 2004 annual shareholders’ 
meeting and was reelected at the 2005 annual shareholders’ meeting. Mr. Arbola was 
appointed the Chairman of our Supervisory Board on March 18,2005. Mr. Arbola previously 
served as Vice Chairman of our SupeMsory Board fmm April 23,2004 until March 18,2005. 
Mr. Arbola is also Chairman of our Supervisory Board’s Compensation Committee and 
Strategic Committee, and serves on its Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee. 
Mr. k b o l a  is now Managing Director of Areva S.A., whek he had also served as Chief 
Financial Officer, and is a member of the Executive Board of Areva since his appointment on 
July 3, 2001. Mr. Arbola joined the Cogema group in 1982 as Director of Planning and 
Strategy for SGN, then served as Chief Financial Officer at SGN from 1985 to 1989, 
becoming Executive Vice President of SGN in 1988 and Chief Financial Officer of Cogema 
in 1992. He was appointed as a member of the executive committee in 1999, and also served 
as Chairman of the Board of SGN in 1997 and 1998. Mr. Arbola is c m n t l y  a member of the 
boards of directors of Cogema, Framatome ANP, Areva T&D Holdings and Chairman of 
Areva Finance Gestion S.A. and Cogerap. Mr. Arbola is a graduate of the Institut d’Etudes 
Politiques de Park and holds an advanced degree in economics. Mr. Arbola is the Chairman 
of the Board of Directors of FTlCI and was the Chairman until his resipation on November 
15,2006 of the Supervisory Board of ST Holding, our largest shareholder. 

O B m o  Steve has been a member of our Supervisory Board since 1989 and was appointed 
Vice C h a i i a n  of our Supervisory Board on March 18, 2005, and previously served as 
Chairman of our SupeMsory Board from March 27,2002 through March 18,2005, from July 
1990 through March 1993, and from June 1996 until May 1999. He also served as Vice 
Chairman of the Supervisory Board from 1989 to July 1990 and fmm May 1999 through 
March 2002. Mr. Steve serves on OUT Supervisory Board’s Compensation Committee as wel1 
as on its Nominating and Corporate Govemance and Strategic Conunittees. He was with 

Finmeccanica, Finmeccanica and other affiliates of I.R.I. in various senior positions for over 
17 yem. Mr. Steve is currently Chairman of Statutory Auditors of Selex S. & A. S. S.P.A., 
Chairman of Surveillance Bodv of Selex S .  & A. S. S.D.A and member of Statutorv Auditors 

Istituto per la Ricosûuzione industriale-IRì S.P.A. (“IRi”), a former shareholder of O 

of Pirelli Tyres S.P.A. Until Dlcember 1999, he servedas Chairman of MEI. He sehed as the 
Chief Operating Officer of Finmeccanica from 1988 to July 1997 and Chief Executive 
Officer from May 1995 to July 1997. He was Senior Vice President of Planning, Finance and 
Control of I.R.I. from 1984 to 1988. Prior to 1984, Mr. Steve served in several key executive 
positions at Telecom Italia. He is als0 a professor at LUISS Guido Carli University in Rome. 
Mr. Steve was Vice Chairman from May 1999 to March 2002, Chairman from March 2002 to 
May 2003 and member until his resipation on April 21, 2004 of the SupeMsory Board of 
ST Holdmg, our largest shareholder. 

Tom de Waard has been a memher of our SupeMsory Board since 1998. Mr. de Waard was 
appointed Chairman of the Audit Committee by the Supervisory Board in 1999 and Chairman 
of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Commitîee in 2004 and 2005, respectively. He 
also serves on our Supervisory Board’s Compensation Committee. Mr. de Waard has been a 
partner of Clifford Chance, a leading international law fm, since Mach 2000 and was the 
Managing Partner of Clifford Chance Amsterdam office from May 1,2002 until May 1,2005. 
From January 1,2005 until January 1,2007 he was a member of the Management Committee 
of Clifford Chance. Prior to joining Clifford Chance, he was a partner at Stibbe, where he 

O ’  
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held several positions since 1971 and gained extensive expenence working with major 
international companies, particularly with respect to corporate fmance. He is a member of the 
Amsterdam bar and was President of the Netherlands Bar Association from 1993 îhrough 
1995. He received his law degree from Leiden Universiîy in 1971. Mr. de Waard is a member 
of the Supervisory Boärd of BE Semiconductor Industries N.V. (“BESI”) and of its audit and 
nominating committees. He is also chairman of BESI’s compensation committee. Mr. de 
Waard is a member of the board of the foundation “Stichting Sport en Zaken”. 

Matteo del Fante was appointed to our Supervisory Board at OUT 2005 annual shareholders’ 
meeting. Mr. del Fante is als0 a non-voting observer on its Audit Committee. Mr. del Fante 
has served as die Chief Financid,Officer of CDP in Rome since the end of 2003. Prior to 
joining CDP, Mr. del Fante held several positions at JPMorgan Chase in London, England, 
where he became Managing Director in 1999. During his i3 y e m  with JPMorgan Chase, Mr. 
del Fante worked w i l  large European clienis on strategic and fmancial operations. Mr. del 
Fante obtained his degree in Economics and Finance from Universia Bocconi in Milan in 
1992, and followed gäduate specialization courses at New York Universiîy’s Stem Business 
School. Mr. del Fante was the Vice Chairman until his resignation on November 15,2006 of 
the Supervisory Board,,of ST Holding, OUT largest shareholder. 

Douglas DUM has been a membe; of OUT Supervisory Board since 2001. He is a member of 
its Audit Commiîtee sipce such date. He was formerly President and Chief Executive Officer 
of ASML Holding N.V. (“ASML”), an equipment supplier in the semiconductor industry, a 
position from which he retired eff6ctive October I ,  2004. Mr. Dunn was appointed Chainnan 
of the Board of Directors of ARM Holdings plc (United Kingdom) in October 2006. In 2005, 
Mr. Dunn was appointed to the board of Philips-LG LCD (Korea), TomTom N.V. 
(Netherlands) and OMI, a pnvately-held company (Ireland), and also serves as a non- 
executive director on lthe board of SOITEC (France). He is als0 a member of the audit 
committees of ARM Holdings plc, SOITEC and TomTom N.V. In 2005, Mr. Dunn resigned 
from his position as a  non-executive director on the board of Sendo plc (United Kingdom). 
Mr. Dunn was a member of the Managing Board of Royal Philips Electronics in 1998. From 
1996 to 1998 he was Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Philips Consumer Electronics 
and fmm 1993 to 1996 Chainnan and Chief Executive Ofticer of Philips Semiconductors 
(now NXF’ Semiconductors). From 1980 to 1993 he held various positions at Plessey 
Semiconductors. 
Didier Lamouche has been a member of OW Supervisory Board since 2006. Mr. Lamouche is 
currently a non-voting observer on the Audit Commiîiee of OUT Supervisory Board. Mr. 
Lamouche is a gaduate of Ecole Centrale de Lyon and hol& a PhD in semi-conductor 
technology. He has 25 years experience in the semiconductor industry. Mr. Lamouche started 

11 

his career in 1984 in the R&D department of Philips before joining IBM Microelectronics 
where he held several positions in France and the United Siates. In 1995, he became Director 
of Operations of Motomla’s Advanced Power IC unit in Toulouse (France). Three years later, 

q3 
LI.:’ 
I 

1998, he joined IBM ,as General Manager of the largest European semiconductor site in 
Corbeil (France) to lead its turn around and transformation into a joint venture between IBM 
and Infmeon: Altis Se&onductor. He managed Altis Semiconductor as a CE0 for four years. 
From 2003 to end 2004, Mr. Lamouche joined back IBM as Vice-President for WorldWide 
Semiconductor Operations, based in New York (United States). Since December 2004, Mr. 

operating in the IT sector. He is also a member of the Board of Directors of CAMECA and 
SOITEC. 

I 

I>.,>. 

Lamouche has been the Chairman &d CE0 of Groupe Bull, a France-based global company >..I. 
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Didier Lombard was frst appointed to OUT Supervisory Board at the 2004 annual 
shareholders’ meeting and was reelected at our 2005 annual shareholders’ meeting. He serves 
on the Compensation and Strategic Committees of our Supervisory Board. Mr. Lombard was 
appointed Chairman and Chief Executive Oficer of France Telecom in March 2005. Mr. 
Lombard began his career in the Research and Development division of France Telecom in 
1967. From 1989 to 1990, he served as scientific and technological director at the Ministry of 
Research and Technology. From 1991 to 1998, he served as General Director for induseial 
strategies at the French Ministry of Economy, Finances and industry, and from 1999 to 2003 
he served as Ambassador at large for foreign investments in France and as President of the 
French Agency for International Investments. From 2003 through Feb- 2005, he served 
as France Telecom’s Senior Executive Vice President in charge of technologies, strategic 
partnerships and new usages and as a member of France Telecom’s Executive Committee. Mr. 
Lombard als0 spent several years as Ambassador in charge of foreign investment in France. 
Mr. Lombard is also C h a i i a n  of the Board of Directors of Orange and a member of the 
Board of Directors of Thaies and Thomson, one of OUT important customers, as weli as a 
rnernber of the SupeMsory Board of Radiall. Mr. Lombard was als0 a member until his 
resignation on November 15, 2006 of the Supervisory Board of ST Holding, OUT largest 
shareholder. Mr. Lombard is a graduate of the Ecole Polytechnique and the Ecole Nationale 
Supéneure des Télécommunications. 

Antonino Turicchi was appointed as a memher of our Supervisory Board at our 2005 annual 
shareholders’ meeting. He serves on its Compensation and Strategic Committees. Mr. 
Turicchi eamed a degee cum laude in Economics and Business from the University of Rome 
and, after receiving a scholarship from Istituto San Paolo di Torino, he attended the masters’ 
program in Economics at the University of Turin in 1991 and 1992. in 1993, he was awarded 
a grant from the European Social Fund to attend the masters’ program in international 
Finance and Foreign Trade. Mr. Turicchi has heen Managing Director of CDP in Rome since 
June 2002. From 1994, Mr. Turicchi held positions with the Italian Ministry of the Treasury 
(now known as the Ministry of the Economy and Finance). In 1999, he was promoted to 
director responsible for conducting securitization operations and managing f w c i a l  
operations as part of the treasury’s deht management functions. Between 1999 and June 2002, 
Mr. Turicchi was also a member of the board of Mediocredito del Friuli; from 1998 until 
2000, he served on the board of Mediocredito di Roma, and from 2000 until2003, he served 
on the board of EUR S.P.A. 
Rohert M. White has heen a member of our SupeMsory Board since 1996. He serves on its 
Sûategic and Audit Committees. Mr. White is a University Professor Emeriîus at Camegie 
Mellon University and serves as a member of several corporate boards, including SGI Federal. 
He is a former director of Read-Rite Corporation, which filed for hankniptcy in July 2003. 
Mr. White is a memher of the U.S. National Academy of Engineering and the recipient of the 
Amencan Physical Society’s Pake Pnze for research and technology management in 2004. 
From 1990 to 1993, Mr. White served as Under Secretary of Commerce for Technology in 
the United States govemment. Prior to 1990, Mr. White served in several key executive 
positions, including Pnncipal Scientist for Xerox Corporation and Vice President and Chief 
Technology Officer for Control Data Corporation. He received a doctorai degree in Physics 
kom Stanford University and graduated with a degree in physics from Massachusetts 
institute of Technology. 
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REPORT OF THE MANAGING BOARü 

O 

O 

O 

O 

Dear Shareholder, 

In 2006, pursuing the iinitiatives launched last year, we have made significant headway in 
delivenng on our most important business and strategic imperatives in our effort to 
strengîhen and reshapd ST int0 a stronger and more competitive indusûy leader. 

* 
I1 

Our product portfolio has continued to strengthen, and in 2006, with a sales growth of 
11% year over year, we grew our market share, both with respect to the overall market 
which in 2006 grew by approximately 9%, and wiîh respect to the market served by our 
products which prew by approximately 8% over 2005 levels. 

Our capital intensib has decreased with our capex to sales ratio down to 15.6% in 2006 
fiom over 20% just a few years ago. Furthermore last October we initiated a new target 
of 12% capex to sales ratio which we are seeking to achieve through a combination of a 
less capital intensive product portfolio, increased usage of foundries for non proprietary 
technologies and optimization of our manufacturing facilities. 

Our NOR and NAND Flash Business has as from January 1, 2007 been organized into a 
stand alone segment, following initiatives launched in 2006, and we are moving ahead on 
creating a separate legal entity in comection with OUT strategic repositioning of this 
business. 

Our net operating cash flow generated in 2006 reached $666 million as described in the 
Liquidity and FinaÜcial Position section of our Annual Report. 

- 

I1 

- 
Our initiatives and resulting achievements have enabled us to realize our primary objectives 
for 2006: gaining market share while simulîaneously improving fmancial performance in 
term of return on assets and cash flow. 

Financial Performance in 2006 

US GAAP and Dutch Statutory annual report 

Our results and perfobance for h e  purpose of this statutory report under Dutch law are 
presented using IFRS,I figures as required pursuant to European Comission regulation 
1606/2002. Our results using iFRS differ significantly from our results as reported using US 
GAAP, in parîicular aS concern capitalization and amortization of development expenses 
required under iFRS q d  the accounting for compound fmancial instnunents. 

We would like to recall that our quarterly, semi-annual and annual fmancial results as 
presented to OUT investors and the general public, are Consolidated Financial Statements 
prepared under U.S. GAAP, which is the accounting standard we have used since our 
creation in 1987. We believe that the reference to U.S. GAAP in our fuiancial reporting is 
particularly important"in our indusûy and in the mind of our investors to ensure the 
comparability of our performance and results to those of our competitors, and to ensure the 
continuity in the reporting of our financial performance. Copies of our U.S. GAAP annuai 
report, based on Form 120-F, quarterly releases and other information, can be obtained from 
OUT offices and are als0 available on ST's website at www.st.com. 

O 
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FuU Year 2006 Results Highlights 

We are approachmg the $10 billion revenue milestone. Our net revenues for the year ended 
December 31, 2006 were $9.85 billion, representing an increase of about 11% compared to 
the $8.88 biilion recorded in 2005. Year-over-year sales growth was driven by doubledigit 
increases in wireless and industrial, with mid-single digit conûibutions h m  our automotive, 
computer and consumer segments. 

Both gross and operating profit increased sharply. Cross profit increased 16% to $3.48 billion 
in 2006 compared to $3.00 billion in 2005. ûperating profit more than doubled to $988 
million, or 10.0% of net revenues, up frorn to $394 million in 2005 or 4.4% of net revenues in 
2005. 

R&D costs for 2006 were $ 1,388 million, or 14.1% of net revenues, compared to $1.411, or 
15.9% of net revenues in 2005. R&D expenses are net of the development capitalization, 
which started in 2005. Selling, general and administrative (“SC&A”) expenses were $1,083 
million or 11.0% of net revenues in 2006, compared to $1,069 million or 12.0% of net 
revenues in 2005. 2005 SC&A included $18 million in one-time compensation and pension 
charges, $47 million in charges related to the accelerated vesting of stock options and $5 
million in other stock-based compensation costs. 2006 SC&A included $22 miliion in stock 
based compensation cost. The Company posted $68 million of impairment, restructuring 
charges, and other related closure costs in 2006, compared to $98 million in 2005. 

Net profit attributable to the shareholders of the Company for 2006 increased significantly to 
$964 million, or $1.07 per diluted share. in the prior year, net profit attributable to the 
shareholders of the Company was $347 million, or $0.39 per diluted share. 

For ST, the 2006 effective average exchange rate of the euro versus the U.S. dollar which 
reflects current exchange rate levels and the impact of certain hedging contracts was for the 
full year 2006 approximately $1.24 to €1, compared to approximately $1.28 to €1 in 2005. 
The effective exchange rate is calculated based upon average exchange rates dwing the year 
in combination with the impact of hedging contracts. 

Net cash üom operating activities increased by $703 million to $2.69 billion for 2006, 
compared to $1.98 billion in 2005. Capital expenditures, net of sales proceeds were $1,533 
million in 2006 compared to $1,441 million in 2005. Net operating cash flow for 2006 was a 
record $666 rnillion, compared to $270 million in 2005. 

At December 31, 2006, our cash and cash equivalents, rnarketable secuities, short t e m  
deposits and resûicted cash equaled $2.9 biilion. Total Financial Debt was $1.9. billion. Our 
net fmancial position improved by approximately $767 million in 2006 to $1,015 million, as 
described in the Liquidity and Financial Position section of our Annual Report. Shareholders 
equity stood at $10.1 biliion at December 31,2006. 

Tuming to 2007 we want to share our key business objectives by making certain forward 
looking statements which, we would remind you, are subject to certain risk and 
uncertainties, as highlighted in the Intemal Control Section. 

O 
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In 2007, we expect nohvithstanding the tougher environment as the semiconductor market 
works through inventory in selected applications in the frst half of 2007, to make further 
important progress in our ongoing key initiatives for sales expansion, new product 
introduction and assetl leverage, which, we believe, wil1 strengthen the Company's market 
oppomities and fmancial position. 

We are also currently budgeting about $1.2 billion for ST's capital spending which is 
expected to further reduce the Company's capex to sales ratio from the 2006 level. 

Corporate Governance and Internal Cooîrols 

We confirm to our shafeholders, and other sîakeholders, that management at ST is committed 
to the highest standards on colrjorate governance and intemal controls issues. We are 
continuing to review our pmcesys, and we are planning in 2007 to launch a program of 
internal awareness on ,,these issues. Our corporate strategy, and associated market, business, 
operational and f m c p l  nsks is penodically discussed wiîh our SupeMsory Board and its 
Committees, in particular, the strategic committee and the audit committee. We consider 
these issues al1 the more relevant, that as a company subject to îhe laws of various 
jurisdictions which mhy in cerîak cases have conflicting requirements in terms of best 
practices, we need to ensure that OUT position on these important items is wel1 communicated 
and understood. The sections on Corporate Govemance and intemal Controls in OUT Annual 
Report describe OUT activities in these areas. 

2006 Key Events 

New Products Pipelie 
ûur key focus during 2006 was on developing new leading edge product which drive stronger 
gross margins, better operating margins and improved net results. As  a leader in Wireless, 
industrial and Automotive markets in addition to a number of other areas, we are currently 
introducing a wave of new products designed to reinforce OUT areas of product leadership and 
importantly, strengthen our financial performance. 

From new digital co4umer set top box product offenngs to wireless connectivity solutions 
and system-on-a chip offerings in the data storage field, we have launched a focused R&D 
initiative, and in 20061we pursued the redeplopent of 1,000 R&D engineers to such areas, 
including; , 

in Wireless and consumer platforms, where multimedia convergence solutions are the 
driving force of silicon growth, and OUT customer relationships, product know-how 
and long standing presence play a key factor. 

In computer penpherals, and more specifically for US, data storage and printers, where 
new applications are driving growing volumes, and 

in Power applications, for h e  Automotive, Industrial, power supply and motor control 
fields where OUT technologies offer a perfect match to market needs and where our 
positioning and continued momentum in this segment are tied to our histoncal 
leadership in the analog &ket. 

11 
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In 2006, we have designed a number of new products for the cellular communications market 
starting with our 3G digital basehand offerings, which we wil1 begin shipping to a market 
leading customer dwing 2007 and pursuing with Nomadik, where we are currently shipping 
to one wireless customer, with 2 more ramping dwing 2007. Finally, in the area of 
connectivity, which for US is Bluetooth and wireless LAN offerings, we are building on OUT 
successes in 2006, and are targeting to double sales in these products in 2007. 

Moving to digital consumer, OUT effort to focus on 90 nanometer product development 
continues to pay off, with continuing positive results in the set top box market. Here we have 
been fmt in the industry with a single chip at this technology, and we are rolling out the 65 
nanometer solution ahead of the competition as well. We have our Digital TV offering with 
design wins throughout Asia, and have the low cost version coming out in 2007. 

Technology Development and Manufacîuring 

To support OUT new products we continue to invest in the development of advanced 
manufachuing technology. 

We also have a diversified leading edge manufachuing inflasúucture comprising front end 
and back end facilities, capable of producing silicon wafers using OUT broad process 
technology portfolio, including our CMOS and BICMOS technologies as wel1 as our 
memories and discrete technologies. 

In 2006, we subsîantially completed our 6 inch resûucîuring and are now enjoying the lower 
costs fiom OUT 6 inch mega facility in Ang Mo Kio 6, and have als0 completed the 
redeployment to Asia of our elecûic wafer solt (EWS) resources while in the back-end we 
have established programs to compensate for the drastic and dramatic increase in the costs of 
raw materials. 

Marketing 

In 2006, we launched a major initiative in China by establishing a new Greater China Region 
focusing more and more on domestic customers, while also supporting our traditional 
customers that have moved portions of their operations to China for lower cost 
manufacturing. 

We also launched an initiative in Japan, where we grew hy more than 30% during 2006, 
while the market grew by oniy 5%. Importantly, this result is aîîributable in part to a change 
of OUT market coverage strategy, which now involves working more and more directly, rather 
than through distributors, with OUT major customers. 

We have also launched two major initiatives directed towards our customers. Tbe frst 
concern a marketing plan to address al1 the mid size and smal1 customers that are beyond OW 
traditional top 50 customers, and the second is to target new key accounts, particularly in the 
US and Asia. 

O 

O 

O 

I 
O ,  

O 

. I  

- 2 4 -  



Qusüîy 

O 

O 

I 0  

O 

O 

I. 

I 0  

O 

O 

We continue to focus i;o" our product quality performance, and over the course of 2006 we 
have started to see important recognitions from OUT customers, in particular our automotive 
and communication customers, underscoring the ongoing improvement in OUT product 
quality. ii 

We reinforced OUT commitment to continuous quality improvement ensuring that it is 
comprehensive and wel1 sûuctured. We are focused on establishing a complete loop, 
commencing with rodust product design - which is the ongin of good quality, on robust 
processes, - on robust 'quality management and on robust and mutually beneficia1 partnership 
with our customers to address, resolve and further enhance quality. We have also launched an 
ongoing company wide initiative "Quality Excellence in Mind" and during 2006 held haining 
activities with 4,000 employees. 

Corporate Responsibility 

For more than fifieen years, the principles of Corporate Responsibility have been emhedded 
in our values, and we have always heen conscious of our responsibility toward al1 OUT 

siakeholders. This we 'defme as Sustainabie Excellence, and we have a number of important 
initiatives ongoing, twÖ of which are worib a specific mention. 

The fint one is the continuation of our energy consumption reduction program, where we 
have set for ourselves the target of reducing the energy we use for each unit of production by 
5% per year. In 2006 the actual reduction was as high as 6%, bringing the compound average 
annual reduction of our energy intensity since 1994 to 5.3% per year. 

in 2006 we also launched OW new initiative on Health, with the aim of protecting the health 
of OUT people - both inside and outside their workplace - through periodic medical 
examinations and specific health monitoring. 

I, 

Employees 

As of December 31, 2006 we had approximately 51,770 employees worldwide including 
10,300 employees employed in R&D activities worldwide, 2,850 employed in marketing and 
sales and 33,420 employed in manufachuing. 

Conclusion 

2007 wil1 mark a very special year for S T  it is our 20b anniversary, a penod during which 
we grew our sales by more than ten times, improved our ranking in the semiconductor 
industry from position number i5 to position number 5 in 2006, and established a fmncially 
solid industry player. 
On the operating front, we aim to continue to build on our strength in 2007, seeking to 
outperform the market and to gain market share, through sales and marketing initiatives 
supported by the strength of our of new products roll-outs. 

At the same time, we wil1 als0 drove important strategic initiatives during 2007. 
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The I" important strategic initiative is about NOR and NAND Flash Memories. In this 
memory business, particularly when manufacturing is moving to 12 inch wafers, volumes 
really matter and that of reaching adequate dimensions of scale is an absolutely crucial 
prerequisite to be able and compete successfully on the global marketplace. For this reason 
we have initiated a process of industrial consolidation and f m c i a l  deconsolidation of our 
Flash memory business. We have decided to separate the Flash business with the objective of 
achieving, together witb a partner, that indispensable dimension of scale and of significantly 
improving competitiveness. In preparation for this move, we have established a new 
organization, the Flash Memory Group, and we are creating a separate legal entity which wil1 
include not only al1 product related activities, but also technology development, front-end and 
back-end manufacturing and sales and marketing activities worldwide. 

The 2" important strategic initiative concerns OUT capital investment program, where we 
have set a new target: 12% of OUT sales, driven by the need to reduce (i) capital intensity 
because of the reduced structural growth of the semiconductor market (ii) OUT dependence on 
the market cycles which leads to non-optimal loadmg and increased manufacturing costs at 
our fabs, and (iii) the burden of depreciation, still very high for US, on the f m c i a l  
performance of OUT company. 

The 3d important area concerns our R&D cooperation in Crolles2 where we have been 
working with two partners, N X P  Semiconductors and Freescale Semiconductor for the last 5 
years and where OUT cooperation agreement wil1 expire at the end of 2007. 

Beyond that date, ST wil1 remain strongly committed to Crolles for fuhue technology 
development, particularly in derivative technologies which are absolutely instrumental to the 
further development of OUT new product portfolio and to the success of OUT company. The 
main focus wil1 be in the areas of convergence CMOS, with onboard radio frequency 
capabilities and analogue features, as wel1 as in tbe field of CMOS image sensor technology. 
Furthermore, as we proceed in the transition from 90 nm to 60 nm, we wil1 focus also on 
embedded Flash technology. With respect to core CMOS process development below 45 
nanometers, we have chosen to participate in a consortium which wiil allow us to stay at the 
forefront of technological development. We are considering potential partnership options, and 
a decision wil1 be made in the fust half of 2007. 

in summaiy, as STMicroelectronics enters its 20" year of activity, we are convinced that the 
Company is solidiy tracking to plan for strengthening its performance and that the 
foundations on which we are building OUT next future are quite solid. Thanks to OUT improved 
R&D focus, we have one of the strongest pipeline of new products in OUT history. This 
enhanced product offering complements OUT marketing initiatives already in progress, 
opening up, by this combination, new and exciting opportunities. This, enhanced by our 
relenîless cost reduction programs and furîher focus on asset management, wil1 certainly 
bnng the Company to new value creation for its shareholders. 

Carlo Bozotti 
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Since OUT creation in 1987, we have demomtrated a consistent commitment to the principles 
of good corporate govemance, evidenced by: 

Our corpora+ organization under Dutch law that entrusts OUT management to a 
Managhg Board acting under the supervision and control of a Supervisory Board 
totally independent from the Managing Board. Members of OUT Managing Board 
and of OUT Supervisory Board are appointed and dismissed by our shareholders; 

Our early adoption of policies on important issues such as business ethics and 
conflicts of interest and OUT strict policies, implemented since our 1994 initia1 public 
offering, to comply with applicable regulatory requirements concernhg financial 
reporting, insider ûading and public disclosures; 

Our compliance with United States, French and Italian securities laws, because OUT 
shares are listed in these jurisdictions, and with Dutch securities laws, because we 
are a company incorporated under the laws of the Netherlands, as wel1 as OUT 

compliance with the cqrporate, social and fmancial laws applicable to OUT 
subsidiaries inlthe countries in which we do business; and 

Our broad-based activities in the field of corporate social responsibility, 
encompassing ! environmental, social, health, safety, educational and other related 
issues. 

, 

~ 

Dutch company, STMicroelectronics N.V. (the “Company” or “ST”), became subject to 
htch Corporate Governance Code effective January i,  2004. As we are listed on the 
E, Euronext Paris,: the Borsa Italiana in Milan, and als0 in Luxembourg but not in the 
:rlands, OUT corpopte govemance principles and guidelines seek to achieve compliance 

with the relevant pract,ices in a vFeiety of jurisdictions, always keeping in mind the best 
interests of the shareholders, employees and other stockholdem. As a result the corporate 
govemance practices d+er in certain cases from îhe “best practices” recornmended by the 
Dutch Corporate Govemance Code. However, by explaining the corporate governance 
practices in the Corpor& Govemance Charter, the Company has endeavored to comply with 
the h t c h  Corporate GÖvemance Code. We have summarized OUT policies and practices in 
the field of corporate govemance in the ST Corporate Govemance Charter, including our 
corporate organization,: the remuneration principles which apply to OUT Managing and 
Supervisory Boards, o” information policy and OUT corporate policies relating to business 
ethics and conîlicts of interest. OUT Charter was discussed with and approved by OUT 

shareholders at OUT 20,M AGM. The ST Corporate Govemance Charter is penodically 
reviewed with our Sup;eMsory Board and updated and expanded whenever necessary 01 
advisable. We are commitîed to eform our shareholders of any significant changes in OUT 
corporate governance policies and practices at OUT AGM. Along with our Supervisory Board 
Charter (which includes the charters of OUT Supervisory Board Committees) which was last 
updated by OUT Supervisory Board in December 2006 and OUT Code of Business Conduct and 
Ethics, the current versiÒn of OUT ST Corporate Govemance Charter is posted on OUT website, 
at http:/www.st.com/stonline/company/governance/index.htm, and these documents are 
available in print to any shareholder who may request them. 

O 
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ST’s corporate govemance provisions, as highlighted by the ST Corporate Govemance and 
Supervisory Board Charters posted on the website under “Corporate Govemance” can differ 
ûom the best practice provisions in the Dutch Corporate Governance Code. The areas 
concern primarily remuneration, where like many of the Company’s peer companies in the 
high-tech industry and due to the fiscal legislation in the various main counîries in which the 
Company operates, there is neither a requirement for a minimum three-year vesting penod for 
share-based compensation (best practice provisions 11.2.1 and II.2.2 of the Dutch Corporate 
Govemance Code), nor a three-year minimum (five years for Managing Board members) 
holding requirement (best practice provision II.2.3 of the Dutch Corporate Govemance 
Code). Furthermore, ST believes that Supervisory Board members’ compensation should 
include stock-based compensation in order to ensure that they best identify with the interests 
of al1 shareholders in line with intemational practices (best practice provision In.7.1 of the 
Dutch Corporate Govemance Code) and to attract new members with an intemational 
background. 

ST’s Supervisory Board and Corporate Governance 

ST has adopted a profile for its Supervisory Board members, the composition of the 
Supervisory Board commitiees, as well as a d e f ~ t i o n  of independence regarding the status of 
SupeMsory Board members which is descnbed in the Supervisory Board Charter. Since the 
Company’s creation in 1987, STMicroelectronics Holding N.V. (“ST Holding”), through its 
wholly-owned subsidiaty STMicroelectronics Holding I1 B.V. (“ST Holding Ir), has always 
been one of the major shareholders, and some of the members of the Supervisory Board have 
or have had long-standing relationships with both the shareholders and with the Company. 
Such relationships are descnbed in their biogmphies, which are posted on OUT wehsite. One 
of the Company’s Supervisory Board members has been in office since 1987, which is more 
than twelve years (best practice provision IiI.3.5). Additionally, the Chaiman of the 
Supervisory Board is also the President of the Company’s Supervisory Board’s 
Compensation Committee. This is due to the system of altemating the position of President 
of the Supervisory Board (best practice provision III.5.11 of the Dutch Corporate Govemance 
Code). 

The Supervisory Board is carefully selected based upon the combined expenence and 
expertise of its members. Certain of our Supervisory Board members, as disclosed in their 
biographies attached to the Supervisory Board report, have existing relationships or past 
relationships with Areva, Cassa Depositi e Prestiti (“CDP”) andor Fimneccanica, who are 
currentiy parties to the ST Holding Shareholders’ Agreement as descnbed below. Such 
relationships may give nse to potential conflicts of interest. However, in fulfilling their duties 
under Dutch law, Supervisory Board members serve the best hteresîs of al1 of ST’s 
stakeholders and of ST’s business and must act independently in their supervision of ST’s 
management. 

Our Supervisory Board held several meetings in 2003 to discus the new Dutch Corporate 
Govemance Code, the implementing d e s  and corporate governance standards of the SEC 
and of the N Y S E .  In 2003 it created an Ad Hoc Commitiee which considered our 
independence cntena, Corporate Govemance Charter and SupeMsory Board Charter. Based 
on the work of the Ad Hoc Committee, our Supervisory Board also considered, with respect 
to corporate governance standards, our unique history as a European company incorporated 
in the Netherlands following the combination of the Italian and French semiconductor 
businesses, as well as our shareholding stnicture, with over 72% of our shares held by the 
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public and approximately 27.5% indirectly held by French and Italian state-controlled 
companies. 

Based on al1 these factors, in 2005, the Supervisory Board established the following 
independence criteria for its members: Supervisory Board members must have no matenal 
relationship with SïMicroelectronics N.V., or any of OUT consolidated subsidiaries, or our 
management. A “matenal relationship” can include commercial, industnal, banking. 
consulting, legal, accounting, cbaritable and familial relationships, among others, hut does 
not include a relationship with direct or indirect shareholders. 

The Supervisory Board also adopted specific bars to independence. On that basis, the 
SupeMsory Board in March 2005 concluded, in its business judgment that al1 members 
qualified as independent based on the criteria set forth above. The same conclusion bas been 
confirmed in March 2007. 

The above mentioned independence criteria differ to a certain extent from best practice 
provision 111.2.2 of the Dutch Corporate Govemance Code. 

On November 27,2006, our Supervisory Board approved entering into an option agreement 
with an independent foundation, stichting Continuïteit ST (the “Stichting”), to terminate a 
substantially similar option agreement dated May 31, 1999, as amended, between our 
Company and ST Holding U. Our Managing Board and OUT Supervisory Board, along with 
the board of the Stichting, have declared that they are jointly of the opinion that the Stichting 
is independent of OUT Company. Our Supervisory Board approved the new option agreement 
to reflect changes in Dutch legal requirements, not in response to any hostile takeover 
attempt. On February 7, 2007, the 31 May 1999 option agreement, as amended, was 
terminated. On Januaty 22,2007 the new option agreement with the Stichting was concluded. 
The new option agreement provides for the issuance of up to a maximum 540,000,000 
preference shares, the same number as the agreement it is replacing. Any such shares would 
he issued to the Stichting upon its request and in its sole discretion and upon payment of at 
least 25% of the par value of the preference shares to be issued The shares would he issuable 
in the event of actions considered hostile by OUT Managing Board and our Supervisory Board, 
such as a creeping acquisition or an offer on our ordinary shares, which are unsupporîed by 
OUT Managing Board and our Supervisory Board and which the board of the stichting 
determines would he contrary to the interests of the Company, the Company’s sharebolders 
or other stakeholders. The preference shares may remain outstandmg for no longer than two 
years. No preference shares have been issued to date. The effect of the preference shares may 
he to create a level-olavine. field in the event actions which are considered to he hostile bv ,y:’, 

OUT Managing Boa2 and OUT Supervisory Board, as described above, occur and which &e 
board of the Stichting determines to be contrary to the interests of the Company, the 
Company’s shareholders or other stakeholders. 

Commitment to Corporate Governanee 

We have demonsûated a consistent commitment to the principles of good corporate 
governance evidenced by OUT early adoption of policies on important issues such as conîïicts 
of interest. Pursuant to OUT Supervisory Board Charter, the Supervisory Board is responsible 
for handling and deciding on potential reporîed conflicts of interest between tbe Company on 
the one hand and members of the Supervisory Board and Managing Board on tbe other hand. 

For example, in 2005 OUT Managing Board requested that our Supervisory Board decide upon 
the renewal of a contract for the provision of various telecom-related services with Equant, a 
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subsidiary of France Telecom. One of our Supervisory Board members is Chairman and CE0 
of France Telecom. The SupeMsory Board noted the Managing Board‘s assessment of the 
positive commercial benefits of such contract and noted that the contract was concluded at 
normal and competitive conditions and was based on a long-standing proven business 
relationship between Equant and US. Additionally in 2005, our Managing Board requested 
that our SupeMsory Board decide upon a development and license agreement to be 
concluded with Quadrics Limited, a company owned by Alenia Aeronautica that is in hm 
owned by Finmeccanica, one of our principal shareholders. The Supervisory Board noted that 
the contract was concluded in the ordinary course of business at normal conditions and that it 
was considered muíually beneficial for Quadrics Lunited and us. Additionally, one of our 
Supervisory Board members is a member of the Board of Directors of Thomson, which is one 
of our strategic customers. One of out Supervisory Board members is non executive 
Chairman of the Board of Directors of ARM Holdings PLC, with whom we have key 
technology license agreements, and SOITEC one of OUT customers, and one is a member of 
the SupeMsory Board of BE Semiconductor Industries N.V. (“BESI”), one of our supplien 
We believe that the transactions with Thomson, ARM, SOITEC and BESI are made on an 
arm’s length basis in Iine with market practices and conditions with neither Thomson, ARM, 
SOITEC, BESI nor US benefiting from terms any more favorable than those which could be 
obtained in a bonafide transaction with a third party (best practice provisions 111.6.4, II .32 ,  
II.3.3. and 11.3.4. have consequently been complied with). 

We prepared and published, in 2004, the Corporate Govemance Charter, which explains in 
detail the corporate organization, the remuneration principles that apply to the Managing and 
Supervisory Boards, the information policy and highlights the corporate policies relating to 
business ethics and conflicts of interest. The Corporate Govemance Charter, which was 
approved by the shareholders at the 2004 AGM, and has since been updated, as well as the 
current policies relating to business ethics and conflict of interest, are available on the 
Company’s website as well as in print to any shareholder who may request a copy. 

The Company has applied al1 best practices prnvisions and for completeness sake and in 
accordance with the Dutch Corporate Govemance Code, has explained al1 deviations from 
the Code in this report. The Company’s Corporate Govemance Charter and the 
aforementioned deviations from the Dutch Corporate Govemance Code were approved by the 
2004 AGM. 
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INTERNAL CONTROL 

As Sole Member of our Managing Board, Mr. Carlo Bozotti is responsible for the design, 
implementation and operation of the Company's intemal risk management and control 
systems. Our disclos+re controls and procedures are als0  established and maintained under 
the responsibility of the Company's Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offcer 
who reports to Mr. Bozotti. 

The objective of the +ompany's intemal controis and procedures is to ensure that matenal 
information relating to the Comphy and its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to the 
Chief Executive Offcer and the Chief Financial Offcer during each reporting period. 

The effectiveness of the Company's internal controls and procedures is evaluated 
periodically, and changes to such intemal controls and procedures, as wel1 as any significant 
deficiencies and matenal weaknesses in the design or operation of intemal control over 
f m c i a l  reporting which are reasonabiy likely to affect the Company's ability to record, 
process or summarize h d  report f m c i a l  information are disclosed to our auditors and to the 
Audit Committee of our SupeMsory Board. Likewise any fraud, whether or not matenal, 
that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the Company's 
intemal control over :fuiancial reporting are disclosed to our auditors, and to the Audit 
Committee of our Supervisory Board. 

In the various areas of,business risk management we have established corporate policies and 
procedures which set "forth principles, business rules of behavior and conduct whicb are 
considered to be consistent with proper business management, in h e  with our mission and 
strategic objectives. 

We have also adopted' Corporate Standard Operating Procedures to describe the operationai 
flow of actions (outleng responsibilities for each step) to perform a task or activity, or to 
implement a policy within a piven functional field. We have over one hundred sîandard 
operating procedures which cover a wide range of activities such as approvals, authorizations, 
verifications, reconciliations, review of operating performance, security of assets and 
segregation of duties, h i c h  are deployed throughout our organization, and which may he 
completed as and when required by local operating procedures. 

We also have an intemal audit organization, which performs general scope intemal audits 
covering various areas; such as information technology, logistics and inventory management, 
human resources and payroll, intemal control systems, security, purchasing, treasury, etc. 
The audit plans for oUr intemal audit organization are reviewed at least once a year by the 

Summary I 

in summary, our intemal risk management and control system cannot provide absolute 
assurance, but aims at a reasonable level of assurance, that realization of strategic and 

,?<r. 
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Audit Committee of Ou) Supervisory Board. 
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operational objectives ,is monitored, the fmancial reporting is reliable and where relevant 
applicable laws and regblations are complied with. 
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Our management has assessed the effectiveness of its intemal control over fmncial reporting 
as of December 31,2006 based on the framework established in Intemal Control - integrated 
Framework issued by the Commitîee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway 
Commission (VOSO). Based on this assessment, and in accordance with the requirements 
of best practice provision 11.1.4 of the Dutch Corporate Governance Code and the 
recommendation of the Corporate Govemance Monitoting Committee on the application 
thereof, our Managing Board, to the best of its knowledge, believes that with regard to 
financial reporting nsks, our intemal risk management and controls systems provide a 
reasonable level of assurance that they do not contain matenal inaccuracies, have operated 
effectively in the year 2006 and that there are no indications îhat they wil1 not operate 
properly in the current year. Because of its inherent limitations, intemal control over financial 
reporting may not prevent or detect al1 misstatements, fraud and non-compliance with laws 
and regulations. Therefore, even those systems determined to be effective can only provide 
reasonabie assurance with respect to the financial statement preparation and presentation. 
in addition to the aforementioned statement, our Managing Board has issued a statement 
regarding the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s intemal controls over fmncial 
reporting in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 20-F regardmg the 2006 f m c i a l  year, 
as fded with the Secuities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) on March 14, 2007, in 
accordance with and as required by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, Section 404. 

Our intemal risk management and control systems were discussed on several occasions with 
the Audit Commitîee and the Supervisory Board during 2006. 

Main Risk Factors 

The business performance and results of ST and the ability of management to predict the 
future are also affected by several nsks factors such as those described below: 

future developments of the world semiconductor markef in particuiar the fuhm 
demand for semiconductor products in the key application markets and from key 
customers served by our products; 

pncing pressures, losses or curtailments of purchases from key customers al1 of 
wbicb are bighiy variable and difficult to predict; 

the financial impact of obsolete or excess inventones if actual demand differs from 
our anticipations; 

changes in the exchange rates between the U.S. dollar and the euro and between the 
U.S. dollar and the currencies of the other major countries in which we have our 
operating infrasûucture; 

our ability to manage in an intensely competitive and cyclical industry where a high 
percentage of our costs are fuced and difficult to reduce in the short term, includmg 
our ability to adequately utilize and operate our manufacturing facilities at sufficient 
levels to cover fixed operating costs; 

OW ability to perform the announced strategic repositioning of our Flash memories 
business in line with the requirements of our customers and without adverse effect 
on existing alliances or other agreements relating to this business; 
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OUT ability in an intensely competitive environment to secure customer acceptance 
and to achieve OU pricing expectations for high volume supplies of new products in 
whose development we have or are currently investing; 

the anticipatek benefits of research and development alliances and cooperative 
activities, as wel1 as the uncertainties conceming the modalities, conditions and 
fmancial impact beyond 2007 of the R&D and manufachuing activities in Crolles 2 
following the termination of OUT current agreement with NXP Semiconductors, and 
Freescale Serniconductor, 

the ability of OUT suppliers to meet OUT demands for supplies and matenals and to 
offer competitive pricing; 

significant vanations in OUT gross margin compared to expectations based on 
changes in revenue levels, product mix and pncing, capacity utilization, variations in 
inventory valuation, excess or obsolete inventory, manufacturing yields, changes in 
unit costs, impairments of long-lived assets, including manufacturing, assemblyhest 
and intangiblelassets, and the timing and execution of the manufacturing ramp and 
associated cosl, including start-up costs; 

changes in theieconomic, social or political environment, including military conflict 
andor terrorist activities, as wel1 as ~ n i r a l  events sucb as severe weather, health 
risk, epidemics or earthquakes in the countries in whicb we, OUT key customers and 
OUT suppliers operate; 

changes in OUT overall tax position as a result of changes in tax laws or the outcome 
of tax audits, &d OUT ability to accurately estimate tax credits, benefits, deductions 
and provisions',,and to realize deferred tax assets; 

OUT ability to' obtain required licenses on thiid-party intellectual property on 
reasonabie terips and conditions, the impact of potential claims by thiid parties 
involving intellectual proper@ rights relating to OUT business, and the outcome of 
litigation; and ;' 

the results of actions by OU competitors, including new product offering and OUT 
ability to react thereto. 

I, 

l 

Our h u a l  Report on Form 20-F as filed with the SEC on March 14, 2007, wbich is c.;' 
available on OUT website, contains a more detailed list of risk factors which may affect OUT 
business and operations? and future performance. 

<,.:i 

4 
,c:> >+ 
$17 

- 3 3 -  



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

We are a multinational group of companies that designs, develops, manufactures and markets 
a broad range of products used in a wide variety of microelectronic applications, includmg 
telecomunications systems, computer systems, consumer goods, automotive products and 
industrial automation and control systems. We are organized in a matrix smcture with 
geopphical regions interacting with product divisions, both being supported hy central 
functions, bnnging al1 levels of management closer to the customer and facilitating 
comunication among research and development, production, marketing and d e s  
organizations. 

While STMicroelectronics N.V. is the parent company, we also conduct our operations 
through our subsidiaries. With the exception of our subsidiaries in Shenzhen, China, in which 
we own 60% of the shares and voting nghts; Hynix, ST (China), a joint venture company, in 
which we own a 33% equity participation; Shanghai Blue Media Co. Ltd (China), in which 
we own 65%; and Incard do Brazil, in which we own 50% of the shares and voting nghts, 
STMicroelectronics N.V. owns directly or indirectly 100% of all of our significant operating 
subsidiaries’ shares and voting nghts, which have their own organization and management 
bodies, and are operated independently in compliance with the laws of their country of 
incorporation. We provide certain adminisîrative, human resources, legal, treasury, strategy, 
manufacttuing, marketing and other overhead services to our consolidated subsidiaries 
pursuant to service agreements for which we receive compensation. 

We are a global independent semiconductor company that designs, develops, manufactures 
and markets a broad range of semiconductor products used in a wide variety of 
microelectronic applications, including automotive products, computer peripherals, 
telecomunications systems, consumer products, industrial automation and control systems. 
According to provisional industry data published by isuppli, we have been ranked the 
world’s f i f i  largest semiconductor company based on forecasted 2006 total market sales and 
we held leading positions in sales of Analog Products, Application Specific integrated 
Circuits (or “ASICs”) and Application Specific Standard Products (or “ASSPs”). Based on 
provisional 2006 results published by isuppli, we believe we were number one in industrial 
products, number hvo in analog products and number h e  in wireless, automotive 
electronics and NOR Flash. Based on indusûy results, we also believe we ranked as a leadmg 
supplier of semiconductors in 2006 for set-top boxes, Smart cards and power management 
devices. Furthemore, based on our relationship with Hewlett-Packard, which has a leading 
position in the printhead market, we believe that we are a leadmg supplier of integrated 
circuits for pnntheads. 

ïñe semiconductor industry has histoncally been a cyclical one and we have responded 
through emphasizing balance in our product portfolio, in the applications we serve, and in the 
regional markets we address. Consequently, from 1994 through 2006, our revenues grew at a 
compounded annual growth rate of 11.6% compared to 7.7% for the industry as a whole. 

We offer a broad and diversified product portfolio and develop products for a wide range of 
market applications to reduce our dependence on any single product, application or end 
market. Within our diversified portfolio, we have focused on developing products that 
leverage our technological strengths in creating customized, system-level solutions with high- 
growth digital and mixed-signa1 content. Our product families include differentiated 
application-specific products (which we define as beimg our dedicated analog, mixed signa1 
and digital ASIC and ASSP offerings and semicustom devices), power microcontrollers and 
discrete products and nonvolatile memory and Smart cards. Application Specific Products, 
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which are generally less vulnerable to market cycles than standard commodity products, 
accounted for approx;mately 55% of OUT net revenues in 2006. Memory Product sales 
accounted for approxiptely 22% of OUT net revenues in 2006, while sales of Micro, Power 
and Analog products accounted for approximately 23% of our net revenues in 2006. 

Our products are manufactured and designed using a broad range of manufachring processes 
and proprieîary design methods. We use al1 of the prevalent îunction-oriented process 
technologies, including complementary metal oxide semiconductor (“CMOS’), bipolar and 
nonvolatile memory technologies. in addition, by combining basic processes, we have 
developed advanced systems-oriented technologies that enabie us to produce differentiated 
and application-specific products, inciuding bipolar CMOS technologies (“BiCMOS’) for 
mixed signa1 applications, and diffused metal oxide semiconductor (“DMOS”) technology 
and Bipolar, CMOS y d  DMOS (“BCD technologies”) for intelligent power applications and 
embedded memory technologies.’ This broad technology portfolio, a cornerstone of our 
strategy for many y“, enabies US to meet the increasing demand for System-on-Chip 
(“SoC”) solutions. Complementing this depth and diversity of process and design technology 
is OUT broad intellect@ proper@ portfolio that we also use to enter into important patent 
cross-licensing agreements with other major semiconductor companies. 

Effective January 1, 2005, we realigned OUT product groups to increase market focus and 
realize the full potential of OUT products, technologies and sales and marketing channels. 
Since this date and untii the end of 2006, we report OUT sales and operating income in three 
product group segments: 

the Application Specific Product Group (“ASG”) segment, comprised of three 
product: lies - OUT Home, Personal and Communication Products (“HPC”), 
OUT Computer Peripherals Products (“CPG) and our Automotive Products 
(“APG“). Our HPC Sector is comprised of die telecommunications, audio and 
digitai consumer groups. Our CPG products cover computer peripherals 
products, specifically disk drives and printers, and our APG products 
comprised of al1 of OUT major complex products related to automotive 
applications; 

the Memory Products Group (“ìvPG) segment, comprised of our memories 
and S m h  card businesses; and 

the Micro, Power, Analog Product Group (“MPA”) segment, comprised of 
discrete ~ and standard products plus standard microcontroller and indusûial 
devices ‘(including the programmable systems memories (“PSM) division); 

h 

c3 this s e b e n t  was previously known as Micro, Linear and Discrete Product 
Group, tiut no change has occurred in the segment’s perimeter or organization. 

I1 ii;’ 
Effective January 1, 2007, to meet the evolving requirements of the market together with the 
pursuit of a sûategic repositioning in Flash memory, we have reorganized our product 
segment groups intoi the Application Specific Product Groups, the industrial and bGQ 

Lb’. 
I 
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Multisegment Sector e d  the Flash Memories Group. 

area are for expendihires on research and development and capital investments in ûont-end 
and back-end manufac+g facilities. Al1 OUT product segments share common research and 
development for process technology and manufachring capacity for most of their products. 
However, beginning Jpuary I, 2007, the stand-alone Flash Memones Group (FMG), 
incorporates al1 the Flash memoty operations @oth NOR and NAM)), including Technology 

Our principal investment and resource allocation decisions in the semiconductor business +...I. 



R&D, al1 product related activities, front-end and back-end manufacturing, marketing and 
sales worldwide. Keeping the same overall perimeter, our Application Specific Groups (ASG) 
wil1 now be compnsed of the newly created Mobile, Multimedia & Communications Group 
(MMC) and the Home Entertainment & Displays Group (HED) as wel1 as the existhg 
Automotive Product Group (APG) and Computer Penpherals Group (CPG). While former 
MPA segment plus non-Flash memory products (formerly under MPG) and Micro-Electro- 
Mechanica1 Systems @EMS) activity, have been combined to form a new sector, called 
Industrial and Multisegment Sector (IMS). 
In the past WO years, we have pursued various initiatives to reshape our company by 
(i) reorganizing our management team and setting up an executive committee, (ii) increasing 
our research and development effectiveness through a program focusing on 20 key initiatives, 
improved project control and redeployment of certain resources with the aim to improve 
time-to-market for both technologies and products, (iii) promoting sales expansion for mass 
market applications and new major key accounts with a special focus on the Chinese and 
Japanese markets with a view to increased overall eficiencies, (iv) improving our 
manufachuing competitiveness through the restructuring of our 150-mm wafer production 
capacity, (v) launching and implementing various cost-reduction initiatives through 
procurement savings, improved asset management, general and administration centralization 
and headcount restructurhg, and (vi) establisbing a less capital intensive business model. 

ûur reported R&D expenses are mainly in the areas of product design, technology and 
development and do not include marketing design center costs, which are accounted for as 
selling expenses, or process engineering, pre-production and process-transfer costs, which are 
accounted for as cost of sales. 

Major Shareholders 

The following table sets forth certain information with respect to the ownership of our issued 
common shares based on information available to us as of December 31,2006 

Sharehalden N”m!Xr % 

Public ....................................................................................... 553,818,764 60.8 
Enuides Inveshnmt Partners ..................... ............ 92,871,524 10.2 
Treasury shares ....................................................... 12,762,891 1.4 

Commoa Shares Owncd 

STMiemeleetmnics Holding 11 E.V. (“ST Holding 11‘3 .................................................. 250,704,754 27.5 

ûur principal shareholders do not have different voting rights from those of our other 
shareholden. 
ST Holding II is a wholly-owned subsidiaty of STMicroelectronics Holding N.V. (“ST 
Holding”). As of December 31,2006, FTlCI (the “French Shareholder”) and a consortium of 
Italian shareholders (the “Italian Shareholders”) made up of CDP and Finmeccanica directly 
held 50% each in ST Holding based on voting rights. CDP held 30% in ST Holding and 
Finmeccanica held 20% in ST Holding based on voting nghts. The indirect interest of FTlCI 
and the Itaiian Sbareholders is split on a 50%-50% basis. Through a structured trackhg stock 
system implemented in the articles of association of ST Holding and ST Holding 11, FTICI 
indirectly held 99,318,236 of our common shares, representing 10.9% of our issued share 
capital as of December 31, 2006, CDP indirectly held 91,644,941 of our common shares, 
representing 10.1% of our issued share capital as of December 31, 2006 and Finmeccanica 
indirectly held 59,741,577 of our common shares, representing 6.6% of our issued share 
capital as of December 31, 2006. Any disposals or, as the case may be, acquisitions by ST 
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Holding I1 on behalf of respectively FTICI, CDP and Finmeccanica, wil1 decrease or, as the 
case may be, increase he  indirect interest of respectively FTICI, CDP and Finmeccanica in 
OW issued share capitd. FTICI was formerly a jointly held company set up by Areva and 
France Telecom to control the interest of the French shareholders in ST Holding. Following 
the transactions described below, Areva is currently the sole shareholder of FTICI. Areva 
(formerly known as C&+Industrie) is a corporation controlled by the French atomic energy 
commission. Areva is listed on Euronext Paris in the form of Investment Certificates. CDP is 
an Italian corporation 70% owned by the Itaiian Ministem dell’Economio e d e k  Finanze (the 
“Ministry of Economy land Fmance”) and 30% owned by a consortium of 66 Italian banicing 
foundations. Finmeccica is a Iisted Italian holding company majority owned by the Italian 
Ministry of Economyl’and Finance and the public. F inmecdca  is listed on the Italian 
Mercato Telematico d o n a r i o  (“WA”) and is included in the SBrPIMIB 30 stock index. 

ST Holding I1 owned 90% of OUT shares before OUT initia1 public offering in 1994, and has 
since then gaduaily r F c e d  its participation, going below the 66% threshold in 1997 and 
below the 50% threshold in 1999. ST Holding I1 may further dispose its shares as pmvided 
below in “- Shareholders’ Agreements - STH Shareholders’ Agreement” and “- 
Disposals of OW C o b o n  Shares” and pursuant to the eventual conversion of OW 
outstanding convertible insûuments. Set forth below is a table of ST Holding II’s holdings in 
US as of the end of each’ of the past three f m c i a l  years: 

1 1 . : .  . 

I, 

Common Shares Omed 
Numbcr Y. 

Deeember31.2006 ......................... 250,704,754 27.5 
Deecmber 3 I. 2005 ...................................................................................................... 250,704,754 27.6 
December 3 I ,  20 04 ........................................................... ........................ 278,483280 30.8 

Announcements about additional disposals of our shares by ST Holding iI on behalf of one or 
more of its indirect shareholders, Areva, CDP, FïlCI or Finmeccanica may come at any time. 
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Strategy 

The semiconductor industry is undergoing several significant structurai changes characterized 

the chiging long-tem sûuctural growth of the overall market for 
semiconFctor products, which has moved fmm double-digit growih to single- 
digit average growth over the last several yean; 

r by: I 
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the strong development of new emerging applications in areas such as wireless 
commdications, solid-state storage, digital TV and video products and 
games; ,, 

the incr&ísing imporîance of the Asia Pacific region and emerging countries, 
particularly China, which represents the fastest growing regional market; 

the importance of convergence between wireless, consumer and computer 
applications, which drives customer demand to seek new system-level, 
turnkey solutions from semiconductor suppliers; . the evolution of the customer base ûom o r i g i ~ l  equipment manufachuers 
(“OEM) to a mix of OEM, electronic manufacturing service providers 
(“EMS”) and onginal design manufachirers (“ODM); 

I 

0 the expansion of available manufacturing capacity through third-party 
providers; and 

the increased participation in the semiconductor industry of private equity 
fms, exemplified by the îakeoven in 2006 of two of the top ten 
semiconductor companies, wbich may lead to strategic repositionings of those 
companies and reorganization amongst industry players. 

Our strategy withui th ìs  challenging environment is designed to focus on the following 
complementary key elements: 
Broud, bulunced morket erposure. We offer a diversified product portfolio and develop 
products for a wide range of market applications using a variety of technologies, thereby 
reducing OUT dependence on any single product, application or end market. Within OUT 
diversified portfolio, we have focused on developing products that leverage OUT technological 
strengths in creating chtomized, system-level solutions for high-growth digital and mixed- 
signal applications. Webtarget five key markets comprised of: (i) communications, including 
wireless connectivity, l~mobile phone imaging, portable multimedia and infrastructure; 
(ii) computer peripbeials, including data storage, printers, monitors, displays and optical mice; 
(iii) digital consumer, $Auding set-top boxes, DVDs, digital TVs, digital cameras and digital 
audio; (iv) automotive, (including engine, body and safety, car radio, car multimedia and 
telematics; and (v) industrial and Multisegment products, including power supplies, and 
motor-control, lighting, betering, banking and Smart card. 

Product sfrutegv und innovution. We aim to be leaders in multimedia convergence and power 
applications. In order to serve these segments, OUT plan is to mainiain and fiuîher establish 
existing leadership positions for (i) platforms and chipset solutions for digital consumer, 
cellular pbone and car i,navigation; and (ii) power applications, which are driving system 
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solutions for a wide consumer base in the field of industrial applications, motor control, 
factory automation, lighting, power supply and automotive, in particular, and which require 

and complex application-specific devices. 

We also dedicate significant resources to product innovation. We have identified our key 
product offerings in each of the targeted market segments and have concentrated our R&D 
resources to develop leading-edge products for each. Examples include: digital-base band and 
multi-media solutions for wireless, digital consumer products focused on set-top boxes, SoC 
offerings in data storage and system-onented products for the multisegment sector. We are 
also targeting new end markets, such as medical applications. 

Finally, we have decided to strategically reposition OIU participation in the Flash memory 
business in order to limit our exposure to the capital intensiiy of the industry as well as to 
achieve the appropnate economies of scale which are demanded in this competitive segment. 

Customer-based initiatives. There are ihree tenets to our sales strategy. First, we work with 
our key customers to identiw evolving needs and new applications and to develop innovative 
products and product features. We have forma1 alliances with certain strategic customers that 
allow US and our customers (with whom we jointly share certain product developments) to 
exchange information and which give OUT customers access to our process technologies and 
manufacturing infrasûucture. We have formed alliances with customers including Alcatel, 
Bosch, Hewletî-Packard, Marelli, Nokia, Nortel, Pioneer, Seagate, Siemens W O ,  Thomson 
and Westem Digital. Our strategic alliances have been historically a major growth driver for 
US. In 2004, 2005 and 2006, revenues from strategic customer alliances accounted for 
approximately 39%. 44% and 41% respectively of OU net revenues. Secondly, we are 
targeting new major key accounts, where we can leverage our position as a supplier of 
application-specific products with a broad range product portfolio to betîer address the 
requirements of large users of semiconductor products with whom our penetration has 
historically been quite low. Finally, we have targeted the mass market, or those customers 
outside of OW traditional top 50 custorners, who require system-level solutions for multiple 
market segments. In addition, we have focused on two regions as key ingredients in future 
sales growth, Greater China and Japan, where we have reorganized regional management. 
Global integrated manufacturing infasshucture. We have a diversified, leading-edge 
manufacturing infrastructure, compnsing front-end and back-end facilities, capable of 
producing silicon wafers using our broad process technology portfolio, including our CMOS 
and BiCMOS technologies as well as our memories and discretes technologies. Assembling, 
testing and packaging of our semiconductor products take place in our large and modem 
back-end facilities, which generally are located in low-cost areas. We have also developed 
relationships with outside contractors for foundry and backend services. in 2006, while 
confinning OUT mission to remain an integrated device manufacturing company, we decided 
to reduce OUT capital intensiiy in order to optimize opporhuities behveen intemal and 
extemal front-end production, reduce our dependence on market cycles that impact the 
loadmg of our fabs, and decrease the burden of depreciation on our financial performance. 
Research and development partnersbips. The serniconductor industry is increasingly 
characterized by higher costs and technological nsks involved in the research and 
development of state-of-the-art processes. These higher costs and technological nsks have 
driven US to enter into cooperative pamierships. From 2000 until now, we have been jointly 
developing advanced CMOS technologies in Crolles (France) with Freescale Semiconductor 
and NXF' Semiconductors. At the end of 2006, one of OW partners notified US of tbeir 
intention to continue their participation in the Crolles2 alliance only through the end of 2007. 

less research and development effort and manufacturing capital intensity than more advanced O 
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We remain convinced that the shared R&D business model contributes to the fast 
acceleration of semiconductor process technology development, and we therefore remain 
commiîted to our strategy of alliances to reinforce cooperation in the area of technology 
development. 
Integrated presence in key regional markets. We have sought to develop a competitive 
advantage by building ‘F integrated presence in each of the world’s economic zones that we 
target: Europe, Asia, China and America. An integrated presence m e m  having 
manufacturing and design, as well as sales and marketing capabilities in each region, in order 
to ensure that we are well positioned to anticipate and respond to our customers’ business 
requirements. We als0 have design and marketing capabilities in OUT Japan and Emerging 
Markets regions. We I v e  ûont-end manufaciuing facilities in Europe, in the United States 
and in Asia. Our moy labor-intensive back-end facilities are located in Malaysia, Malta, 
Morocco, Singapore and China, enabling US to take advantage of more favorahle production 
cost siructures, particdarly lower labor costs. Major design centers and local sales and 
marketing groups are kithin close proximiiy of key customers in each region, which we 
believe enhances OUT ability to mauitain strong relatiomhips with OUT customers. 
Product qualiv excellence. We aim to develop the quality excellence of OU products and in 
the various applications we serve and we have launched a company-wide Product Quality 
Awareness program built around a three-pronged approach (i) the improvement of OUT full 
product cycle involving robust design and manufachuing, improved detection of potential 
defects, and better anticipation of faiiures through improved risk assessment, particularly in 
the areas of product and process changes; (ii) improved responsiveness to customer demands; 
and (iii) ever increasing focus on quality and discipline in execution. 

Return on capital employed We remain focused on providing our shareholders with value 
creation, measured in particular in tems of return on net assets compared to the weighted 
average cost of capitai. 

2006 Business Overview 

in 2006, the semicondüctor market experienced a higher increase in total sales compared to 
2005 supporîed by a solid economic environment in the major world economies. 

The total available market is defined as the ‘TAM”, while the serviceable available market, 
the “SAM”, is defmed & the market for products produced by us (which consists of the TAM 
and excludes PC motherboard major devices such as microprocessors (“MF’U), dynamic 
random access memories (“DRAMs”), and optoelectronics devices). C? 

r 9:’) 
1 

cc> 
Based upon recently published data by the World Semiconductor Trade Statistics (‘WSTS”), 
semiconductor industry ,pvenues increased year-over-year by approximately 9% for the TAM 
and 8% for the SAM in 2006, to reach approximately $248 billion and approximately $165 

increased approximatelf 9% and 4% year-over-year, respectively, while the TAM increased 

U7 
I billion, respectively. 9 increase was driven by unit demand while average selling prices 

remained declined compared to 2005. in the fourîh quarter of 2006, the TAM and the SAM b.,,’’ 

,:i:, 
,z:, 
%,l. by approximately 2% aid 1 the S A M  decreased approximately 1% sequentially. 

Our 2006 revenues we(e characterized by significant high volume demand and improved 
product mix, which did not translate into an equivalent revenue performance due to persisting 
negative impact of price~pressure in the market we serve. As a result, OUT revenues increased 
hy approximately 11% to $9,854 million compmd to $8,882 million in 2005. Strong growth 
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in revenues was driven by double-digit increases in Wireless and Industrial applications with 
mid-single digit contributions from the Automotive, Consumer and Computer segments. ûur 
2006 sales performance was above the TAM and the SAM growth rates. With reference to 
the quarìerly results, our fourth quarter 2006 revenues performance was below the TAM and 
flat with the S A M ,  both on a year-over-year basis and on a sequentia1 basis. 

in 2006, our effective average U.S. dollar exchange rate was €1.00 for $1.24, which reflects 
the acîual exchange rate levels and the impact of certain hedging contracts, compared to our 
2005 effective average exchange rate of€l.00 for $1.28. 

On a total year basis, our gross margin increased in 2006 due io overall improvements in 
volume, manufacturing performances and product mix, which were partially offset by the 
declining selling prices. 

ûur operating expemes cornbining selling, general and admiistrative expemes and research 
and development were slightly lower in 2006 compared to 2005 mainly due to higher 
development cost capiîalized in 2006. 
in summary, our fmncial resuits for 2006 compared to the results of 2005 were favorably 
impacted by the following factors: 

higher sales volume and a more favorable product mix in our revenues, which 
contributed to a solid increase in our net revenues; 

continuous strong improvement of OW manufachuing performance; 

a more favorable effective exchange rate for the U.S. dollar; . net interest income; 

lower impairment, restructuring charges and other related closure costs; . and higher Other income and expense, net 

Our fmancial results in 2006 were negatively affected by the following factors: 

negative pricing trends due to a persisting overcapacity in the indusûy, which 
translated int0 our average selling pnces d e c l i g  by approximately 8%, as a 
pure pricing effect; 

and share-based compensation charges related to 2005 and 2006 grants; 

in 2006, we continued to invest in upgrading and expandmg our manufacîuring capacity. 
Total capital expenditures in 2006 were $1,533 million, which were fmanced entirely by net 
cash generated from operating activities. 

Looking at the fourth quarter and the near term environment, the current market correction 
underway in some of the key applications that we serve is more pronounced than forecasted. 
ûur wireless results, in particuiar, came in weli below historica1 seasonal patterns and were 
also negatively impacted by product mix shift towards the low end, which put additionai 
pressure on OUT margins and operating performance in the quarter. However, for the full year, 
we achieved double digit year-over-year sales growth in a market that appears to be growing 
in the high single digits. "bis is a clear signal that the evolution of our product portfolio is 
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delivering results with higher revenues, improved profitability, better leverage of OUT research 
and development and capital investments, and expansion of OW market share. 

During 2006, we made significant 'headway in delivering on our most important business and 
stmtegic imperatives. ûur produkt portfolio continues to strengthen. We are driving a 
significant reduction 4 our capital intensity. This is visible in our 2006 results, with OUT 
capital investments tollsales ratio down to 15.6% from over 20% on average for 2004 and 
2005. Further, we have initiaîed a new mid-term target of 12% through a combination of a 
less capital-intensive product portfolio, increased usage of foundries for non-proprietary 
technologies and optimization of our manufacturing facilities. As of January I ,  2007, we have 
organized our NOR aÙd NAND FLASH business int0 a stand-alone segment and are moving 
ahead on creating a separate legal entity in connection with our strategic repositioning of this 
business. In summaryli we achieved our primary objectives for 2006: gaining market share 
while simultaneously hproving fmancial performance in tem of return on assets and cash 
flow. 

Business Outlook 

Notwithstandhg the current tougher environment as the market works through inventory in 
selected applications in the fmt half of 2007, we believe we are poised to make further 
important progress on OUT ongoing key initiatives for sales expansion, new product 
introduction and asset leverage, which wil1 strengthen our market opporiunities and financial 
position. 
Our capital expendibes are currently budgeîed to be $1.2 biliion for 2007, which is expected 
to further reduce OUT capital expenditure to sales ratio from the previous year's level. 
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DUTCH DECREE ON ARTICLE 10 OF THE TAKEOVER DIRECTIVE 

Amouncements on the basis of Article I of the Dutch Decree on Article 10 of the Takeover 
Directive: 

a. The authorized share capital of STMicroelectronics N.V. (the “Company”) amounts to 
EUR 1,809,600,000, divided int0 1,200,000,000 ordinary shares and 540,000,000 
preference shares, with a nomina1 value of EUR 1.04 per share. As of 31 December 
2006, 910,157,933 ordinary shares were issued of which 12,762,891 were 
repurchased As of December 31, 2006, no preference shares were issued and 
outstandmg. 

b. The Company does not have restrictions on the transfer of its ordinary and preference 
shares. 

Holdings in the Company that are subject to a disclosure obligation pursuant to 
Chapter 5.3 of the Dutch Financial Markets Supervision Act (“Wet op hetfinancieel 
toezicht”) are: 

(i) 

c. 

STMicroelectronics Holding N.V 250,704,754 ordinary shares or 27.55% 
(through its wholly-owned subsidiary STMicroelectronics Holding ï i  B.V.) 
(diluted to 17.29% if the option for preference shares held by Stichting 
Continuïteit ST is fully exercised); 

Brandes Investment Partners 92,871,524 ordinary shares or 10.20% (diluted to 
6.40% if the option for preference shares held by Stichting Continuïteit ST is 
fully exercised); and 

(ii) 

(iii) Stichting Continuïteit ST option for 540,000,000 preference shares, 
representing up to 37.24% if fully exercised. 

d. The Company does not have special controlling rights attached to its ordinary or 
preference shares. 

The Company does not have any scheme granting rights to employees to subscribe for 
or a c q u h  shares in the Company’s share capital or tbe share capital of a subsidiary 
where the control is not duectly exercised by the employees. 

The Company does not have any restrictions on voting rights nor has it cooperated in 
the issuance of deposiîary receipts for shares. The Company’s articles of association 
currently provide that in order to be able to attend a shareholders’ meeting, address 
the meeting and, if applicable, exercise their voting rights at such meeting, 
shareholders and other persons entitled to attend shareholders’ meetings must notify 
the Company in writing of their intention to do so no later than on the day and at the 
place mentioned in the notice convening the shareholders’ meeting, which îypically is 
three days prior to the meeting. Shareholders and other persons entitled to attend 
shareholders’ meetings may only exercise said rights at the meeting for the shares 
from which they can derive said rights both on the day of referred to above and on the 
day of the meeting. The current articles of association do not provide that the 
Managing Board or the Supervisory Board may detennine a registration date and the 
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shareholders’ meeting has not authorized the Managing Board or the Supervisory 
Board to do so. On the Company’s website, www.st.com, under the caption “hvestor 
Information - Annual General Meeting - How to vote at Annual General Meeting” 
further information is provided for (beneficial) shareholders holding shares through 
Euroclear France or Cede & Co as nominee of the Depositary Trust Company. 

The Company does not have any agreements with shareholders that may give nse to 
resûictions on the transfer of shares or restrictions of voting nghts. The Company has 
been informed that the shareholders’ agreement among STMicroelectronics Holding 
N.V.’S shareholders (the “STH Shareholders’ Agreement”), to which the Company is 
not a party, govem relations between the Company’s current indirect shareholders 
Areva Group (“Areva”), Cassa Depositi e Prestiti S.P.A. (“CDP”) and Finmeccanica 
S.P.A. (“Finmeccanica”), each of which is ultimately controlled by the French or 
Italian govemment. The STH Shareholders’ Agreement includes provisions requinng 
the unanimous approval by shareholders of STMicroelectronics Holding N.V. before 
STMicroelectronics Holding N.V. can make any decision with respect to certain 
actions to be talien by the Company. The STH Shareholders’ Agreement, permits the 
respective French and Italian indirect shareholders to cause STMicroelectronics 
Holding I1 B.V. to dispose of its stake in the Company at its sole discretion at any 
time from their current level, and to reduce the current level of their respective 
indirect interests in the Company’s ordinary shares to 9.5%. 

Furthermore, as permitted by the Company’s articles of association, the Supervisory 
Board has specified selected actions by the Managing Board that require the approval 
of the Supervisory Board. These requuements for the prior approval of various 
actions to be taken by the Company and the Company’s subsidiaries may give rise to 
a codict  of interest between the Company’s interests and investom’ interests, on the 
one hand, and the interests of the individual shareholders approving such actions, on 
the other, and may affect the ability of the Managing Board to respond as may be 
necessary in the rapidly changing environment of the semiconductor industry. 
Furthermore, the Company’s ability to issue new shares or other securities may be 
limited by the existing shareholders’ desire to maintain heir proportionate 
shareholding at a certain minimum level. Such approval process is, however, subject 
to the provisions of Dutch law requiring members of the Supervisory Board to act 
independentiy. 

Also, CDP and Finmeccanica are a party to a shareholders’ agreement which regards 

that shareholders’ agreement. 

g. 

\:i? their joint interest in STMicroelectronics Holding N.V. The Company is not a party to 
L .  

h. (i) ManagingBoard 

The Managing Board consists of such number of members as resolved by the 
shareholders’ meeting upon the proposal of the Supervisory Board. The members of 
the Managing Board are appointed for three-year terms, as defined in the Company’s 
articles of association, upon a non-binding proposal by the Supervisoty Board, by a 
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?,:I simple majoniy of the votes cast at a meeting where at least 15% of the issued and 

outstanding share capital is present or represented. If the Managing Board were to 
consist of more than one member, the Supervisory Board would appoint one of the 
members of the Managing Board to be chairman of the Managing Board for a three- 
year term, as defined in the Company’s articles of association (upon approval of at 
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least three-quarters of the members of the Supervisory Board in office). The 
shareholders’ meeting may suspend or dismiss one or more members of the Managing 
Board at a meeting at which at least one-half of the outstandmg share capital is 
present or represented If the quorum is not present, a further meeting shall be 
convened, to be held within four week after the ûrst meeting, which shall be entitled, 
irrespective of the share capital represented, to pass a resolution with regard to the 
suspension or dismissal. Such a quorum is not required if a suspension or dismissal is 
proposed by the Supervisory Board. In that case, a resolution to dismiss or to suspend 
a member of the Managing Board can be taken by a simple majority of the votes cast 
at a meeting where at least 15% of the issued and outstanding share capital is present 
or represented The Supervisory Board may suspend members of the Managing 
Board, but a shareholders’ meeting must be convened withiin three months after such 
suspension to confirm or reject the suspension. 

(ii) Supervisory Board. 

The Supervisory Board consists of at least six members, the number to be determined 
by the shareholders’ meeting upon the proposal of the Supervisory Board. Members 
of the Supervisory Board are appointed by the shareholders’ meeting for a three-year 
tem, as defined in the Company’s articles of association, upon the proposal of the 
Supervisory Board, by a simple majority of the votes cast at a meeting where at least 
15% of the issued and outstanding share capital is present or represented. Members of 
the Supervisory Board may be suspended or dismissed by the shareholders’ meeting 
by a simple majority of the votes cast at a meeting where at least 15% of the issued 
and outstandmg share capital is present or represented. The Supervisory Board may 
make a proposal to the shareholders’ meeting for the suspension or dismissal of one or 
more of its members. 

(iii) 

The company’s articles of association can be amended by the shareholders’ meeting, 
upon the proposal of the Supervisory Board, by a simple majonty of the votes cast at 
a meeting where at least 15% of the issued and outstanding share capitai is present or 
represented. If the relevant amendment affects the rights of holders of ordinary shares 
or holders of preference shares, the approval of the meeting of holders of ordinary 
shares and the meeting of holders of preference shares, respectively, is required 

For a complete overview of the powers of the Managing Board pursuant to the 
Company’s articles of association, reference is made to the Company’s articles of 
association, which are posted on the company’s website, w . S t . c o m .  Hereinafter a 
description is provided for certain powers of the Managing Board as wel1 as certain 
restrictions thereto. 

Under Dutch law, the Managing Board is entrusted with the Company’s general 
management and the representation of the Company. The Managing Board must seek 
pnor approval from the shareholders’ meeting for decisions regarding a significant 
change in the identity or nature of the Company. Under the Company’s articles of 
association, the Managing Board must obtain prior approval tÌom the Supervisory 
Board for (i) al1 proposals to be submiîied to a vote at a shareholders’ meeting; (ii) the 
fonnation of al1 companies, acquisition or sale of any participation, and conclusion of 
any cooperation and participation agreement; (iii) al1 of the Company’s multi-year 

Amendment of the Company’s articles of association. 
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plans and the. budget for the coming year, covering investment policy, policy 
regarding resekch and development, as wel1 as commercial policy and objectives, 
general ñnancial policy, and policy regarding personnel; and (iv) al1 acts, decisions or 
operations covered by the foregoing and constituting a significant change with respect 
to decisions aiready taken by the Supervisory Board. in addition, under the 
Company’s articles of association, the Supervisory Board and the shareholders’ 
meeting each may specify by resolution certain additional actions by the Managing 
Board that r e q w  its prior approval. 

In accordance with the Company’s corporate govemance charter, which is posted on 
the Company’s website, www.st.com under the caption “Investor Infomation - 
Corporate Govemance at ST’, the sole member of the Managing Board and the 
Executive Officers may not serve on the board of a public company without the prior 
approval of the Supervisory Board. 

Pursuant to the charter adopted by the SupeMsory Board, which is posted on the 
Company’s website, www.st.com under the caption “Investor information - 
Corporate Govemance at ST”, the following decisions by the Managing Board with 
regards to the Company and any of the Company’s direct or indirect subsidiaries 
require prior approval kom the Supervisory Board (i) any modification of the 
Company’s articles of association other than those of the Company’s wholly-owned 
subsidiuies; (ii) any chGge in the Company’s authorized share capital, issue, 
acquisition or cjisposal of the Company’s own shares, change in any shareholder 
rights or issue Of any instruments granting an interest in the Company’s capitai or 
profits other & those of the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiaries; (iii) any 
liquidation or diiposal of al1 or a substantiai and material part of the Company’s assets 
or any shares t$e Company holds in any of its subsidiaries; (iv) entering into any 
merger, acquisition or joint,venture agreement (and, if snbstantiai and material, any 
agreement relating to intellectual property) or formation of a new company; (v) 
approval of such company’s drafì consolidated balance sheets and ñnancial 
statements or &y profit distribution by such company; (vi) entering into any 
agreement that hay qualify as a related-party transaction, including any agreement 
with STMicroelectronics Holding N.V., its wholly-owned subsidiary 
STMicroelectrokcs Holding I1 B.V., or its shareholders Areva through its wholly- 
owned subsidi4 FTICI, Cassa Depositi e F’restiti S.P.A. and Finmeccanica S.P.A.; 
(vii) the key chailenges of the Company’s five-year plans and its consolidated annual 
budgets, as wel1 @ any significant modifications to said plans and budgets, or any one 
of the matters set forth in article 16 paragraph I of the Company’s articles of 
association and not included in the approved plans or budgets; (viii) approval of 
operations of e x b p t i o d  hportance which have to be submitted for Supervisory 
Board prior appiuval although their financing was provided for in the approved 
annual budget land ( i )  approval of the quarterly, semi-annual and annual 
consolidated fuiancial statements prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP and 
beginning with &e 2005 annual accounts FRS, prior to submission for shareholder 

During a meeting held on September 23, 2000, the Supervisory Board authorized the 
Managing Board to proceed with acquisitions without prior consent of the 
Supervisory Bo&d subject to a maximum amount of $25 million per transaction, 

1 
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provided the Managing Board keeps the Supervisory Board informed of progress 
regarding such transactions and gives a full report once the transaction is completed 

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association, the Managing Board cannot be 
designated by the shareholders’ meeting as the corporate body authorized to issue 
shares, grant rights to subscribe for shares and to exclude existing shareholders’ 
preemptive rights, but the Supervisory Board can he. Pursuant to a shareholders’ 
resolution adopted at the Company’s annual shareholders’ meeting held on April 27, 
2006, the Supervisoiy Board has been authorized for a period of five years to resolve 
to (i) issue any number of common shares andor preference shares as comprised in 
the company’s authonzed share capital as this shall read h m  time to time; (ii) to fuc 
the terms and conditions of share issuance; (iii) to exclude or to limit preemptive 
nghts of existing shareholders; and (iv) to grant rights to subscribe for common shares 
andíor preference shares, al1 for a penod of five years fmm the date of such annual 
shareholders’ meeting. 

Currently the shareholders’ meeting has not authorized the Managing Board to 
repurchase any shares in the Company’s share capital. However, pursuant to article 5 
paragraph 2 of the Company’s articles of association, the Managing Board may, 
without being authorized thereto by the shareholders’ meeting but subject to the 
approval of the Supervisory Board, acquire shares in the Company’s own share 
capital in order to transfer those shares to îhe employees of the Company or a group 
company under a scheme appiicable to such employees. 

The Company is not a party to any significant agreements whicb are effectuated, 
cbanged or dissolved subject to the condition of a change of control of the Company 
following a takeover bid. However, îhe Cornpany is a party to an option agreement 
with Stichting Continuïteit ST (the “Stichting”) regarding the Company’s preference 
shares. on November 27, 2006, the Supervisory Board approved entering into an 
option agreement with an the Stichting, to terminate a substantially similar option 
agreement dated May 31, 1999, as amended, behveen the Company and 
STMicroelectronics Holding I1 B.V. The Managing Board and the Supervisory Board, 
aiong with the board of the Stichting, have declared that they are jointly of the opinion 
that the Stichting is independent of the Company. The Supervisory Board approved 
the new option agreement to reflect changes in Dutch iegal requirements, not in 
response to any hostile takeover attempt. On Februaty 7, 2007, the May 31, 1999 
option agreement, as amended, was terminated On February 22, 2007, the new 
option agreement with the Stichting was concluded. The new option agreement 
provides for the issuance of up to a maximum 540,000,000 preference shares, the 
same number as the agreement it is replacing. Any such shares would be issued to the 
Stichting upon its request and in its sok discretion and upon payment of at least 25% 
of the par value of the preference shares to be issued. The shares would be issuable in 
the event of actions considered hostile by the Managing Board and the Supervisory 
Board, such as a creeping acquisition or an offer on the Company’s o r d v  shares, 
which are unsupported by the Managing Board and the Supervisory Board and which 
the board of the Stichting determines would be conúary to the interests of the 
Company, the Company’s shareholders or other stakeholders. The preference shares 
may remain outstandmg for no longer than two years. No preference shares have been 
issued to date. The effect of the preference shares rnay be to create a level-playing 
field in the event actions which are considered to be hostile by the Managing Board 
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and the SupeAsory Board, as descnbed above, occur and which the board of the 
Stichting detebines to be contmy to the interests of the Company and the 
Company's sh{eholders and other stakeholders. 

The employment contract of the Company's President and CE0 provides that upon a 
change of conFol following a îakeover bid (i) al1 unvested stock awards granted to 
him wil1 fully, vest and (ii) the bonus payable under the Company's Executive 
Incentive Plan wil1 be due for the full amount, which is 150% of the executive gross 
annual salary. i Such benefits are not l i e d  to termination of the employment 
agreement. ,, 

k. 
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LIQüiûITY AND FINANCIAL POSíTION 

At December 31, 2006, cash and cash equivalents totalled $1,963 million, compared to 
$2,027 miliion as of December 31, 2005. At December 31, 2006, the Company had 
$250 million invested in short term deposits with a mahuity between three months and one 
year. These deposits are held at various banks with a M/A- minimum long term rating. 
interest on these deposits is paid at mahuity with interest rates fixed at inception for the 
duration of the deposits. The principal wil1 be repaid at final mahuity. At December 31,2006, 
the Company had a total investment of $190 million and Euro 205 million of existing cash in 
floating rate notes issued by primary banks rated at minimum “Ai”. These floating notes are 
very liquid short term invesûnents and are subjects oniy to the risk of deterioration of the 
credit quality of the issuer. These marketable securities are classified as available-for-sale and 
are reported at fair value with changes in fair value recognized as a separate component of 
“other reserves” in the consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity. We did not 
have marketable securities at December 31, 2005. Changes in the instruments adopted to 
invest our liquidity in îuture periods may occur and may significantly affect our f m c e  
income (costs). 

Liquidity 
We maintain a significant cash position and a low debt to equity ratio, which provide US with 
adequate financial flexibility. As in the past, our cash management policy is to f m c e  OW 
investment needs m a d y  with net cash generated from operating activities. 

Net cashfrorn operating activities. Net cash from operating activities totalled $2,687 million 
in 2006, compared to $1,984 million in 2005. 

Net cash used in investing activities. Net cash used in investing activities was $2,949 million 
in 2006, compared to $1,714 million in 2005. The main utdization of cash was for payments 
for purcbases of tangible assets, amounting to $1,555 million in 2006 and compared to 
$1,523 million in 2005; the payments of marketable securities, amounting to $460 million in 
2006 and compared to $0 miliion in 2005, and the investmeni in intangible and financial 
assets, amounting to $398 million in 2006 and compared to $287 in 2005. At December 31, 
2006 the investment in short-term deposit net of proceeds from matured short-term deposits 
totalled $250 million. in 2006, cash wed for capita1 conûibutions to associates was $213 
miliion. 

Capital expenditures for 2006 were principally allocated to: 

the expansion of the 300-mm front-end joint project with Philips Semiconductor 
International B.V. and Freescaie Semiconductor inc., in Crolles2 (France). 

the faditization of a portion of our 300-mm front-end plant in Catania (Italy); 

the capacity expansion and the upgrading to fmer geometry technologies of OUT 200- 
mm front-end facility in Rousset (France); 

the capacity expansion and upgrading of our 200-mm front-end facilities in 
Singapore; 

the upgradmg of our 200-mm fab and pilot line in in Agrate (Italy); and 
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the capacity expansion of our hackend plants in Muar (Malaysia), Shenzhen (China) 
and Bouskoura (Morocco); 

Capita1 expenditures for 2005 were principally allocaîed to: 
1, 

the capacity expansion of oir 200-mm and 150-mm front-end facilities in Singapore; 

the conversion to 200-mm of our front-end facility in Agrate (Italy); 

the capacity expansion of our back-end plants in Muar (Malaysia), Shenzhen (China), 
Toa Payoh (Singapore) and Malta; 

the expansion of our 200-mm front-end faciiity in Phoenix (Arizona); 

the capacity expansion of OUT 200-mm frontend facility in Rousset (France); 

the completion ,of huilding 'and continuation of facilities for our 300-mm front-end 
plant in Catania'(ita1y); 

the expansion of OUT 150-mm front-end facility and the start of a 200-mm pilot line in 
Tours (France); p d  

the expansion of the 3 0 0 - ~ I I  front-end joint project with Philips Semiconductor 
international B.V. and Freescale Semiconductor inc., in Crolles2 (France). 

Net operating cash gow. We defme net operating cash flow as net cash from operating 
activities minus net cash used in investing activities, excluding restricted cash, payment for 
purchases of and procpis from the sale of marketable securities and investment in and 
proceed from short-tem deposits. We believe net operating cash flow provides useful 
information for investors because it measures our capacity to generate cash from our 
operating activities to sp ta in  our investrnents for our operating activities. Net operating cash 
flow is determined as follows h m  our Consolidated Statements of Cash Flow: 

2006 2005 
Nel cash fmm operating activitini .......................................................................... 2,687 1.984 
Net cash wed in investing activitik ....................................................................... (2.021) (1,714) 

c.' 
i,,;,. 

<:$ 

........................................................................................ Net oprating cash now 666 270 

Rauicted cash. paymenl for p w c h  and pracceds fmm ssie of markelable 
sceuritia and invshnrnt in and p & e d  barn rhan-tmn d-its 

I - ....................... (928) 

1.17 

h.;' 

e:<. 
C" 
%.I 

, Due to the capacity of our operating activities to generate cash in excess of our investing 
activities, we generatedi.net operating cash flow of $666 miliion in 2006, compared to net 

... operating cash flow of $270 million in 2005. 

Net cash used infinoncing activities. Net cash wed in fuiancing activities was $143 million 
in 2006 compared to $131 million in 2005. The major item of the cash used in 2006 was the 
repurchase of substantially aii outstanding 2013 Convertible Bonds for an amount paid of 
$1,377 million aggrega) principal amount. The major items of cash pmeeds were related tn 
the issuance of zero coÙpon senior,convertible honds due in 2016 for an amount of $914 

! 
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million and to the issuance of floating rate senior bonds due in 2013 for a principal amount of 
€500 miliion. The major item of the cash used in 2005 was the payment of the dividends 
amounting to $107 miliion. 

CquijaIRcrourcm 

Netfinoncial position 

We defme our net fmancial position as the difference behveen our total cash position (cash 
and cash equivalents, marketable securities, short-term deposits and restricted cash) net of 
total fmancial debt (bank overdrab, current portion of long-term debt and long-term debt). 
We believe OW net ñnancial position provides useful infomation for investors because it 
gives evidence of our global position either in terms of net indebtedness or net cash by 
measuring our capital resources based on cash and cash equivalents and the total level of OW 
financial indebtedness. The net fmncial position is determined as foilows ûom our 
Consolidated Balance Sheets as December 3 1,2006 and 2005 : 

mo6 zoo5 

o 
I 
~ 

e 

e 

e 
1,963 2,027 
710 - 
218 - 

Told cash position. ........................................................... 2,891 2,027 

(11) Ba& overdraftn - 

Long-termdebt (1,740) (269) 

Net financiai position . ........................................................ 1,015 248 

............... 
Current portion of lang-te .................................................................... (136) (1,499) 

....................................................... 
(1.876) (1,779) 

Tbe net ftnancial position (totai cash position net of total fmncial debt) as of December 31, 
2006 amounted to a net fmancial cash position of $1,015 million, compmd to a net f m c i a l  
position of $248 million as of December 31, 2005. The impmvement of the net financial 
position mainiy results ûoom favourable net operating cash flow generated during 2006 and 
ûom the proceeds kom the 2016 senior convertible bond and the 2013 floating rate senior 
bond, net of repayment for the 2013 convertible bond. 

F’ursuant to the terms of the convertible bonds due 2013, the Company was required to 
purchase, at the option of the holders, 1,397,493 convertible bonds, at a pnce of $985.09 each 
behveen August 7 and August 9, 2006. Tbis resulted in a cash payment of $1,377 million. 
The Company may be required to purchase, at the option of the holder, îhe outstanding 
convertible bonds for cash on August 5,2008 and/or August 5,2010 at a pnce of $975.28 and 
$965.56 per convertible bond, respectively. The outstandmg long term debt corresponding to 
the 2013 convertible debt amounted to approximately $2 million as at December 31, 2006, 
corresponding to the remaining 2,505 bonds. 

in February 2006, the Company issued $974 million principal amount at maturity of zero 
coupon senior convertible bonds due in February 2016. The bonds were issued at 100% of 
principal with a yield to mahuity of 1.5% and resulted in net proceeds to the Company of 
$974 miliion less transaction fees. The bon& are convertible by the holder at any time pnor 
to maturiîy at a conversion rate of 43.1 18317 shares per one thousand dollars face value of 
the bon& corresponding to 41,997,240 equivalent shares. The holders can also redeem the 
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convertible bonds on February 23, 2011 at a pnce of $1,077.58, on February 23, 2012 at a 
price of $1,093.81 and on February 24,2014 at a price of $1,126.99 perone thousand doliars 
face value of the bonds, The Company can cal1 the bon& at any time after March 10,201 1 
subject to the Company's share pnce exceeding 130% of the accreted value divided by the 
conversion rate for 20 'out of 30 consecutive trading days. The Company may redeem for 
cash at the principal ariount at issuance plus accumulated gross yield all, but not a portion, of 
the convertible bonds at any time if 10% or less of the aggregate principal amount at issuance 
of the convertible bon& remain outstandmg in certain circumstances or in the event of 
changes to the tax laws 'of the Netherlands or any successor jurisdiction. 

On Marcb 17, 2006, ~, STMicroelectronics Finance B.V. ("ST BV"), a wholly owned 
subsidiary of the Compfuiy, issued floating rate senior bonds with a principal amount of Eum 
500 million at an issue price of 99.873%. The notes, which mature on March 17,2013, pay a 
coupon rate of the three;month Euribor plus 0.40% on the 17" of June, September, December 
and Marcb of each year through mahuity. In the event of changes to the tax laws of the 
Netherlands or any successor jurisdiction, ST BV or the Company, may redeem the full 
amount of senior bondg for cash. In the event of certain change in control triggering events, 
the holden can cause ST BV or the Company to repmhase al1 or a portion of the bonds 

At December 31, 2006, the aggregate amount of OUT long-term debt was approximately 
$1,740 million, including $737 million of 2016 Bonds and €500 million of Floating Rate 
Senior Bonds due 2013' 

Finmciiz/Oui/bok 

We currentiy expect that capital spending for 2007 wil1 be approximately $1.2 billion, below 
the $1.5 billion net of sales proceeds spent in 2006. We have the flexibility to modulate OUT 
investments up or down in response to changes in market conditions. At December 31,2006, 
we had $467 million h'outstanding commitments for equipment pmhases for 2007. 

The most significant of OUT 2007 capital expenditure projects are expected to be: (a) for the 
front-end facilities: (i) a dedicated investment, both in manufachuing and R&D, in Agrate 
(Italy), Phoenix (USA), Rousset (France) and Catania (Italy) to secure and develop OUT 

system onented propnetary technologies portfolio (Mixed-signal) required by OUT strategic 
customers through spëcicific initiatives both in term of volumes growth and Fabs multi 
sourcing; (ii) a specific' program of capacity growth devoted to MEMS in Agrate (Italy) to 
support tbe significant llgrowth oppottunity in this new technology; (iii) completion of the 
current investment of the 300-mm joint project with Philips Semiconductor International 
B.V. and Freescale SeGconductor inc. on advanced logic processes in Cdles2 (France) for 
the manufachuing robustness of 90nm and 65nm leading edge technologies; (iv) in memory, 
the exploitation of A& Mo Kio (Singapore) for the introduction and indusîrialization of 
65nm Flash processes;Iland (b) for the back-end facilities, the capital expenditures wil1 be 
mainly dedicated to $e technology evolution to support the ICs path to package size 
reduction in Shenzhen (China) and Muar (Malaysia) and to prepare the room for future years 
capacity growth by conipleting the new production area in Muar and - depending on demand 
evolution - starting the new plant in Longgang (Greater China). 

We wil1 continue to monitor OUT level of capital spendmg by takmg int0 consideration factors 
such as trends in the semiconductor indusûy, capacity utilization and announced additions. 
We expect to have si$ificant capital requirements in the coming years and in addition we 

outstandmg. 
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intend to continue to devote a substantial portion of our net revenues to R&D. We plan to 
fund OUT capital requirements kom cash provided by operating activities, available funds and 
available support from third parties (icluding state support), and may have recourse to 
borrowings under available credit lines and, to the extent necessary or attractive based on 
market conditions prevailing at the time, the issuing of debt, convertible bonds or additional 
equity securities. A substantiai deterioration of our economic results and consequently of our 
profitability could generate a deterioration of the cash generated by our operating activities. 
Therefore, there can be no assurance thaî, in future periods, we wil1 generate the Same level 
of cash as in the previous years to fund our capital expenditures for expansion plans, OW 
working capital requirements, R&D and industrialization costs. 

The zero coupon senior convertible bonds due in Febtuary 2016 were issued at 100% of 
principd with a yield to maturity of 1.5% and resulted in net proceeds to the Company of 
$974 million less transaction fees. The bon& are convertible by the holder at any time prior 
to maturity at a conversion rate of 43.1 18317 shares per one thousand dollars face value of 
the bonds corresponding to 41,997,240 equivalent shares. The holden can also redeem the 
convertible bonds on Febtuary 23, 2011 at a pnce of $1,077.58, on Febmary 23, 2012 at a 
price of $1,093.81 and on February 24,2014 at a price of $1,126.99 per one thousand dollars 
face value of the bonds. The Company can cal1 the bonds at any time after March 10, 2011 
subject to the Company’s share price exceeding 130% of the accreted value divided by the 
conversion rate for 20 out of 30 consecutive tradmg days. The Company may redeem for 
cash at the principal amount at issuance plus accumulated gross yield all, but not a portion, of 
the convertible bonds at any time if 10% or less of the aggregate principal amount at issuance 
of the convertible bonds remain outstandmg in certain circumstances or in the event of 
changes to the tax laws of the Netherlands or any successor jurisdiction. 

Market Risk - About Financial ïnstruments 

We are exposed to changes in f m c i a l  market conditions in the normal course of business 
due to our operations in different foreign currencies and OUT ongoing investing and fmancing 
activities. Market risk is the uncerîainty to which future eamings or asseîíliability values are 
exposed due to operating cash flows denominated in foreign currencies and various f m c i a l  
instruments used in the normal course of operations. The major risks to which we are exposed 
are related to the fluctuations of the U.S. dollar exchange rate compared to the euro and the 
other major currencies, the coverage of our foreign currency exposures, the variation of the 
interest rates and the r i s k  associated to the investments of our available cash. We have 
establisbed policies, procedures and intemal processes goveming our management of market 
risks and the use of fmancial instruments to manage our exposure to such risks. 

Our income Statement is exposed to the fluctuations of the exchange rates such as the U.S. 
dollar, the euro and the other major currencies since our revenues are mainiy denominated in 
U.S. dollars while a large part of our costs is denominated in euros or other major currencies. 
We enter into cash flow hedges to cover a portion of our costs denorninated in euros. ûur 
balance sheet is also exposed to these exchange rates fluctuations since the fun~ t i~na l  
currency of OW subsidianes is generally the local currency and as such, foreign exchange 
fluctuations are generating adjustments for the translation into U.S. dollar consolidated 
reporting of their assets and liabilities. 

We have exposures in foreign currencies since our operating cash flows are denominated in 
various foreign currencies as a result of our international business activities and certain of our 
borrowings are exposed to changes in foreign exchange rates. The functional currency of our 
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subsidiaries is either the local currency or the U.S. dollar. We continuously evaluate our 
foreign currency exposhes based on cunent market conditions and the business environment. 
in order to mitigate the impact of changes in foreign currency exchange rates, we enter into 
forward exchange and currency options contracts. The magnitude and nature of such 
outstanding instrumen? are detailed in Note 30 to OUT Consolidated Financial Statements. 
Forward contracts and currency options outstanding as of December 3 1,2006 have remaining 
t e m  of 4 days to 5 months, which mature on average after less than 2 months. The notional 
amounts of outstanding foreign exchange forward contracts and currency options totalled 
$824 million and $2,200 million in 2006 and 2005, respectively. The principal currencies 
covered are the U.S. dollar, the euro, the Japanese yen, the myr and the Singapore dollar. The 
risk of loss associated with these forward contracts is equal to the exchange rate differential 
from the date the contract is made until the time it is settled. 

We are exposed to changes in interest rates primarily as a result of our bormwing activities 
which include long-teni debt used to fund business operations. We borrow in U.S. dollars as 
wel1 as in other currencies from banks and other sources. We primarily enter into debt 
obligations to support general corporate and local purposes including capital expendihues 
and working capital needs. The nature and amount of OUT long-tem debt can be expected to 
vary as a result of future business requirements, market conditions, and other factors. The 
principal risk are related to interest rates variations to which we are exposed in regard to OUT 
long-tem obligations. , F e  primanly utilize fixed-rate debt and do not expect changes in 
interest rates to have a F t e n a l  effect on income or cash flows in 2007. 

We place OUT cash and cash equivalents, or a part of it, with high credit quality financial 
institutions with at least a single “A” rating, mainly on a short-term basis; as such we are 
exposed to the fluctuations of the market interest rates on OUT placement and OUT cash, which 
can have an impact onbour accounts. We manage the credit r isks associated with fmancial 
instruments through credit approvals, investment limits and centralized monitoring 
procedures but do not nomally require collateral or other security from the parties to the 
f m c i a l  instruments. 

We do not anticipate any materiai adverse effect on OUT f m c i a l  position, result of 
operations or cash flows resulting from the use of our instruments in the fuhue. There can be 
no assurance that these strategies wil1 be effective or that úansaction losses can be minimized 
or forecasted accurately. 

The information above ‘summarizes our market risk associated with cash equivalents, debt 
obligations, and other ~isignificant f m c i a l  instruments as of December 31, 2006. The 
infomation above should be read in conjunction with Note 30 to the Consolidated Financial 
Statements. 
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS AS OF DECEMBER 31,2006 AND 2005 
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STMICROELECTRONICS N.V. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME 

Year Ended December Yenr Ended December 
In million of U.S. dollars except per share mounts Note 31,2w6 31,200S 

salcs ........................................... 
Other .................................. 
Totil reveoues ................................ 
cwt of sala . .............................................. 
Gram pront _* ..".._............ ....-"-".... 
Ra-h and development ............................. 
Other income .............................. 

............................................. 

cwts ................................... 
Opcratiag proflt ....................... "" ......................................... 
Finance income ............................................... 
Finance cos@ ........................... ................... 
Share of lws ofassociata ....................................................... 
Pront befare Ineo 
Lncome tax expens .............................................. 
Net pront"" .......................................................................... 
Atirlbutnble to: 
Equlty holden of tbe Campaoy ..................................... .- 
Mlaorlty Interest ................................................................ .. 
Earningr per share (Diiutrd) ............................................... 

.̂  .................... " .... " ...... " ............. 

Eirnlngs per share (Basie).."... ........................ .................. 

21 

21 
21 
19 
19 

20 

22 
22 
3 

23 

18 
18 

9,838 8,876 
16 6 

9,854 

1.08 039 
1 .o7 039 

ï ñ e  accompanying notes are an integral pari of these consolidated fmancial statements. 
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STMICROELECTRONICS N.V. ANJl ITS SUBSIDURIES 
' CONSOLIDATED BACANCE SHEETS 

As Pf 

In Mllion of U.S. dollm Note D-embrr 31,2006 December 31, 2005 

ASSETS 11 

Nonsurmnt assem 

................................................................................ 

Deferred i m m e  .................................................... 
Dcrivative financial i n s m n u  :, 
Investmentli in sosaciaus 
Rstnctcdcash forqui 
Investmentli and other non-curreiit asets .............................. 
ToW oan-xumnt -U .-_ ...__I-___........I._._..--. 
currcat -is: 

! 

Othcr meivables and as 
Available for a l e  financ 
Shon-lnm dcpositli 
Cash and cash equiva ent ........... ; .......................................... 
Total currmt sssetr .....CII....__....-_...._...... " ...--..... "..... 
TOTAL ASSETS _ _^_ ""....- "" 
LlhBILIïïES AND EQUITï , 
Equity attribursble to thc shareholden of thc Campany ........ 

Total equlty ...._...... ..."......_.... ............................... 
Uabiüliu "_ ............................. 1 _.......".. "I_-- .... ""-....... 
Naosurnrú Uabllllia: 

Other n o n - i m t  liabilitics .................................................. 
Total n o w u m n t  IIsblUHa .....-......_..._."... _I ...."--....... 
Curnni Ilabllldn: 
Currcnt ponini of long-tmn debt I ........................................ 
Tradc nccountp payablc ........ 
Dedvative financial ills ............................................ 
Other payablcs, ac~nicd liabilities'and pmvisiam ................. 
Current income tax liabilitie _.. 
Bank overdr?,fti ............................ : ........................................ 

Total Uiblllüu ................................................. " ......-.-. 
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY ......._.. ""--........ I 

10 
8 
9 

23 
30 
3 
3 

I I  

6 
5 
30 
7 
4 
25 
24 

16 

14 
13 
23 
I5 

14 

30 
12 

6,426 6, I79 
176 I 74 
719 458 
214 I60 
4 

26 I 35 
218 
143 118 

8.171 7,124 

I,MO 1,413 
1,589 1,490 

14 3 
592 586 
460 
250 

1.963 2,027 
6,508 5519 
14,619 12,643 

10.128 8.650 

~ 

10,180 8,7W 

1.740 269 
343 300 
130 83 
320 16 

2333 668 

136 1,499 
1,044 965 

1 31 
673 617 
112 152 
O I I  

1,966 3.275 
4,499 3,943 
14,679 12,643 

The accompanying notes are an integrai part of these consolidated f m c i a i  statements 

- 5 9 -  



e 

STMICROELECTRONICS N.V. AND ITS SUBSIDIANES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

Equiiy nmibulsble to lhe shareholden of lhe Compaoy 
In millian of U.S. dollm, excep Ordlaay Capilai Treuury Relsloed Olber Mlnoriiy ToId 

Baiancc u of 
December 31, 2004 I_ ........_...... 

Nole Shirn Surplui Shirn Eirnings R m w  hleresh Equi<y - per share amouno 

Fair value of equity Companenr 
of convertible debi classifid 
es financial liability 

Adjusted balance u Of 

Jaauiry 1, 2005 ..."............"-.... 
unrealized 10s on cesh flow 

Fnreifg currency translal 
differente ........ 

in equity .................................. 
Nel profi ....................... 
Totil rec income for 
2o(H".." ........ "" ...... " 
Employee share award scheme: 

Exercis of share options 
Dividends, $0.12 per share ......... 

Bslaan u of 
December 31, 2005 ......-........... 

" ...... 
Valw af r e n i c s  providcd ......... 

Net incame rsognized directly 

Net profil .................................... 
Totd mognized income far 

2006.."".." - .....-....--.... " ...... 
Employee share award wheme: 

value af services provideà ..... 
Dishibulion of trcaniry shares 
Exercise of rtack aptians 

~ividends, $0.12 p a  share ......... 

Bslsnce BS of 
December 31, 2w6  ._ ....._..... 

48 9,076 1,150 1.924 (348) 5,068 1,234 - 
60 - 6a 14 

48 9,136 

17 (67) (67) 

1,234 - 1,150 1,924 (348) 5,128 

I (763) 

I (830) 
ld7 I 348 

17 (764) - 
(831) - 

1,IU 1,956 (348) 5,368 521 50 8700 
17 14 14 

532 17 

546 

- 532 

546 - 
964 2 -  966 

2 1,512 - 964 546 

46 46 
17 I 

10,180 52 - 1,156 13981 (331) 6,209 1,113 

O 

e 

e 

e 

e 

e 

e The accompanying notes are an integrd part of these consolidated fmancial statements. 
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STMICROELECTRONICS N.V. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH n O W S  

, 
Yeir Eoded Dcrrmber31, Ycrr Eoded December31. 

In millian 0fU.S. dollm N0te 2006 2005 
C u h  flawr from openting acüvltia: 
Canh gcncrated óom operatiom ................................. 

Net cash fmm opemtiiig sctlvitln _.._ll____.."..l 
C u b  n o r s  from lovnting ac?vities: 
Payment for pwchase of mgible as 
Pmcceds from thc sak of iangiblc asseis 
Invermient in iniangible and finàncial BESCIS ............. 
Proceeds fmm lhe sdcs ofafEliites 

Rsúicted cash far equiiy invesmients .................. 
Investment in shon-I- deposits ......................... 
Praeceds fmm maturity of short-temi depasits ........... 
Pwchasc afavailable forsale financial asets..... 
l d m l  receivcd ......................................................... 
N d  c u b  wed in Investing iaMtia ._ ..-......-......_ 
C u b  flowi fmm flnaoriag ictlvftier: 
Prme& fmm issunccc of ordinary shares 
Praeceds from i s s m c  of convehble honds ............. 
Praeceds fmn issuance af long-+ debl 
Repapml of canvcröblc bonds! ......................... 
Repayment of long-iemi debl ...... 
Dividcnds paid 10 Ik Campany's s 
Olhhcr financing activitics 
Net c u b  wed In flainclng iitivitis ." "...._......___. 
E R ~ I  ofchsngs. in exchange raia 
Nel c a b  locrense (desrewc) .............................. 
Cash snd r u h  qulvilenb at b&niog of prlod. 
C a b  ind e u b  qulvnleab at d d  of perlod ........._ 

Capital contributions to arsaiates ............................. 

Recanciüiüon o ïcwb ind cuh qdvilentr  ..-.... 
Cash and carh cquivalcnts for balance shet  purpaurn 

Bank overdraftr ..................................................... 
Cuh and cash qulvaleab for &sb f l o r  statement 

puIposes ... I .............-..... """ I... "".." .....- " ....-.. 

26 

10 
10 

9, II 

3 
3 

25 
23 
4 

16 
14 
14 
14 
14 
I 7  

1,963 2,027 
(11) - 

1,963 2,016 

The accompanying notes are an integrai pari of these consolidated f m c i a i  statements. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(in millions of U.S. dollars, except per share amounts) 

1 - GENERAL INFORMATION 

STMicroelectronics N.V. (the “Company”) is registered in The Netherlands with its stahltory 
domicile in Amsterdam. The Company was formed in 1987 to be the holding company for 
the combination of the semiconductor business of SGS Microelettronica (then owned by 
Societa Finanzida Telefonica (S.T.E.T.), an Italian corporation) and the non-militmy 
business of Thomson Semiconducteurs (then owned by Thomson-CSF, a French corporation) 
whereby each company conûibuted their respective semiconductor businesses in exchange 
for a 50% interest in the Company. 

The Company and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) are a global independent 
semiconductor company that designs, develops, manuilcturm and markets a broad range of 
semiconductor integrated circuits (“ICs”) and discrete devices. The Group offers a diversified 
product portfolio and develops products for a wide range of m k e t  applications, including 
automotive producis, computer peripherals, telecomunications systems, consumer products, 
indusûial automation and control systems. Within its diversified portfolio, the Group bas 
focused on developing products that leverage its technological strengths in creating customized, 
system-level solutions with high-growth dipital and mixed-si& content. 

These consolidated îïnancial statements have been approved for submission to the annual 
general meehg  of the shareholders by the Supervisory Board on March 20,2007. 

2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidation financial 
statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to al1 the years 
presented, unless othenvise stated 

Certain prior year items have been reclassified to conform with current year presentation. The 
disclosure contained within the consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity has 
been amended to more appropnately reflect the categorization of other reserves and retained 
eamings. 

2.1 - Basis of preparation 

These consolidated financial statements, prepared for Dutch staîutory purposes, have been 
prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS’) as adopted 
by the European Union. in accordance with Article 402, Title 9, Book 2 of the Dutch Civil 
Code the statement of income is presented in abbreviated form for the Company’s accounts 
further presented in these staîutory fmancial statements. 

Al1 balances and values in the current and pnor penods are in millions of dollars, except 
share and per-share amounts or unless othenvise stated. Under Article 35 of the Company’s 
Articles of Association, the financial year extends kom January 1 to December 31, which is 
the penod-end of each fiscal year. Interim penods are established for accounting purposes on 
a thirteen-week basis. In 2006, the Company’s fmt  quarter ended on April 1, its second 
quarter ended on July 1, its third quarter ended on September 30 and its fourth quarter ended 
on December 3 1. 

O 

O 

O 

O 

O 

O 

O 

- 6 2 -  



O 

O 

O 

O 

O 

O 

O 

For intemal and external reporting purposes, the Group follows accounting principles 
generally accepted inlthe United States of Amenca ("U.S. GAAF"'). U.S. GAAF' is the 
Group's pnmary accounting standard for the setting of financial and operationai performance 
targets. l i  

The consolidated fin$ial statements have been prepared under the historicai cost 
convention, as modified by available-for-sak f m c i a l  assets and certain financial assets and 
financial liabilities (iicluding derivative instruments) at fair value. The preparation of 
consolidated f m c i a l  statements in conformity with íFRS requires the use of certain critical 
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of 
applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher d e p  of judgment or 
complexity, of areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consoliàated 
fmncial statements are disclosed in Note 2.23. 

2.2 -Consolidation 

The Group's consolidated fmancial statements include the assets, liabiiities, results of 
operations and cash flows of its majority-owned subsidiuies. The ownership of other interest 
holden is reflected asiminority interests. Intergoup balances and transactions have been 
eiiminated in consolidation. 

Subsidiaries 

Subsidiaries ~ I Z  al1 entities over which the Group has the power to govem the fmncial and 
operating policies gene$Ily accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting 
rights. The existence y d  effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or 
convertible are cons id ld  when assessing whether the Group controls another entity. 

Subsidianes are fully consolidated 60m the date on which control is transferred to the Group. 
They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases. 

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaties by 
îhe Group. The cost of h acquisition is measured at the fair value of the assets given, equity 
insûuments issued andl'liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs 
directly attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and 
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair 
vaiues at the acquisitiori date, irrespective of any minority interest. The excess of the cost of 
acquisition over the  fair^ value of the Company's share of the identifiable net assets acquired 
is recorded as goodwill ;pote  2.13). If the cost of acquisition is lower than the fair value of 
the Company's share in îhe net assets of the entity acquired, the difference is recognized 
directly in the income statement. 

Transactions and minori,ty interests 

The Group applies a pol$y of treating transactions with minority interest as transactions with 
parties extemal to the Group. Disposals to minority interest result in gains and losses for the 
Group that are recordedllin the income statement. hirchases from minority interest result in 
goodwill, being the difference between any consideration paid and the relevant share 
acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary. 

!I 
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Associates 

Associates include al1 entities over which the Group bas significant influence but not control, 
generally accompanying a shareholding of hetween 20% and 50% of the voting nghts. These 
invesûnents are accounted for by the equity method of accounting and are initially recognized 
at cost. They are presented on the face of the consolidated balance sheet as “Investments in 
associates”. 

“he Group’s share in its associates’ profit and losses is recognized in the income statement as 
“Share of loss of associates” and in the balance sheet as an adjustment against the carrying 
amount of the associate. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds 
its interest in the associate, including any unsecured receivahle, tbe Group does not recognize 
further losses, uniess it has incurred obligations or made payments on hehalf of the associate. 

Unrealized g a b  on transaction between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the 
extent of the Group’s interest in the associates. Unrealised losses are als0 eliminated uniess 
the transaction provides evidence of an impainnent of the assets transferred Accounting 
policies of associated have been changed where necessaiy to ensure consistency with policies 
adopted by the Group. 

2.3 - Foreign currency ûanslation 

Functional andpresentation currency 

The U.S. dollar is the presentation currency for the Group and the functional currency for the 
Company, which is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the 
Company operates. The worldwide semiconductor industry uses the U.S. dollar as a currency 
of reference for actual pricing in the market. Furthennore, the majority of the Group’s 
transactions are denominated in U.S. dollars, and revenues from extemal sales in U.S. dollars 
largely exceed revenues in any other currency. However, labor costs are concentrated 
primarily in the countries that have adopted the euro currency. 

Translation and balances 

The functional currency of each subsidiary throughout the group is either the locai currency 
or the US dollar, determined on the hasis of the economical environment in which each 
suhsidiary operates. For consolidation purposes, assets and liahiiities included in the financial 
statements of the Company’s subsidiaries having the local currency as functional currency are 
translated at current rates of exchange at the balance sheet date. Income and expense items 
and cash flow items ate ûanslated at the monthly average exchange rate of the period, which 
has heen determined to be representative of the exchange rates at the date of the respective 
transactions. The effects of ûanslaîing the fmancial position and resuits of operations from 
local functional currencies are reported as a component of “other reserves” in the 
consolidated statements of changes in equity. 

Assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses, gains or losses arising from foreign currency 
transactions are recorded in the functional currency of the recording entity at the exchange 
rate during the month of the transaction. At each balance sheet date, recorded halances 
denominated in a currency other than the recording entity’s functional currency are re- 

O 
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measured int0 the functional currency at the exchange rate prevailing at the balance sheet 
date. The related exchange gains and losses are recorded in the consolidated statements of 
income as “Other income and expenses, net”. 

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated 
as assets and liabilities Öf the foreign entity and translated at the closing rate. 

2.4 - Revenue Recognition 

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of 
goods and services, net of value-added tax, rebates and discounts and after eïiminating 
intercompany sales wij in  the Group. 

The Group recognises irevenue when the amount of revenue can be reiiably measured, it is 
probable îhat fuhue ecÖnomic benefits wil1 flow to the entity and specific criteria have been 
met for each of the Gmup’s activities as described below. The amount of revenue is not 
considered to be reliably measurable until al1 contingencies relating to the sale have been 
resolved. In parlicu1ar;’revenue is recognized as follows: 

Sales 

Revenue from the sale of products is recognized upon transfer of significant risk and 
rewards of ownership to the customer. Tbis usually occm at the time of shipment. 
Distribution costs are recorded in “cost of sales”. 

Oiher revenues 

Other revenues primahy consist of license revenue and patent royalty income, which are 
recognized ratably over the term of the agreements. 

Fundings 

Fundings received byl the Group are mainly kom govemmental agencies and income is 
recorded when al1 qyifymg expenditures have been performed and the Group has obîained 
suficient evidence from the relevant authorities that the credit wil1 be granted. The Group’s 
primary sources for govenunent funding are French, Italian and other European Union 
(“EU”) govemmenîal entities, and Singapore agencies. Such funding is generally provided to 
encourage research &d development activities, industrialkation and local economic 
development. The EU ;bas developed model contracts for research and development funding 
that require beneficiaries to disclose the results to third parties on reasonable tem. The 
conditions for receipt of govemment fundmg may include eligibility restrictions, approval by 
EU authorities, annu;li budget appropriations, compliance with European Commission 

Other contracts conta$ penalties for late delivenes or for breacb of contract, which may 

c.:\. 
c>;t 

‘:::i 

k!:l’ 

P..? 
c::i 
Ci)i 
%I 

I 

I regulations, as weli specifications regarding objectives and results. Certain specific 
contracts contain obligations to mainiain a minimum level of employment and investment 
during a certain period of time. There could be penalties if these objectives are not fulfilled 

result in repayment obligations. In accordance with the Group’s revenue recognition policy, 
funding related to these contracts is recorded when the conditions required by the contracts 
are met The Group’s funding programs are classified under three general categones: funding 
for research and development activities, capital investment, and lom. 
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Funding for research and development activities is the most common form of funding that the 
Group receives. Public funding for such activities is recorded as “other income” in the 
Group’s consolidated statements of income. hb l i c  funding is recognized ratably as the 
related costs are incurred once the agreement with the respective governmental agency has 
been signed and al1 applicable conditions are met. No major public funding is received for 
development projects recognized by the Group as intangible assets, which would have 
supposed that the Group would have recognized such funding as a reduction of the 
corresponding intangible assets. 

The Gmup receives certain specific project-related research tax credits in some of its tax 
jurisdictions. Such credits can he recovered through the reduction of income tax to be paid for 
the year. Nevertheless, the Group is entitled to receive in cash such credit even if no income 
tax is expected to be paid As such the Group recognizes these credits as research and 
development funding, which are included in “other income” in the consolidated statements of 
income. 

Capital investment funding is recorded as a reduction of “property, plant and equipment” and 
is recognized in the Group’s consolidated statements of income according to the depreciation 
charges of the funded assets during their useful lives. The Group also receives capital funding 
in Italy, which is recovered through the reduction of various govemment liabilities, including 
income taxes, value-added tax and employee-related social charges. The funding has been 
classified as long-term receivable and is reflected in the balance sheet at its discounted net 
present value. The subsequent accretion of the discount is recorded as non-operating profit ia 
“Finance cost”. 

The Group receives certain loans, mainiy related to large capital investment projects, at 
preferential interest rates. The Group records these loans at their nominal value as debt in its 
consolidated balance sheets, which has also been determined to approximate its effective rate 
based on the term outstanding. 

2.5 -Research and development 

Research and development expenditures include costs incurred by the Group, the Group’s 
share of costs incurred by other research and development interest goups and costs 
associated with co-development alliances entered with other companies for joint research 
initiatives. Research and development expenses do not include marketing design center costs, 
which are accounted for as selling expenses and process engineering, pre-production or 
process transfer costs which are recorded as cost of sales. Research costs are charged to 
expense as incurred. 

Expenditures incurred on development projects, mainiy related to the design and testing of 
new 01 improved products are recognized as intangible assets when it is probable that the 
project wil1 be a success, considenng its commercial and technological feasibility, and costs 
can he measured reliably. Development expenditures recognized as assets are amortized over 
their estimated useful lives, not exceeding three years (Note 2.12). Other development costs 
are recognized as an expense as incurred. Development costs recognized as an expense are 
not recognized as an asset in a subsequent period. The amortization expense recognized on 
capitalied development costs is recorded as cost of sales. Amortization expense on 
technologies and licenses purchased by the Group kom third parties to facilitate the Group’s 
research is recorded as research and development expenses. 

O 
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O 
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2.6 - Start-up costs 

O 

O 

O 

O 

I 

O 

Start-up costs represant costs incurred in the start-up and testing of the Group’s new 
manufacturing facilities, before reaching the earlier of a minimum level of production or 6- 
months afìer the fabrication h e ’ s  quality qualification. No sales are associated with these 
costs. As such, they &e not included as part of cost of sales and are presented in “other 
expenses” in the consolidated statements of income. 

2.7 - Income taxes 

income tax expense represents the income taxes expected tn he paid or the benefit expected 
to be received related i~to the c m n t  year income or loss in each individual tax jurisdiction. 
income tax expense for specific tax assessments are also estimated and recorded when an 
additional tax payment is determined probable. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are 
recorded, using the IGbiiity method, for temporary differences arising between the tax and 
book bases of assets +d liabilities and for the henefits of tax credits and operating loss carry- 
forwards. However, deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises frnm initial 
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that, at 
the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred 
income tax is determined using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantially 
enacted by the balance~!sheet date and are expected to.apply when the related deferred income 
tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax liability is settled. 

Deferred income tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that fuhue taxable 
profit wiii be availab1e:against whicb the temporary differences can be utilized. 

The Group does not provide deferred income taxes on temporaiy differences arising on 
investments in cubsidiaries and associates because the timing of the reversal of the temporary 
difference is controlled by the Group, and it is probable that the temporary difference wil1 not 
reverse in the foreseeable future, or if reversed, wil1 not be subject to tax. 

Certain specific research tax credits received in some of the tax jurisdictions of the Group are 
recognized as research and development fundmg and included in “other income” in the 
consolidated statements of income since the Group is entitled to receive in cash such credit 
even if no income tax is expected to be paid for the year in which the research tax credit must 
be recognized. 

2.8 - Earnings per share 

Basic earnings per shak are computed by dividing net profit by the weighted average number 
of ordinary shares ouktanding during the pencd. Diluted eamings per share are computed 

Ci) 
$5,’ 

CI‘ 
Lr! 
! 

.I\,~’’ 
c:;, 

h l  

I 

using the treasnry stock method by dividing net profit (adding-back interest expense, net of 

weighted average shares used to compute diluted eamings per share include the incremental 

deht to the extent such incremental shares are dilutive. Nonvested shares with performance or 

tax effects, related to *rtible debt if determined to be dilutive) by the weighted average 
number of ordinaiy s h y s  and potential ordinary shares outstanding during the period. The 

shares of ordinaty shafes relating to stock options granted, nonvested shares and convertible g:‘ 

market conditions are~~included in the computation of diluted eamings per share if their 
conditions have been satisfied at the balance sheet date and if the awards are dilutive. 

O 

I 
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2.9 -Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents represents cash on hand, deposits at cal1 with banks, highly liquid 
investments with insignificant interest rate risk purchased with an original maturity of ninety 
days or less. For cash flow presentation purposes, cash and cash equivalents includes bank 
overdrab. Bank overdrab are s h o w  as part of current liahilities on the consolidated 
balance sheet. 

2.10 - Trade accounts receivable 

The accounts receivable are initially recognized at fair value, and subsequently measured at 
amortized cost using the effective interest method, less a provision for impairment. The 
Group maintains a provision for impairment of receivables for estimated losses resulting kom 
its customers’ inability to make required payments. The amount of provision is the difference 
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated present cash 
flows, discounted at the effective interest rate. The amount of the provision is recognized in 
the income statement as “selling, general and administrative expenses”. 

2.11 - Inventories 

inventones are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is based on the 
weighted average cost by adjusting standard cost to approximate actual manufacturing costs 
on a quarterly basis; the cost is therefore dependent on the Group’s manufacturing 
performance. In the case of underutilization of manufacturing facilities, the costs associated 
with the excess capacity are not included in the valuation of inventones but charged directiy 
to cost of sales. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordiiary course of 
business, less applicable variable selling expenses. 

The Company performs on a continuous basis inventory write-off of products, which have the 
characteristics of slow-moving, old production date and tecbnical obsolescence. Additionally, 
the Group evaluates its product inventory to identify obsolete or slow-selling stock by 
computing any excess inventory based on the previous quarter sales, orders’ backiog and 
production plans. inventory associated with obsolete or uncommitted inventory is expensed 
to cost of sales. 

2.12 - Intangible assets subject to amortization 

intangible assets subject to amortization include the cost of technologies and licenses 
purchased from thiid parties, purchased software, intemally developed software which is 
capitalized and costs incurred on other development projects that meet al1 capitalization 
criteria as defmed in L4S 38 (revised), Intungibíe Assets. Intangible assets subject to 
amortization are reflected net of any impairment losses. The canying value of intangible 
assets subject to amortization is evaluated whenever changes in circumstances indicate that 
the canying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized in the income 
statement for the amount by which the asset’s carryhg amount exceeds its recoverable 
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value and value in use. The 
fair value would normally be estimated based on independent market appraisals, the value in 
use corresponds to the s u m  of discounted future cash flows to be derived from the particular 
asset or to the cash-regenerating unit to which it relates. 

O 
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Amortization is computed using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful 
lives: 

................................... 3-7 yean 
Puchased sofhuare ......................................... 3 4  yean 
Intcmaily dcveloped softwan 4 Y- ................................................................................................. 

The Group evaluates the remaining useful life of an intangible asset at each reporting period 
to determine whether events and circumstances warrant a revision to the remaining period of 
amortization. 

The capitalization of costs for intemally generated software developed for the Group’s 
internai use begins when p r e l i m i i  project stage is completed and when the Group, 
implicitly or explicitly,’authorizes and commits to funding a computer software project since 
it wil1 be probable that the project wil1 be completed and wil1 be used to perform the function 
intended. 

Expenditures incurred on development projects, mainiy related to the design and testing of 
new or improved products, are recognised as inîangible assets net of any material govemment 
funding directly attributable to the specific projects when the Group can demonstrate al1 of 
the following: (i) the technical feasibility of completing the item under development so that it 
wil1 be availahle for use or a le ;  (ii) its intention to complete the item under development and 
to use it or sell it; (iii) its ability to use or sell the intangible asset under construction; (iv) 
how the item under development wil1 generate probable future economic benefits; (v) the 
availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development 
and to use or sell the item under development; and (vi) its ability to measure reliably îhe 
expendihire attributable to the project during its development. Development costs that have 
been capitalized are amortized on a straight-line basis over the period of their expected 
benefits, not exceeding tbree years. Development costs incurred before the Group can 
demomtrate the compliance with the capitalization criteria described above and after the 
commencement of the generation of benefits through the use or production of the developed 
item are not capitalized and are recognized in the consolidated statements of income as 
research and development expenses. 

2.13 -Goodwill 

Goodwill recognized in business combinatiom is not amortized but rather is subject to an 
impairment test to be performed on an annuai basis or more frequentiy if indicators of 
impairment exisf in order to assess the recoverability of its canying value. Goodwill subject 
to potential impairment is ailocated to cash-generating units (“CGUs”) for the purpose of 
impairment testing. These CGUs, which represent a component of an operating segment for 
which discrete fmancial information is availahle and is subject to regular review by segment 
management are further described in detail in Note 8. Thic impairment test determines 
whether the recoverable amount of each cash-generating unit, which is the higher of itc 
assets’ net selling price and its value in use, is lower than its total canying amount. If lower, 
an impairment loss is mognized for the excess of the carrying amount over the recoverable 
amount. If the impairment loss exceeds the book value of goodwill, allocation is made on a 
pro rata basis to assets. in determining the value in use of a cash-generating unit, the Group 
usually estimates the expected discounted fuhire cash flows associated with the unit. 
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Significant management judgments and estimates are used in forecasting the future 
discounted cash flows, including: the applicable industry’s sales volume forecast and selling 
pnce evolution, the cash-generating unit’s market penetration, the market acceptance of 
cerîain new technologies, relevant cost stnicture, the discount ratis applied using a weighted 
average cost of capital and the perpetuity rates used in calculating cash flow terminal values. 

2.14 - Properîy, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are stated at histoncal cost, net of govemment fundings, 
depreciation and any impairment losses. Major additions and improvements are capitalized, 
minor replacements and repairs are charged to the consolidated statement of income. 

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on fmed assets is computed using the straight-he 
method over the following estimated useful h e s :  

Buildings ............................................................................... 
Facilities & Iraehold improvements 

Computer and R&D equipment ................................................................................................ 3-6 yam 

The Group evaluates each period whether there is reason to suspect that tangible assets or 
groups of assets might not be recoverable. Several impairment indicators exist for making 
this assessment, such as: significant changes in the technological, market, economic or legal 
environment in which the Group operates or in the market to which the asset is dedicated, or 
available evidence of obsolescence of the asset, or indication that its economic performance 
is, or wil1 be, worse than expected. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are 
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash- 
generating units). An impainnent loss is recognized in the income statement for the amount 
by wbicb the asset’s canying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable 
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. The fair value 
is normally estimated by the Group based on independent market appraisals. The value in use 
corresponds to the sum of discounted future cash flows to be denved from the particdar 
asset, using market assumptiom such as the utilization of the Group’s fabrication facilities 
and the ability to upgrade such facilities, change in the selling pnce and the adoption of new 
technologies. Tbe Group als0 evaluates, and adjusts if appropnate, tbe assets’ useful lives, at 
each balance sheet date or when impaiment indicators e i s t  Assets classified as held for sale 
are reflected at the lower of their canying amount or fair value less selïing costs and are not 
depreciated during the selling period. Costs to sell include incremental direct costs to transact 
the sale that would not have been incurred except for the decision to sell. 

Wben property, plant and equipment are retired or otherwise disposed of, the net book value 
of the assets is removed fiom the Group’s books and the net gain or loss is included in “other 
income” in the consolidated statements of income. 

Leasing agreements in which a significant portion of the nsks and rewards of ownership are 
retained by the Group are classified as finance leases. These leases are included in “property, 
plant and equipment” and depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life or the lease 
term. Leasing agreements classified as operating leases are arrangements in which the lessor 
retains a significant porîion of the risks and rewards of ownenhip of the leased asset. 
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Payments made under operating leases are charged to the income statement on a straight-he 
basis over the period ofthe lease. 

Borrowing costs incded for the construction of any qualifying asset are capitalized during 
the period of h e  that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use. Other 
borrowing costs are expensed 

2.15 - Financial Assets 

I1 

I’ 

The Group classifies i p  f m c i a l  assets in the following categones: fuiancial assets at fair 
value îhrough profit and loss, loans and meivables and available-for-sale fmncial assets. 
The classification de@& on the purpose for which the investments were acquired. 
Management determines the classification of its investments at initial recognition and re- 
evaluates this designation at each reporting date. 

I1 
Financial assefs at fair value through profit and loss 

A fmncial asset is classified in this category if acquired pnncipally for the purpose of selling 
in the short term or if so designated by management. Assets in this category are classified as 
current assets when dey  are expected to be realized within twelve months of the balance 
sheet date. 

Loans and receivables 

Loans and receivables are non-derivative f m c i a l  assets with fxed or detenninable 
payments that are not,quoted in an active market. They arke when the Group provides 
money, goods or services directly to a debtor with no intention of tradimg the receivable. 
They are included in c b n t  assets, except for mahuities greater than twelve months aíkr the 
balance sheet date, which are classified as non-current assets. Their discount4 value, net of 
any provision for impairrnent, is assumed to approximate their fair value. Loans and 
receivables are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. 

Available-Jor-sale financial msets 

For those fmncial asiets with a readily detenninable fair value and that, are classified as 
available-for-sale, the marketable securities are reported at fair value with changes in fair 
value recognized as a separate component of “oîher reserves” in the consolidated statements 
of changes in equiîy. ,@pairment losses are recorded in net profit based on the Group’s 
assessment of any sigitificant, sustained reductions in the investment’s market value, and of 
the market indicators affecthg the securities. Gains and losses on marketable securities sold 
are computed for each specific asset and are recorded as “other income” or “other expenses” 
in the consolidated statement of income. 

hchases  and sales of’investments are recognized on trade date, which is the date on which 
the Group commits toi purchase or sell the asset. Investments are derecognized when the 
rights to receive cash P w s  ftom the investments have expired or have been transferred and 
the Group has transferred substantially al1 r i s k  and rewards of ownership. 

I! 
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2.16 - Derivative instruments 

Foreign Currency Forward Contracts and Currency Options Not Designated as a Hedge 

The Group conducts its business on a global basis in various major international currencies. 
As a result, the Group is exposed to adverse movements in foreign currency exchange rates. 
The Group enters int0 foreign currency forward contracts and currency options to reduce its 
exposure to changes in exchange rates and the associated risk arising from the denomination 
of certain assets and liabilities in foreign currencies at the Company’s subsidiaries. in 
addition forward contracts and currency options are also wed by the Company to reduce its 
exposure to U.S. doliar fluctuations in euro-denominated forecasted intercompany 
transactions that cover a large part of research and development expendihues and certain 
corporate expenses incurred on the Company’s behalf by subsidiaries. These intercompany 
transactions are not closely limited to ulîimate transactions with third parties. These 
instruments do not qualify as hedging instruments and are marked-to-market at each period- 
end with the associated changes in fair value recognized in “other income” or “other 
expenses” in the consolidated statements of income. 

Cash Flow Hedges 

To further reduce its exposure to U.S. dollar exchange rate fluctuations, the Company als0 
hedged in 2006 and 2005 a portion of its euro-denominated forecasted intercompany 
purchases of products whose underlying front-end manufacturing production costs of semi- 
f ~ s h e d  goods are incurred in euros. The foreign currency forward contracts and the currency 
options used to hedge exposures are reflected at their fair value in the consolidated balance 
sheet and meet the criteria for designation as cash flow hedges. The criteria for designating a 
derivative as a hedge include the insûument’s effectiveness in risk reduction, close link to 
ultimate sales to third parîies and, in most cases, a one-to-one matching of the derivative 
insûument to its underlying transaction. Foreign currency forward contracts and currency 
options used as hedges are effective at reducing the euroAJ.S. dollar currency fluctuation risk 
and are designated as a hedge at the inception of the contract. For these derivatives, the gain 
or loss from the effective portion of the hedge is reported as a component of “other reserves” 
in the consolidated statements of changes in equity and is reclassified int0 eamings in the 
same period in which the hedged transaction affects eamings, and withii the same income 
statement l i e  item as the impact of the hedged transaction “he gain or loss is recognized 
immediately in “other income” and “other expenses” in the consolidated statements of 
income when an ineffective portion of the hedge is identified. 

Fair Value Hedges 

in 2006, the Company entered int0 cancellable swaps with a combined notional value of $200 
million to hedge the fair value of a portion of the convertible bonds due 2016 carrying a fmed 
interest rate. The cancellable swaps convert the fvted rate interest expense recorded on the 
convertible bond due to 2016 to a variable interest rate based upon adjusted LiBOR. As of 
December 31, 2006 the cancellable swaps met the criteria for designation as a fair value 
hedge and, as such, both the swaps and the hedged portion of the bon& are reflected at their 
fair values in the consolidated balance sheet. The criteria for designating a derivative as a 
hedge include evaluating whether the instrument is highly effective at offsetting changes in 
the fair value of the hedged item amibutable to the hedged risk. Hedged effectiveness is 
assessed on both a prospective and retrospective basis at each reporting period. At December 
31,2006 the cancellable swaps are highly effective for hedging the change in fair value of the 
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hedged bonds attribuîable to changes in interest rates. Any ineffectiveness of the hedge 
relationship is recordedlas a gain or loss on derivatives as a component of "other income and 
expenses, net". If the hedge becomes no longer highly effective, the hedged portion of the 
bon& wil1 discontinue being marked to fair value while the changes in the fair value of the 
cancellable swaps wil1 continue to be recorded in the consolidated income statement. 

2.17 -Employee benekts 

Pension obligotions 

The Group sponsors various pension schemes for its employees. These schemes conform to 
local regulations and practices of tbe countries in which the Group operates. They are 
generally funded hou$ payments to insurance companies or trustee-admiistered funds, 
determined by periodic actuarial calculations. Such plans include both defmed benefit and 
defmed contribution pi&. A defined benefit plan is a pension plan that defines the amount of 
pension benefit that y employee wil1 receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or 
more factors such as age, years of service and compensation. A defmed contribution plan is a-  
pension plan under which the Group pays fixed conûibutions int0 a separate entity. The 
Group has no legal or consûuctive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does 
not hoid sufficient assets to pay al1 employees the benefits relathg to employee service in the 
current and prior periods. 

The liability recognized in the consolidated balance sheet in respect of defmed pension plans 
is the present value of ;,@e defmed benefit obligation at the balance sheet date less the fair 
value of plan assets, together with adjustments for unrecognized actuarial gains and losses 
and past senice cos& Significant estimates are used in determinhg the assumptions 
incorporated in the calcdation of the pension obligations, wbich is supported by input from 
independent actuaries. p e  defmed benefit obligation is calcuiated annually by independent 
actuaries usine the oroiected unit credit method. The oresent value of the defmed benefit - . <  

obligation is determined by discounthg the estimated future cash ouüìows using interest rates 
of high-quality corporate bon& that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits 
wil1 be paid, and that I I ~  terms to mahuity approximating the t e m  of the related pension 
liability. Actuarial ga? and losses arking from experience adjustments and changes in 
actuarial assumptions 4 excess of the p a t e r  of 10% of the value of plan assets or 10% of the 
defined benefit obligation are cbarged or credited to'income over the employees' expected 
average remaining wor+g h e s .  Past-service costs are recognized immediately in income, 
uniess the changes to the pension scheme are conditional on the employees remahing in 
service fora specified period of time (the vesting period). In this case, the past-service costs 
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are amoriized on a straipht-he basis over the vesting period. 

O 

O 
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For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions to publicly or privately 
administered pension ikurance plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The 
Group has no further 1;payment obligations once the conûibutions have been paid. The 
contributions are recognized as employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid 
conûibutions are r e c o e e d  as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the 
future payments is available. Ci:, 
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Termination benefits :: 

Termination benefits payable when employment is teminated before the normal 
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for 

1: 
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these benefits. The Group recognizes termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed 
to either: terminathg the employment of current employees according to a detailed forma1 
plan without possibility of withdrawal; or providing termination benefits as an offer made to 
encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits faiiing due more than twelve months afier the 
balance sheet date are discounted to present value. In the case of an offer made to encourage 
voluntary redundancy, the Group bases the measurement of termination beneîïts on the 
number of employees expected to accept the offer. 

profit-sharing and bonus plans 

The Group recognizes a liability and an expense for bonuses and profit-sharing plans when it 
is contractually obliged or wbere there is a past practice that has created a constructive 
obligation. 

Share-based compensation 

The fair value of the employee services received in exchange for the grant of share-based 
awards is recognized as an expense and as a correspondmg increase in shareholders’ equity. 
The total amount to be expensed over the vesting penod is detennined by reference to the fair 
value of the awards granted. Any applicable employee social charges are also expensed 
ratably over the Same period as the share-based compensation expense. 

Share Optiom 

At December 3 1, 2006, the Group had five employee and Supervisory Board share-option 
plans, which are descnhed in detail in Note 16. In 2005, the Group redefmed its equity-based 
compensation strategy by no longer granting options but rather issuing non-vested shares. In 
July 2005, the Group amended its latest Share ûption Plans for employees, Supervisory 
Board and Professionals of the Supervisory Board accordingly. As part of this revised share 
compensation policy, the Group decided in July 2005 to accelerate the vesting penod of al1 
outstanding unvested share options, following authorization from the Group’s sharebolders at 
tbe annual general meeting held on March 18, 2005. As a result, underwater options 
equivalent to approximately 32 million shares became exercisable immediately in July 2005. 
The fair value of the share options granted was measured using a Black-Scholes pncing 
model. The number of awards used to measured compensation expense was based on the best 
estimate of the number of share options expected to vest. Totai compensation expense was 
recognized ratably through graded vesting. At acceleration of the vesting of al1 unvested 
share options, the corresponding compensation charge was recognized immediately in the 
consolidated statement of income for the year ended December 31,2005 for the amount that 
othenvise would have been recognized for services received over the remainder of the vesting 
penod. 

Nonvested Shares 

Dwing 2005 and 2006 the Group granted nonvested shares to senior executives, selected 
employees and members of the SupeMsory Board to be issued upon vesting from treasury 
shares. The shares were granted for free to employees and at their nomina1 value for the 
members of the Supervisory Board. The awards granted in 2005 to employees wil1 
contingently vest upon achieving market or performance conditions and progressively upon 
completion of a three-year service period. Tbe awards granted in 2006 to employees wil1 
contingently vest upon achieving performance conditions oniy and a îhree years service 

O 

O 

O 

O 

O 

O 

74 - 



O’  

o 

o 

o 

o 

o 

o 

period. Shares granted & the Supervisory Board vest unconditionaiiy along the Same vesting 
period as employees. Shce nonvested shares granted to Supervisory Board members are not 
forfeited, even if the se+e period is not completed, their associated compensation cost has 
been recorded immediately at grant. The Group records compensation expense for the 
nonvested shares basedlon the fair value of the awards at grant date. The fair value of the 
nonvested shares affectfd by a market condition reflects a discount, using a Monte Carlo 
path-dependent pricing model, to measure the probability of achieving the market condition. 
Nonvested shares are fuither explained in Note 16. 

2.18 - Financial Debt 

Compound Financial Instrumenîs 

At December 31, 2006, the Group had two compound fmncial insûuments consisting i0 
convertible bon& issued in 2003 and 2006 respectively, on a ten-year maturity period each. 

Compound f m c i a l  in&ments are assessed for separate accounting int0 debt and equity 
components based on the circumstances at the inception of the insûuments. The Company 
recognizes separately the components of the financial instrument that a) creates a financial 
liability and b) graots y option to the holder of the instrument to convert it int0 an equity 
instrument of the Company. A conversion option embedded in the compound financial 
instrument is an equity instrument when the Company has an unconditionai nght through this 
option to avoid settlement in cash or another fmancial asset. When separate accounting is 
applied, the fair value of the liability portion of the convertible debt is determined using a 
market interest rate for’an equivalent non-convertible debt over the period of future probable 
cash flows as estimatedson the date of issuance. This amount is recognized as a liability on an 
amortized cost basis d t i l  redeemed, extinguished on conversion or on the maturity of the 
bonds. The remainder Öf the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option. When separate 
accounting cannot be applied because settlement in cash or another f m c i a l  asset cannot be 
avoided, the conversion option is recorded at fair value and reported as a liability component 
as part of non-current 1,iabilities on the consolidated balance sheet. Changes in fair value are 
recognized immediately at each reporting date on the line “other income or “other expenses” 
in the consolidated fimycial statements of income. 

For the 2013 and 2016’convertible bonds, the bond terms enable the holder to receive a cash 
settlement under certain circumstances, and consequently, the Group has classified the share 
conversion option as ‘a fmancial liability. Based on the existing market cooditions at 
issuance, management4 estimated that separately valuing the embedded share conversion 
option would not be niatenally different flom calculating this share conversion value as the 
residual amount of theltotai bond proceeds, less the fair value of the debt component. The 
Group determined the debt portion of the convertible debt using a market interest rate for an 
equivalent non-convertible debt with a term corresponding to the insûumeot’s estimated 
probable cashflows. i 
Debt issuance and other transaction costs that relate to the issue of a compound financial 
instrument are allocated to the liability and equity components of the instrument in proportion 
to the allocation of proceeds. The costs allocated to the liability component of the financial 
instrument are amortized in “fmance cost” until extinguishment of the liability component. 
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Bank loans and Senior bon& 

Bank loans including Senior bonds, are recognized initially at fair value, net of tramaction 
costs incurred. They are subsequently stated at amortized cost; any difference between the 
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognized in the consolidated 
statement of income over the penod of the borrowings using the effective interest method. 

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional nght to 
defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the balance sheet date. 

2.19 -Share capital 

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly amibutable to the issue of 
new shares or options are s h o w  in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. 

Where any subsidiary purchases the Group’s equity share capital (treasury shares), the 
consideration paid, including any directly attributable incremental cos& (net of income 
taxes), is deducted ûom equity attributable to the Group’s shareholders until the shares are 
canceiled, reissued or disposed of. Where such shares are subsequently sold or reissued, any 
consideration received net of directly amibutable incremental transaction costs and the 
related income tax effect is included in equity attnbutable to the Group’s shareholders. 

Dividend distribution to the Company’s sharebolders is recognised as a liability in the 
Group’s financial statements in the period in which the dividends were approved by the 
Company’s shareholders. 

2.20 - Other reserves 

Other reserves correspond to changes in equity of a business during a period except those 
resulthg &om investment by shareholders and distributions to shareholders. In the 
accompanying consolidated fmancial statements, “other reserves” consists of fair value of 
services provided under share award schemes, unrealized g a k  or losses on marketable 
securities classified as available-for-sale and the unrealized gain (105s) on derivative 
instru&ents designated as cash flow hedge, al1 net of tax as wel1 as foreign currency 
translation adjustments. 

2.21 - Provisions 

Provisions for resûuchiring costs, and legal claims are recognized when: the Group has a 
present iegal or consûuctive obligation as a result of past events; it is more likely than not 
that an outflow of resources wil1 be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been 
reliably estimated. Resmicturing provisions comprise lease termination penalties and 
employee temination payments. Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses. 

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the l i e l i o o d  that an outflow wil1 be 
required in settlements is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A 
provision is recognized even if the Iikelihood of the outflow witb respect to any one item 
included in the Same class of obligations may be small. 

Provisions are measured at the present value of h e  expenditures expected to be required to 
settle the obligation using a pre tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time 
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value of money and the risk specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to 
passage of time is recognized as finance cost. 

2.22 -Segment reporting 

A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged in providing products that are 
subject to risk and returns that are different 6om those of other business segments. A 
geographical segment~i is engaged in providing products within a particular economic 
environment that are subject to r i s k  and returns that are different 6om those of segments 
opemting in other economic environments. 

2.23 - Critica1 accoyting estimates and judgments 

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on histoncal expenence and 
other factors, includingexpeciations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under 
circumstances 

The Group makes estimates and assumptions conceming the future. The resulting accounting 
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. Estimates and 
assumptions that havel a significant risk of causing matenal adjusûnents to the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next fuiancial year are descnbed below. 

Provision for sales reiums and soles deduciions 

Consistent with standaid business practice in the semiconductor industry, price protection is 
granted to distributionlcustomen on their existing inventory of the Group’s products tn 
compensate them for ‘declines in market pnces. The ultimate decision to authonze a 
distributor refund remains fully within the control of the Group. The Group acctues a 
provision for pnce protection based on a rolling historica1 pnce trend computed on a monthiy 
basis as a percentage!of gross distributor sales. This historical pnce trend represents 
differences in recent months between the invoiced pnce and the fml pnce to the distributor, 
adjusted if required, to/accommodate a significant move in the current market pnce. The 
short outstanding inventory time pen04 visibility int0 the standard inventory product pncing 
(as opposed to certain chtomized products) and long distributor pncing history have enabled 
the Group to reliably estimate pnce protection prnvisions at penod-end. The Group records 
the accrued amounts as a deduction of revenue at the time of the sale. 

The Group’s customers ;pcCasionally rehun the Group’s products for technical reasons. The 
Group’s standard termi’ and conditions of sale provide that if the Group determines that 
products are non-confo+ing, the Group will repair or replace the non-conforming products, 
or issue a credit or retiate of die purchase pnce. Quality returns are not related to any 
technological obsolesceF issues and are identified shortly afier sale in customer quality 
conîrol testing. Quality\rehuns are always associated with end-user customers, not with 
distribution channels. The Group provides for such returns when they are considered as 
probable and can be reisonabiy estimated. The Group records the accmed amounts as a 
reduction of revenue. 

The Group’s insurance policy relating to product liability oniy covers physical damage and 
other direct damages caused by defective products. The Group does not carry insurance 
against immatenal non consequential damages. The Group records a provision for warranty 
costs as a charge against cost of sales, based on histoncal trends of warranty cos& incurred as 
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a percentage of sales, which management has detemined to be a reasonable estimate of the 
probable losses to be incurred for warranty claims in a penod. Any potential warranty claims 
are subject to the Group’s detemination that the Group is at fault for damages, and such 
claims usually must be submitted within a short period following the date of sale. This 
warranty is given in lieu of al1 other warranties, conditions or terms expressed or implied by 
statute or common law. The Group’s contracîual terms and conditiom limit its liability to the 
sales value of the products which gives nse to the claims. 

The Company, when acting as a guarantor, recognizes, at the inception of a guarantee, a 
liability for the fair value of the obligation the Company assumes under the guarantee, in 
compliance with L4S 39, Finonciol Instruments: Recognition ond Meosurements. When the 
guarantee is issued in conjunction with the formation of a partially owned business or a 
venture accounted for under the equity method, the recognition of the liability for the 
guarantee results in an increase to the carrying amount of the investment. The liabilities 
recognized for the obligations of the guarantees undertaken by the Company are measured 
subsequently on each reporting date, in accordance with IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent 
Liabiíities ond Contingent Assets the initia1 liability being reduced as the Company, as 
guarantor, is released from the risk underlying the guarantee. 

Trode receivobies 

The Group maintains impairment for doubtfil accounts for estimated losses resulting h m  its 
customers’ inability to make required payments. The Group bases its estimates on historica1 
collection trends. Furthemore, the Group is required to evaluate its customers’ credit ratings 
from time to time and take an additional provision for any specific account that it estimates as 
doubtful. Although the Group has determined that i& most significant customers are 
creditworthy, if the fmancial condition of these customers were to deteriorate, resulting in an 
impairment of their ability to make payments, additional allowances could be required. 

Income t a e s  

The Group is required to assess the likelihood of recovery of deferred tax assets. As of 
December 31, 2006, the Group believes that dl of the deferred tax assets as recorded on the 
consolidated balance sheet, would ultimately be recovered. However, should there be a 
change in the Group’s ability to recover deferred tax assets or in the tax rates applicable in 
the vanous jurisdictions, this could have an impact on the Group’s future tax provision in the 
penods in which these changes could occur. 

In addition, the calculation of tax liabilities involves dealing with uncertainties in the 
application of complex iax regulations. The Group recognizes liabilities for anticipated tau 
audit issues based on estimates that probable additional taxes wil1 be due. The Group reverses 
the liability and recognizes a tax benefit during the period if it ultimately detemines that the 
liability is no longer necessary. An additional charge is recorded in income tax expense in the 
period in which the Group determines that the recorded tax liability is less than the Group 
expects the ultimate assessment to be. 

Inventoiy 

The valuation of inventory requires the Group to estimate obsolete or excess inventory as 
wel1 as inventory that is not of saleable quality. Inventory is reduced to the expected 
realizable value for any excess uncommitted inventones based on the previous quarter sales, 
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order backlog and production plans. To the extent that future negative market conditions 
generate order backlog cancellations and declining sales, or if future conditions are less 
favorable than the projected revenue assumptions, the Group could be required to record 
additional inventory adjustments, wbicb would have a negative impact on îhe gross margin. 

impaiment of iong-iivecì assets 

Long-lived assets are tested or reviewed for impairment in accordance with accounthg 
policies stated in Notes 2.12, 2.13 and 2.14. Considerable management judgments are 
necessaiy to identify idpairment indicators and to estimate future sales and expenses, which 
underlie the discounted'lfuture cash flow projections. Factors such as changes in the planned 
use of property, plant ';yd equipmenf the closure of fab, lower than anticipated sales for 
products wbich capitalize rights, the change in the use or in the market acceptance of certain 
new tecbnologies, co$d result in shortened useful lives or impaiment charges to be 
recognized in the period in which such determination is made. 

Pension obligaiions 

The Group sponsors VGOUS pension schemes for its employees. The expense incurred under 
the defined benefit retirement plans is based upon statistical and actuarial calculations, and is 
impacted by assumptiob on discount rates used to reach the present value of future pension 
liabilities, expected re- that wil1 be made on existing pension assets, future salary 
increases as well as future pension increases and statistical-based assumptions covering 
future withdrawals of ~iparticipants from the plan and estimates of life expectancy. The 
actuarial assumptions $d may differ materially kom actual results due to changes in market 
and economic conditioy, higher or lower withdrawal rates or longer or shorter life spans of 
participants and significantly impact the amount of pension costs and pension liab 
recognized in the period in whicb such d e t e d a t i o n  is made. 

Restructuring charges 

The Group has undertaken, and may continue to undertake, significant resûucturing 
initiatives, which have required, or may require in the future, to develop formalized plans for 
exiting activities or to &pose of certain activities. in accorciance with IAS 37 accounting 
requirements, the Group recognizes the fair value of a liability for costs associated with an 
exit or disposal activity when a probable liability exists and it can be reasonably estimated. 
Given the significance~l and the timing of the execution of such activities, the process is 
complex and involves periodic reviews of estimates made at the time the original decisions 

,I 

i!) 
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were taken. As the Gmup operates in a higbly cyclical industry, it continues to evaluate 
business conditions. If Ijroader or new initiatives, which could include production curiailment 

incur additional charges as well as to change estimates of amounts previously recorded in the 
period in which such determination is made. 

or closure of other 4ufacturing facilities, were to be taken, the Group may be required to c::, 

2.24 - Recent accounting pronouncements 

a) Amendments to published siandarh efective in 2006 and early adopied in 2005: 

The Group early adopted in 2005 iAS 39 (Amendment), Cash Flow Hedge Accounting of 
Forecast Intragroup Transactions, effective from January 1, 2006. The amendment allows the 
foreign currency risk of highly probable forecast intragroup transaction to qualify as a hedged 

, 
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item in the consolidated financial statements, provided that: (a) the transaction is 
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the entity entering int0 that 
transaction; and (b) the foreign currency risk wil1 affect consolidated profit and loss. This 
amendment is relevant to the Group’s operations, as the Group uses forward contracts to 
reduce its exposure to U.S. dollar fluctuations in euro-denominated forecasted intercompany 
transactions related to front-end manufachuing production costs of semi-finished goods 
incurred on behalf of the Company by subsidiaries. The foreign currency forward contracts 
used to hedge exposures meet the criteria for designation as cash flow hedges. 

The Company also entered int0 forward contracts in 2006 and 2005 to minimize the exposure 
to euro denominated expenses incurred related to corporate expenses and R&D costs. These 
intercompany transactions are not closely linked to uitimate transactions with third parties 
and these forward contracts do not qualify as bedging inshuments. 

b) Amendments to published standards and inteqwetations efective in 2006 and relevant for 
the Group’s operations: 

IAS 19 (Amendment), Employee Benefits is mandatory for the Group’s accounting penods 
beginning on or after January 1, 2006. It introduces the option of an altemative recognition 
approach for actuarial g a k  and losses. It may impose additional recognition requirements 
for multi-employer plans where insufficient information is available to apply defmed benefit 
accounting. It also adds new disclosure requirements. As the Group does not intend to change 
accounting policies adopted for recognition of acîuarial gains and losses and does not 
participate in any multi-employer plans, adoption of this amendment oniy impacted the 
format and extent of disclosures presented in its consolidated fmancial statements. 

IAS 39 (Amendment), The fair Value Option is mandatory for the Group’s accounting 
penods beginning on or aîler January 1, 2006. This amendment changes the definition of 
fuiancial insfnunents classified at fair value through profit or loss and restricts the ability to 
designate financial instnunents as part of this category. Adoption of this amendment had no 
impact on the classification of the Group’s financial insfnunenîs. 

IAS 39 and IFRS 4 (Amendment), Financial Guarantee Contracts, is mandatory for the 
Group’s accounting periods beginning on or after January 1,2006. This amendment requires 
issued financial guarantees, other than those previously asserted by the entity to be insurance 
contracts, to be initially recognized at their fair value and subsequently measured at the 
higher of; (a) the unamortized balance of the related fees received and deferred, and (b) the 
expenditure required to settle the commitment at the balance sheet date. The Group applied 
this amendment in 2006, after assessing the impact of arrangements within the scope of IAS 
39, as amended. 

FRIC Inteipretation No. 4, determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease (“IFRIC 
4”) is mandatory for the Group’s accounting penods beginning on or after January 1, 2006, 
with early application permitted. This interpretation gives guidance on determining wbether 
arrangements that do not take the legal form of a lease should nonetheless be accounted for in 
accordance with International Accounting Standard No. 17, Leases (“IAS 17”). It specifies 
that an arrangement contains a lease if it depends on the use of a specific asset and conveys a 
nght to control the use of that asset The Group adopted IFRIC 4 in 2006 and, after assessing 
the impact of arrangements within the scope of FRiC 4 concluded that FRK 4 did not have 
any impact on its financial position and results of operations. 
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IFRIC Interpretation No. 6, Liabilities atising from Participating in a Specific Market - 
Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment (“IFRIC 6”) is mandatory for the Group’s 
accounting penods beginning on or after December 1,2005, with early application permitted. 
This interpretation gives guidance on the accounting for liahilities for waste management 
costs and clarifies when producers of elecûical goods wil1 need to recognize a liability for the 
cost of waste management relating to the decommissioning of waste electrical and electronic 
equipment supplied to private households. Upon adoption of IFRIC 6, die Group identified its 
obligations for waste management costs and deterrnined that none bad an effect on its 
financial position or results of operations. 

c) Standards. omendments to pubìished standards and interpretations effective in 2006 bui 
not relevant for !he GrÒup ’s operations: 

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are mandatory for accounting 
penods beginning on or after January 1,2006 but are not relevant for the Group’s operations: 

o IFRS 6, Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources; 

o IAS 21 (Amendment), Net Investment in a Foreign Operation; 

o IFRS I (Amendment), First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting 
Standards and :WRS 6 (Amendment), Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral 
Resources; and~ 

o IFRIC 5 ,  Rigk to hterests arking ûom Decommissioning, Restoration and 
Environmental Rehabilitation Funds; 

d) Interpretations that are not ye! efictive and have been eariy adapted by the Group: 

IFRIC Interpretation No. 8, Scope of IFRS 2 (“IFRIC ä’) is effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after May I ,  2006, with early application permitted. This Interpretation states 
that International Financial Reporting Standard No. 2, Share-Based Payment (“IFRS 2”) 
applies to arrangemeng whereby an entity makes share-hased payments for apparently zero 
or inadequate consideration. IFRIC 8 specifies that if the identifiable consideration appears to 
be less than the fair v a F  of the issued equity or the incurred liability, it is an indication that 
other consideration has been or wil1 be received and should therefore be accounted under 
IFRS 2. The Group eyly adopted IFRIC 8 in 2006. This early adoption did not have any 
matenal impact on the Group’s fmancial position or results of operations. 

IFRiC Interpretation “No. 9, Reassessment of Embedded Denvatives (“IFRIC 9”) is 
applicable for annual :penods heginning on or after June 1, 2006, with early application 
permitted. This Interpretation appiies to ai1 embedded denvatives under IAS 39 to clar@ 
whether the treahnent of an embedded denvative has to be reassessed if certain events occur. 
IFRIC 9 concludes that; reassessment is prohibited uniess there is a change in the terms of the 
contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that othenuise would have been required 
under the contract, in which case reassessment is required. The Group early adopted IFRIC 9 
in 2006. Such adoption did not have any matenal impact on the Group’s fuiancial position 
and results of operations. 

IFRIC Interpretation No. 1 1 ,  Group and Treasury Share Transactions (“IFRIC l i”)  is 
effective for annual penods beginning on or after March 1, 2007, with early application 

1, 
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permitted. This Interpretation addresses how to apply IFRS 2 to share-based payment 
arrangements involving an entity’s own equity instruments or equity instruments of another 
entity in the Same group. Specifically the Interpretation: 

requires a share-based payment arrangement in which an entity receives goods or 
services as consideration for its own equity-instruments to be accounted for as an 
equity-settled share-based payment transaction, regardless of how the equity 
instruments needed are obtained; 
provides guidance on whether share-based payment arrangements in which suppliers 
of goods or services of an entity are provided with equity instruments of the entity’s 
parent should be accounted for as cash-settled or equity-settled in the entity’s 
fmncial statements. 

This Interpretation is relevant for the Company’s stock-award plans, since the Company 
granted in 2006 and 2005 rights to its equity insûuments to the employees of its subsidiaries. The 
Company early adopted IFRIC 11 in 2006. 

e) Standards that are notyet e f f e h e  and have not been early adopted by the Group: 

International Financial Reporting Standard No. 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures (“IFRS 
7”) is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2007, with early adoption 
permitted. Its main objective is the revision and enhancernent of the disclosures in 
International Accounting Standard No. 30, Disclosures in the Financial Statements of Banks 
and Similar Financial Institutions (“IAS 3 0 )  and International Accounting Standard No. 32, 
Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation (“IAS 32”). IFRS 7 requires disclosure of 
the significance of fmancial insûuments for an entity’s fmancial position and performance, 
which incorporate many of the requirements previously in IAS 32. IFRS 7 also requires 
qualitative and quantitative information about exposure to r i s k  arising from financial 
insûuments, including specified minimum disclosures about credit risk, liquidity risk and 
market risk. The Group wil1 adopt IFRS 7 in 2007 and is currently evaluating the effect of 
IFRS 7 on its disclosures concerning financial insûuments. 

International Financial Reporting Standard No. 8, Operating Segments (“IFRS 8”), is 
effective for annual penods beginning on or afier January 1, 2009. IFRS 8 replaces 
International Accounting Standard No. 14, Segment Reporting (“IAS 14”) and aligns segment 
reporting with the requirements of the US standard Statement of Financial Accounting 
Standard No. 131, Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Retated Information 
(“FAS 131”). IFRS 8 requires an entity to adopt the “management approach” to reporting on 
the fmancial performance of its operating segments. The adoption of IFRS 8 will only impact 
the format and extent of disclosures presented in the Company’s consolidated fmancial 
statements on segment information, which is currently presented in Note 32. 

fl Interpretations that are not yet effective and not relevant for the Group S operations: 

The following interpretations to existing standards that have been puhlished are mandatory 
for the Group’s accounting periods on or after March 2006 or later periods hut are not 
relevant for the Group’s operations: 

o IFRIC 7, Applying the Restatement Approach under IAS 29, Financial 
Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies; 

O 
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o IFRIC 10, Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment 

o IFRIC 12, Service Concession Arrangements 

3 - INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 

Dccmber 31.2üüó December 31,2005 
Beginning afthc year ............................................. ........................... 35 6 

Hynix ST InvstmnI ................................... 212 38 
H p i x  ST Guaran tee ....... 

Acqubitioa of iovatmoatr: ,, 

- 15 
Sde  of invatmentl: 

(6) 
(3) share of loss Of (7) 

....................... ........................... 6 

................................... 261 35 

............................................... - 

- 

The Group's share of the results of its principal associates, al1 of which are unlisted, and its 
share of the assets, are detailed as follows: 

December 3 1,2006 
Country of 

Name Incorporatlon Assefs LiabliiUrs Revenues F'roiìU(ioss) Y. Interest held 
H p x  ST Investment China 2.100 1,360 243 (19) 33% 

December 3 1,2005 
Country of 

Name Incorporatlon Assefs Liibiiitia Revenues Proflü(ioas) % Interest held 
Hynix ST Invsment China i 17 14 - (10) 33% 

HynUr ST Invesheni 

The Company signed in 2004 an agreement with Hynix Semiconductor Inc. to build a front- 
end memory manufac$ing facility in Wuxi City, Jiangsu Province, Cbina. Under the 
agreement, Hynix Semiconductor Inc. wil1 contribute $500 million for a 67% equity interest 
and the Company willkcontribute $250 million for a 33% equity interest. in addition, the 
Company committed to~~grant a fmncial guarantee on $250 million in long-term financing to 
the venture guaranteed lby the subordinated collateral of the venture's assets. The Company 
contributed the total $250 million as previously planned in the venture agreement by 
December 31, 2006. *e to regulatory and withholding issues the Company could not 
directiy provide the venture with the $250 million long-term f m c i n g  as originally planned. 
As a consequence, in the fourth quarter of 2006, the Company entered into a ten-year term 
debt guarantee agreement with an extemal f m c i a l  institution through which the Company 
guaranteed the repayment of the loan by the venture to the bank. The guarantee agreement 
includes the Company placing up to $250 milIion in cash on a deposit account. The guarantee 
deposit wil1 be used by: the bank in case of repayment failure ûom the venture, being $250 
million the maximum potential amount of future payments the Company, as guarantor, could 
be required to make under the guarantee. In 2006 the Company placed $218 rnillion of cash 
on the guarantee deposit account, which was reported as "restricted cash for equity 
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investments” on the consolidated balance sheet as at December 31,2006. The debt guarantee 
was evaluated under L4S 39, Financial Inshwments: Recognition and Measuremenis. It 
resulted in the recognition of a $15 million liability, corresponding to the fair value of the 
guarantee at inception of the transaction. The liability was reported on the h e  “Other non- 
current liabilities” in the consolidated balance sheet as at December 31, 2006 and was 
recorded against the value of the equity investment. 

The Company accounts for its share in the Hynix ST venture under the equity method based 
on the actual results of the venture. Total equity investment amounted to $261 million as of 
December 31, 2006, after losses toîailing $7 million in the year ended December 31, 2006 
recorded as “share of loss of associates” and including the $15 million for the fair value of 
the guarantee agreement. 

4 - AVAiLABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 

in 2006, the Company invested $460 million of existing cash in eleven floating rate notes 
with primary fmancial institutions with minimum rating “AI/A+” with a mahuity between 
twenty one months and six years. These marketable securities were reported as current assets 
as at December 31, 2006 since they represent investments of funds available for current 
operations. These fnancial assets are classified as available-for-sale and are recorded at fair 
value, which is slightly lower than the carrying value as at December 3 1,2006, with changes 
in fair value recognized as a separate component of “Other Reserves” in the consolidated 
statement of changes in shareholders’ equity. Subsequently, the Company entered int0 a basis 
asset swap for one floating rate note for a notional amount of $50 million purchased at par. 
Even if strictly related to the underlying note, the swap is contractually transferable 
independently of the marketable security to wbich it is atîached. As such, the asset swap was 
recorded separately from the underlying financial asset and was reflected at its fair value in 
the consolidated balance sheet on the h e  “Other receivables and assets” as at December 31, 
2006. The changes in the fair value of this denvative instrument were recorded in the 
consolidated statement of income as part of “Other income and expenses, net” and did not 
exceed $1 million for the year ended December 31,2006. 

in 2006 and 2005, no fnancial asset classified as available-for-sale was sold. As at December 
3 1, 2005, the Company did not report any financial assets classified as available-for-sale. 

5 - TRADE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

Trade accounts receivable consisted of the following: 

O 

O 

O 

O 

O 

O 

O 

Doeernber 31,2006 Deeembrr31,2005 
Trade ~ecoynts receivable .............................................................. 1,620 1,517 

Tatsl ............................................................................................... IJ89 1,490 
................................................................ Provision for impaimenl (31) (27) 

impairment losses recognized in 2006 and 2005 were $7 million and $7 million, respectively. 
In 2006 and 2005, one customer, the Nokia goup of companies, represented 21.8% and 
22.4% of consolidated total revenues, respectively. Creation and release of provision for 
impaired receivables have been reported as selling, general and administrative expenses in 
the consolidated statements of income. 
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6 - INVENTORIES 

Inventories consisted of the following: 

üecernber31,2006 December 31.20M 
Raw marelials ................................................................................. 80 w 

O 

O 

O 

O 

O 

O 

I 0  

Wo&-in-pmccs ............................................................................. 1,033 
Finishcd pmducb ........................................................................... 527 
Tatd ............................................................................................... 1,640 

7 - OTHER RECEIVABLES AND ASSETS 

881 
471 

1,413 

Other receivables and assets consisted of the following: 

December 31,2006 December 31.20M 
Rscivabla fmm govemment sgencia ................................................ 230 216 

Advanea to supplim ............................................................................ 5 2 
Taxe and othm govemmcnt rseivables ................. 194 189 

13 10 
........................................ 37 48 

Sundry debtors ............................................................................... 39 67 
Other ................... ......................... 74 44 

.................................................................... 591 586 

The carrying amounts are assumed to approxhate fair value. Receivables kom govemment 
agencies relate to research and development contracts, research tax credits, industrialization 
contracts and capital investment projects. As at December 31, 2006, the Company identified 
certain machinery and,equipment to be disposed of by sale, amounted to $4 million, located 
in its backend sites in Morocco and Malaysia, following the decision of the Company to get 
disengaged from certain activities as part of its latest reshucturing initiatives. These assets are 
reflected at their canying value, which did not exceed their selling price less selling costs. 
These long-lived assets are not depreciated until disposal by sak which is expected to occur 
within one year. As at December 31, 2005, assets held for sale amounted to $4 million and 
primarily consisted of land to he disposed of by sale located in France. The property was sold 
as originally planned in 2006 and generated a gain on sale of non-current assets amounting to 
$3 million. 

8 -GOODWILL 

Changes in the canying amount of goodwill are presented in the following segment-level 
summary of goodwill allocation: 

AppUcitioa SpeclBc Memory 
Producb Producta Other Total 

December 31, 2004 ..................... __ 123 64 I 188 
(10) Goodwill Impahnent (10) 

........................................ (3) ( 1 )  (4) Forti@ currcncy translation - 

(6) 
8 

Gmdwill Irnpaimini (6) 
Foreign cumncy hanslalion - 

- - .................................................. 

December 31, 2005 .................................................... 113 61 - 174 
- - .................................................. 

- 8 ........................................ 
December 31, 2006 " ...... "......"...."...... 107 69 - 176 
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Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGUs”). The recoverable 
amount of a CGU is determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use 
cash flow projections, on a pre-tax basis, based on f m c i a l  budgets approved by 
management covering a five-year period. 

The key-assumptions used for value-in-use calculations are based on a five-year plan of each 
CGU tested including average annual revenues growth, in aggregate for relevant CGUs, 
higher than Group’s average by approximately 7% resulting h m  the forecasted faster growth 
for these businesses and their incoming new products, and an average gross margin over the 
five-year period withiin a range of 30% and 48%. A mid-point 12% discount rate has been 
applied to the cashflow projections. 

These assumptions have been wed, as applicable, for the analysis of each CGU witbin the 
product segments. Management determined budgeted gross margin based on past 
performance and its expectations for the market development. The average yearly growth 
rates used are consistent with the forecasts included in industry reports. The discount rates 
used are pre-tax and reflect specific r i s k  relating to the relevant CGUs. 

In 2006, the Company decided to cease product development from technologies inherited 
from Tioga business acquisition. The Company reports Tioga business as part of the 
Application Specific Product Groups (“ASG”) product segment. Following this decision, the 
Company incurred in 2006 a $6 million impairment charge corresponding to the write-off of 
Tioga goodwill. This impairment charge was reported on the h e  “impairment, resûucíuring 
charges and other related closure costs” of the consolidated statement of income for the year 
ended December 31,2006 (see Note 20). 

in 2005, the Group decided to reduce its Access technology products for Customer Premises 
Equipment (“CPE”) modem products. The Group reports CPE business as part of the Access 
CGU, included in the Application Specific Products Group (“ASG”) segment. Following the 
decision to discontinue a portion of tbis CGU, the Group, in compliance with IAS 36, 
impairment of Assets, re-measured using market comparables goodwill associated with the 
business to be discontinued on the basis of the relative values of the business to be 
discontinued and the portion of the CGU retained. The reassessment resulted in a $10 million 
goodwill impairment in 2005. 

9 - INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

Intangible assets consisted of the following: 

Accumulsted Amortization 
December 31,2006 Crmr Colt snd Impiimenb Net Cast 
Purchased teehnologies Bi licenm .................... 353 (258) 95 

............................................ 44 Pmhased sofhvare 1 93 (149) 
intcmally àeveloped software ........................... 134 (62) 72 
Capihlized development cash .......................... 543 (25) 518 

.................................................................. 729 Totd 1,223 (494) 

O 

01 

O 
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Aeeumulited AmartLzalian 
December 31,2005 G r m  Cmt end Impairmeota Net Cast 
Pwchaoed Ishnologies & iicms+ .................... 309 (199) 110 
PurchaoedSOfhvars. ................... 162 (114) 48 

114 (48) 66 
238 (4) 234 
823 (365) 458 

tof inîangible assets are detailed as follows: 

Rirchased Interndy Cspitaüzed 
technologles & Rirchased developcd devrlapment 

Ucenses software sofmare costa - Totai 
Decrmber31, 2004 ." ..-...-......_......_ 176 48 67 - 291 
Addilions ................ 18 I5 29 238 300 

(4) I (3) Dispmals (2) 
12 (12) Transfers - 

(25)  (14) (4) (102) 
(22) 

Amniration cxpense (59) 
Inlpaimient charges (22) 
Foreign eurreney tranhtion .... (1) (3) (1) (5) 
December 31, 2005 ......_............ "."..._ 110 48 66 234 458 
Addilias ................ 34 7 40 311 392 

(1) 
I 

(12) Dieposals 5 6 
Transfm I 9 (9) 
Amoniation upensc (52) (28) (14) (21) (ll5) 

(6) (10) Impaimient chargcn (4) 
Foreign eurreney w I 2 I - 4 
December 31, 2 w 6  ... "."......._..._.-_.._ 95 44 72 518 729 

- 
- - ................................................ 

- - ............................... - 
- 

........................ - 
- ................. 

.................... 
- - 

The aggregate amortidtion expense in 2006 and 2005 was $115 million and $102 milliort, 
respectively. The 2006, amortization expense included $34 million in costs of sales, $50 
million in research and development and $31 million in selling general and administrative. 
The 2005 amortization expense included $10 million in costs of sales, $61 rnillion in research 
and development and $31 million in selling general and administrative. 

Pursuant to its decision to cease product development from technologies inherited from Tioga 
business acquisition, $e Company recorded in 2006 a $4 million impaiment charge on 
technologies purchasedjas pari of Tioga business acquisition, wbicb were determined to be 
without any altemativelluse. This impaiment charge was reported on the h e  "irnpainnent, 
reshucturing charges 4 d  other related closure costs" of the consolidated statement of income 
for the year ended December 3 1,2006 (see Note 20). 

10 - PROPERTY, PI)ANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Propetty, plant and equipment consisted of the following: 

1, 

1: 
Decembrr31, 2006 G r w  Cost Aceumulnted Depreciatioa Net Cost 

91 - 91 
1.208 (319) 889 

61 09)  22 
3,135 (1,668) 1,467 
14.46.3 (10,940) 3523 
551 (611) I10 

................................................. 38 
289 (3) 286 

................... 19,954 (13528) 6,426 

................................................. 

Othcr tangjble fixed orrefs 156 (118) 
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i 1  - INVESTMENTS AND OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 

O 

O 

O 

! O  

e 

Investments and other non-cument assets consisted of the following: 

Decemkr31,2006 Deccmber31,2005 

Invaminik? ........................................................................................... 39 36 
Long-term meivables relaled to hnding .............................................. 36 33 
Long-tem meivables relaied tol, rrhind 33 27 
Deposits and other long-term recsivables .............................................. 35 22 
TotiL ..._....-l....l..ll............... : ................................ " .........-.....-.... 143 118 

.......................................... 

The funding has been classified as long-tem receivable and is reflected in the balance sheet 
at its discounted net present value. The effective interest rates on non-current receivables 
were as foliows: 

December 31,2006 Deeember31,200S 
L o n g - t a  rate related 10 funding meivables ....................................... 4.03% 1.26% 

i 2  - OTHER PAYABLES, ACCRUED LIABILITIES m PROVISIONS 

Other payables, accmed liabilities and provisions consisted of the following: 

Decrmkr 31,2006 Dceembcr 31,2005 

Provisions : 
Provision for reshuchinng (Notc 20) 29 41 
Provision for i@ claim ......... ? ............................................................ 
Provision for warranty cos1 6 1 

- - 

Total provisions 35 48 

Taxe other than income mes ................... 78 71 
salaries and wagm .................... .............................................. 308 248 
Sacial chzges ............................................................ 135 113 
Advances rneived on g 28 24 
Termination a d  detincd contibution plan bmefits ..... 10 21 
Othcr acmied liabilities 19 86 
To~.L." .... ........................................................................... 613 617 

c3. 
Cl,' 
I 

Other accmed liabilities are composed of individually not material amounts at December 31, 
2006 and 2005 respectively. 

total provision related.to income tax potential claims and risk exposures for an amount of $70 
million and $123 million, respectively. These amounts are reflected in the "cument income 
tax liabilities" in the CÖmpany consolidated balance sheets. 

13 - RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 

The Group has a n q b e r  of defmed benefit pension plans covering employees in various 
countnes. The plans provide for pension benefits, the amounts of which are calculated based 
on factors such as y e q  of service and employee compensation levels. The Group uses at end 

q 
"71 in addition to the provisions listed above, at December 3 i ,  2006 and 2005 the Company had a I 

- 89 - 



periods, measurement date for al1 its plans. Eligibility is generally determined in accordance 
with local statutory requirements. The amounts recognized in the balance sheet are 
determined as follows: 

nrrmherl l .  Z M  neccmher 11.2nn5 

Benefit obligations wholly or panially funded .......................... (353) (303) 
Fak value af plan assets ............................................................ 
Benefit obligations whoiiy unfunded.. ............................. 

24 1 
(220) 

I94 
(207) 

Unmognued actuial  gain an (13) 16 
unmognued past service cost.. 9 

Totai pension Ilrbüitia ........................... Î  ...._.._........... ". 0 3 6 )  (300) 
The movement in the iiahility recognized in the consolidated balance sheet is as follows: 

2006 2005 
Beginning of the year ................ 300 303 

Total expense charged in the income statement ....... 63 50 

End of year ..................................................................... .... ..................................... 336 300 

Exchange differences .......................................................................................................... 31 (23) 

(58)  (30) 

The actual return on plan assets was $15 million in 2006 and $21 million in 2005. 

The weighted average assumptions used in the determination of the benefít obligations were 
as follows: 

Asrumpiioos 2006 2005 
Discount rate .......................................................................................... 4.34% 4.71% 
Fuhire saiary inereases ........................................................................... 3.34% 3.14% 

The amounts recognized in the income statement are as follows: 

Year roded Yenr cnded 
December 31,2w6 December 31,2005 

.................. 40 40 
25 21 

Expected rehm on plan ~ssetE ................................................................ (13) U I )  
Arnartization ofunmognizedpriorsemice cos1 ..... I 2  
Arnartilation ofachiana1 net l o s  (gain) 

( 5 )  Gain on plan settlement .......................................................................... 
Total pension E O S ~  ................................................. "..."............-.. 63 50 

4 

.. 

The weighted average assumptions wed in the determination of pension costs were as 
follows: 

Assumptloas 2006 2005 
Discount mie ............................................................ 4.74% 4.34% 
Expected long-tem rate of rehm on funds for the p 
the year ................................................................................................... 6.05% 6.34% 
Fuhire saiary increases _.. .................. ....... 3.14% 3.34% 

e 

O 

O !  

O 

e 

O i 
-90- 



o 

Target 
allocation 

O 

Percentage of Plan Assets 
at December 

O 
Asset Category 2006 

o 

2006 2005 

The discount rate was determined by companson against long-tem corporate bond rates 
applicable to the respective country of each plan. in developing the expected long-tem rate 
of rem on assets, i e  Group modelled the expected long-tem rates of return for broad 
categones of investments held by the plan against a number of various potential econornic 
scenarios. 

Assumptions regarding íùhue mortality expenence are set based on advice fiom published 
statistics and experience in each territory. 

Equity secuities 53% 55% 61% 

Fked income secuities 33% 33% 31% 

Real estate 

Other 

5% 4% 2% 

9% 8% 

Total 100% 

The Company's investment strategy for its pension plans is to maximize the long-tem rate of 
return on plan assets,,with an acceptable level of risk in order to minimize the cost of 
providing pension benefits wbile maintaining adequate fundmg levels. The Company's 
practice is to penodically conduct a review in each subsidiary of its asset allocation strategy. 
A portion of the fixed income allocation is reserved in short-tem cash to provide for 
expected benefits to be paid. The Company's equity porîfolios are managed in such a way as 
to achieve optimal diversity. The Company does not manage any assets internally. 

The expected return on plan assets was determined by considering the expected returns 
available on the asSe$ underlying the current investment policy. Expected yield on fixed 
interest investments are based on goss redemption yields as at the balance sheet date. 
Expected returns on equity and property investments reflect long-term real rates of return 
experienced in the respective markets. 

100% 100% 
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0.5% tbat resulted in, a higher principal amount at issuance of $1,400 million and net 
proceeds of $1,386 million. The bonds are convertible at any time by the bolders at the rate of 
29.9144 shares of the Group’s ordinary shares for each one thousand dollar face value of the 
bonds. The holders bad the option to redeem their convertible bonds on August 5,2006 at a 
pnce of $985.09, on August 5, 2008 at $975.28 and on August 5, 2010 at $965.56 per one 
thousand dollar face value of the notes. As a result of this bolder’s redemption option in 
August 2006, the outhnding amount of 2013 bonds was classified in the consolidated 
balance sheet as “current portion of long-term debt” as of December 31, 2005. At any time 
from August 20,2006 $e Group had the option to redeem for cash at their negative accreted 
value al1 or a portion of the convertible bonds subject to the level of the Group’s share price. 

Wben applying tbe fust-time adoption requirements as set out in IFRS I, the Group assessed 
for separate accounting in 2005 the two elemenîs of equity and liability for the 2013 
convertible bond, becakje it was the only convertible debt outstanding at the L4S 32 / 39 
transition date on Jan* 1 ,  2005. The fair value of the liability component and the equity 
conversion component1;were determined at issuance of the bond. The bond terms enable the 
bolder to receive cash ,settlement under certain circumstances and, consequently, the Group 
bas classified the share conversion option as a ñnancial liability. The vaiue at issuance of 
this share conversion option was $1 14 million, which bas been reduced and fully reflected in 
adjusted retained eamings at Januaiy’ 1,2005 because of the market expectation that the bond 
wil1 he redeemed w i ~ o u t  any bolder converting. Adjusted retained eamings at Januaiy 1, 
2005 als0 included tbe ~cumulative amortized interest cost recorded on the bond totalling $54 
million. The fair value of the debt component of the convertible debt amounted to $1,356 
million as of December 31, 2005. Based on the existing market conditions at issuance, 
management estimated~~that separately valuing tbe embedded share conversion option would 
not be matenally different from calculating the share conversion value as the residual amount 
of the total bond proceeds, after deducting the fair value of the debt component. The Group 
determined the fair vaiue of the debt component using a market interest rate for an equivalent 
non-convertible debt over tbe penod of future probable cash flows as estimated on the date of 
issuance. This was detekiied to he a three-year timeframe corresponding to the penod to the 
fmt date of redemption for cash at the option of the bolder. Tbe fair value was calculated 
using cash flows discohted at a rate based on the non-convertible debt rate of 2.96%. The 
embedded nghts of the bond holder to extend tbe bond beyond the probable thee year penod, 
by not exercishg their redemption option, were measured at fair value through profit and 
loss. The fair value of these embedded nghts’was not material at the end of 2005. 

Pursuant to the terms :of the convertible bonds due 2013, the Company was required to 
purcbase, at the option of the bolders, 1,397,493 convertible bonds, at a pnce of $985.09 eacb 
between August 7 andl’August 9, 2006. Tbis resulted in a cash payment of $1,377 million. 
The Company may be~~ required to purcbase, at the option of the bolder, the outstanding 
convertible bonds for c y h  on August 5,2008 andor August 5,2010 at a pnce of $975.28 and 
$965.56 per convertible, bond, respectively. Tbe outstanding 2013 convertible debt amounted 
to approximately $2 million as at December 31, 2006, corresponding to the remaining 2,505 
bonds. 

I! 

In February 2006, the Company issued $974 million principal amount at maturity of zero 
coupon senior convertible bon& due in February 2016. The bonds were issued at 100% of 
pnncipal with a yield to maîuriiy of 1.5% and resulted in net proceeds to the Company of 
$974 million less transaction fees. The bonds are convertible by the bolder at any time prior 
to maturity at a convedion rate of 43.1 18317 shares per one thousand dollars face value of 

C 3  
C‘I’ 
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the bonds correspondmg to 41,997,240 equivalent shares. In the event of any change in 
control, the holder has the right to require the Company to purchase for cash al1 or any part of 
the bolder’s convertible bonds at its accreted value. The holders can also redeem the 
convertible bonds on February 23, 201 1 at a pnce of $1,077.58, on February 23, 2012 at a 
pnce of $1,093.81 and on February 24,2014 at a pnce of $1,126.99 per one thousand dollars 
face value of the bonds. The Company can call the bonds at any time a k r  March 10,2011 
subject to the Company’s share pnce exceeding 130% of the accreted value divided by the 
conversion rate for 20 out of 30 consecutive trading days. The Company may redeem for 
cash at the principal amount at issuance plus accumulated gross yield all, but not a portion, of 
the convertible bonds at any time if 10% or less of the aggregate principal amount at issuance 
of the convertible bon& remain outstanding in certain circumstances or in the event of 
changes to the tax laws of the Netherlands or any successor jurisdiction. 

o 

The Group assessed for separate accounting at issuance of the bond the hvo elements of 
equity and liability of the compound instrument. The bond terms enable the holder to receive 
cash settlement under cerîain circumstances and, consequently, the Group has classified the 
share conversion option as a financial liability in “Other non-current liabilities”, wbich was 
reported at fair value tbrough profit and loss in the consolidated balance sheet at December 
31, 2006. Based on the existing market conditions at issuance, management estimated that 
separately valuing the embedded share conversion option would not be matenally different 
from calculating this share conversion value as the residual amount of the total bond 
proceeds, less the fair value of the debt component. The fair value of the debt component of 
the convertible debt amounted to $700 million at issuance and includes the value of the 
holder’s redemption option and the Company’s call options since these embedded denvatives 
were considered to be closely related to the host debt contract and could not be accounted for 
separately as freestanding denvatives. Tbe Group determined the fair value of the liability 
component using a market interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible debt over the penod 
of future probable cash flows as estimated on the date of issuance. This was determined to be 
a ten-year t i m e h e  correspondmg to the penod from issuance to maturity. The fair value 

5.50%, reduced by 0.58% corresponding to the value of the put and call options. 

in 2006, the Company entered into cancellable swaps with a combined notional value of $200 
million to hedge the fair value of a portion of the convertible bonds due 2016 canying a fmed 
interest rate. The cancellable swaps convert the fmed rate interest expense recorded on the 
convertible bond due to 2016 to a variable interest rate based upon adjusted LIBOR. These 

O 

O 

was calculated using cash flows discounted at a rate based on the non-convertible debt rate of O 

interest rate swap hedging transactions are descnbed in further detail in Note 30. O 

The convertible debt recognized in the balance sheet is calculated as follows: 

Convertible debt 2013: December 31. 
2006 

Face mlue af Uie convertible &bi issued on August 2003 1,400 
Conversion option elassifieà as a fiinancial liability .................................................................................... 
Rcpayment in cash at redemption date ............................ (1,377) 

Llibiilty component at luumcr .............. ................................................ (22) 
Interest expense reeagnired in 2006 co 
statemcd of income ......................................................................................................... 24 
Convertible debt 2013 as of December 31, 2006 .......................................................... 2 

.................................................................. 
( 1 3 3  Aecumulated inIerest reeognized on retained -in@ ............................ O 



e 

e .  
Convertible debt 2016: Decembrr31, 

2006 

974 
(274) 

?oa 
37 

737 

Llablllty component 1 brumee ..................... 

Convertlblc drbl 2016 as of pecembcr 31, 2006 ..................................................................................... 

O 

e 

e 

l 

e 

l 

e 

e 

Senior Bonds 
In March 2006, STMic~pelectronics Finance B.V. ("ST BV"), a wholly owned subsidiary of 
the Company, issued floating rate senior bonds with a principal amount of Euro 500 million 
at an issue pnce of 99.873%. The notes, which mature on March 17,2013, pay a coupon rate 
of the three-month E y b o r  plus 0.40% on the 17th of June, September, December and March 
of each year through maturity. In the event of changes to the tax laws of the Netherlands or 
any successor jurisdicgon, ST BV or the Company, may redeem the full amount of senior 
bonds for cash. in the event of certain change in control triggering events, the holders can 
cause ST BV or the Company to repurchase al1 or a portion of the bonds outstanding. 

Credit facilities 
The Company and its subsidianes has uncommitted short-tem credit facilities with several 
fuiancial institutions totalling $1,107 million at December 31, 2006. The Company has also a 
$323 million long-temi credit facility with the European Investment Bank as part of a fundmg 
program loan, of which $140 million were wed as at December 31, 2006. The Company 
maintains also unco*itted foreign exchange facilities totalling $846 million at December 
31,2006. At December 31, 2006, amounts available under the short-tem h e s  of credit were 
not reduced by any bobwing. As at December 31, 2005, amounts available under the lines 
of credit were reduced by horrowings of $1 1 million at a weighted average interest rate of 
4.40% 

15 - OTHER NON CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Year ended Year endcd 
December 31, Deeember31, 

2006 2005 

Share conversion option of convertible debl2016 classified 89 
financial liability .................................................................................... 277 
Othcr ...................................... ! ............................................................... 43 
Balancc u of Deccmkr 31, 2üO6 ........................................................ 320 

16 -SHARE CAPITAL 

'ïhe changes in share capita1 are detailed as follows: 

- 
16 
16 

Number of Ordlnary Cnpltsl Treuury 
Shares outstanding share Surplus sharea Toial 

Balance u a f h n u q  I ,  20 135 ........................... 891,90899ï 1,150 1,924 (348) 2,726 
Employee share award %heme: 

Conversion af bonk 59 
Balnnce rn of December 31, 2W5 ...................... 894,424279 1,153 1,956 (348) 2,761 
Employee share award rhnne: 

Exercise ofshare options.!' 2,515223 3 32 - 3s ............................. - - - ............................................ - 
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I The treasury shares have been designated for allocation under the Company’s share based 

remuneration programs on non-vested shares including such plans as approved by the 2005 
and 2006 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders. As of December 3!, 2006, 637,109 of 
these treasury shares i:were transferred to employees under the Company’s share based 
remuneration programs, following the vesting as of April 27,2006 of the first tranche of the 
stock award plan granted in 2005 and the acceleration of the vesting of i limited number of 
stock awards. I 

O 

O 

O 

O 

O 

O 

i 

16.4 - Stock option pians 

in 1995, the Shareholders voted to adopt the 1995 Employee Share Option Plan (he  “1995 
Plan”) whereby options for up to 33,000,000 shares may be granted in: instalments over a 
five-year period. Under the 1995 Plan, the options may be granted ’9 purchase ordmary 
shares at a price not lower than the market price of the shares on thy date of grant. At 
December 31, 2006, wder the 1995 Plan, 7,663,650 of the granted options outstanding 
originally vest 50% after three years and 50% after four years following ?e date of the grant; 
6,189,852 of the granvd options vest 32% afier two years, 32% after t l y  years and 36% 
after four years following the date of the grant. The options expire 10 ye,m aíîer the date of 
grant. During 2005, the vesting periods for al1 options under the plan were accelerated. 

whereby each in 1996, the Shareholders voted to adopt the Supervisoiy Board 
member of the Supervisory Board was eligible to receive, during 
1998, 18,000 options!~for 1996 and 9,000 options for both 
ordinary shares at the closing market pnce of the shares on the 
three-year period, the professional advisors to the Supervisory 
9,000 options for 1996land 4,500 options for both 1997 and 1998. Under $e Plan, the options 
vest over one year and,are exercisable for a period expiring eight years from the date of grant. 

in 1999, the Shareholders voted to renew the SupeMsory Board Option Plan whereby each 
member of the Supervisory Board may receive, during the three-year period 1999-2001, 
18,000 options for 1999 and 9,000 options for both 2000 and 2001 tolpurchase shares of 
capita1 stock at the clÖsing market price of the shares on the date of the grant. In the Same 
three-year period, the~; professional advisors to the SupeMsory Board lmay receive 9,000 
options for 1999 and 4,500 options for both 2000 and 2001. Under the P b ,  the options vest 
over one year and are exercisable fora period expiring eight years kom t h ~  date of grant. 

The reason for granting share options to Supervisoiy Board Memhers y d  other share-based 
compensation is disclosed in the Company’s Govemance charter. The Company believes that 
such compensation to Supervisory Board Members enabies better I identification with 
shareholder interest y d  that share-based compensation is conducive to attracting and 
retaining the most suilhle candidates to accept service as Supervisoiy IBoard Members in 
light of worldwide pGctices in the semiconductor and technology indystries. Share-based 
compensation for Supervisory Board Members is subject to a prior shareholders’ approval. 

In 2001, the Shareholders voted to adopt the 2001 Employee Share Option Plan (the “2001 
Plan”) whereby options for up to 60,000,000 shares may be granted in’ instalments over a 
five-year period. The options may be granted to purchase ordinary shareslat a pnce not lower 
than the market price of the shares on the date of grant. In connection yith a revision of its 
equity-based compensation policy, the Company decided in 2005 to accelerate the vesting 

I 

I 

I 



penod of al1 outstanding unvested share options. The options expire ten years afler the &te of 
grant. 

In 2002, the Shareholders voted to adopt a Share ûption Plan for Supervisory Board 
Members and Professionals of the Supervisory Board. Under this plan, 12,000 options can he 
granted per year to each member of the Supervisory Board and 6,000 options per year to each 
professional advisor to the Supervisory Board. Options wil1 vest 30 days after the date of 
graut. The options expire ten years afler the &te of gmnt. 

A summary of share option activiiy for the plans for the two years ended December 31,2006 
and 2005 follows: 

Mce Per Sbnrc 
Weigbted 

Number of Sharm Range Aversge 

Outstanding at December 31, 2 W  ............................... 65,424207 $12.03-$62.01 $29.18 

Options grsnted: 

Plan ................................. 
Options forfeited ........................................................... (2,364,862) $12.03-$62.01 $29.65 

.......................................................... $13.88 Options exercis ed (2,542,978) $12.03-$14.23 

2001 Plan ............................................................... 42,2aO $16.73-$17.31 $16.91 
SupeMsory Board 

Outstanding at December 31, 2005 ... ...................... 60,áS,M7 S12.03-$62.01 S29.80 

Options gmnted: 

Options expired ....... (16,832) $12.03 $12.03 
Options forfeii ed..... ( I  ,9 12,584) $12.03-$62.0l $30.66 

(2,303,899) $12.03-$17.08 $12.03 

Outstanding at December 31, 2006 ........................... 56,325,251 512.03-Só2.01 $30.54 

The related weighted average market pnce of options at the time of exercise was $16.00 and 
$17.13 for the years ended December 31,2006 and December 31,2005, respectively. 

Share options exercisable following acceleration of vesting for al1 outstanding unvested share 
options were as follows: 

December31, December 31, 
2006 2005 

Options exercisable ............................................................................. 56,325,252 60358,567 
Weigùted average exercire pnce ......................................................... $30.50 $29.80 

The weighted average remaining contraciual life of options outstanding as of December 31, 
2006 and 2005 was 4.7 and 5.5, respectively. 

The range of exercise pnces, the weighted average exercise pnce and the weighted average 
remaining contractual life of options exercisahle as of December 31,2006 were as follows: 

O 

O 

O 

01 

01 
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O 
Welghted average 

- Number of ihirea opnon prire range erereire prlee 

189,455 $I2.03-$17.31 $1704 
29,716,135 519.18-1624.88 $22.04 

217,360 $25.90-$29.70 $2720 
19,990,687 $3 1.09-144.00 $34.37 
6,2 I 1,6 I5 $50.69-$62.01 $59,08 

56325552 S12.03-S62.01 530.50 

O 
The range of exercise pnces, the weighted average exercise pnce and i 
remaining contractual life of options exercisable as of December 31,200 

Weighted wenge 
Numbor of rhirea ', OpUoa pricr range excrebe priee - 

O 

O 

O 

O 

O 

The fair value of the Company's share options was estimated under iF 
Scholes option pricing, model since the simple charactenstics of the s 
require complex assumptions. The Gmup has amortized the compensat 
on the grant of share options over the nominal vesting period for eml 
graded vesting of each plan. The compensation expense recorded 
December 3 1,2005 included a charge of $80 million relating to the effe 
vesting penod of al1 Öutstandmg unvested share options during the ti 
which bas been recogbzed immediately for the amount that othenvi 
recognized ratably over the remaining vesting penod. Consequent 
expense was recognised in 2006 on share options. The fair value of shan 
2 provisions was estimated using the following weighted-average assuml 

December 31,2006 - 
Expeetedoptia" life ( y m )  .................................................... 
Weighted averap share price ..:: ......... 
Historical Company share pnce volat 
Risk-free interest rate 
Dividend yield ........................................................................ 

Share options were issued at market pnce. The Company has determine 
pnce volatility to he the most appropnate estimate of future pnce ac 
share pnce volatility is based on statistical analysis of daily share pnc 
option life. The weighted average fair value of share options granted duri 

The following table illustrates the classification of share-based compens 
consolidated statement: of income for grants of employee share optic 
ended December 31,2006 andDecember 31,2005: 

1 

- 99 

Wclgbhd ivrnge 
remalnlng 

~ont rach ld  ilfe 

7.8 
5.2 
6.2 
4.9 
I .6 
4.7 

weighted average 
vere as follows: 

Weighted svenge 
rem ai n I n g 

c0ntrsehi.l IlfC 

1.2 
6.2 
7 2  . ._ 
5.9 
2.6 
5.5 

; 2 using a Black- 
re options did not 
L expense incurred 
yees based on the 
c the year ended 
of accelerating the 
I quarter of 2005, 
would have been 
no compensation 
ptions under F R S  
>ns: 

6. I 
$16.91 
41.5% 
3.8% 
0.69% 

u-I 
I 

he histoncal share 
ity. The histoncal b".'? 
over the expected <:c. 
2005 was $5.24. F? 

-..-I. 
on included in the 
during the years 
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2006 Share award plan 

O 

O 

O 

I. 

O 

O 

O 

2005 Employees Plan 
2005 SupeMsory Board Plan 

Awards vestcd 

$041.04 

$0 
$0 

fl,M 

i ............................................................ 
.......... ...................................................................... I Outatnndiag at December 31, 2005 

Awards gmlcd-2W6 share award plan 
3,965,220 

2005 Employees Plan ! 219,850 , 
2006 Employees Plan ................................................................................. 4,9 16,640 1 
2006 Supenrisory Baard Plan 

@’OW i Awards forfeiied 
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2005 Employees Plan 
2006 Employees Plan 
2006 SupeMsory Baard Plan 

2005 Employees Plan 

2005 Employees Plan 
2005 SupeMsory Board Plan 

Awards Cancelled on failed vesting conditions: 

Awards vestd 

Oufltsadiog at December 31, ZO ............................ .... .. ..... .... 

(l38,6 IS) $0 
(118,430) $0 

(15,OW €1,M 

(1,364,902) $0 

(637,109) $0 
(17,000) €1.04 

6,816,654 $041.04 

The weighted average grant date fair value of nonvested shares granted to employees under 
the 2006 Employee Plan was $17.28. On the 2006 Employee Plan, the fair value of the 
nonvested shares granted, did not reflect any discount since they are not affected hy a market 
condition. On the contrary, the Company estimates the numher of awards expected to vest by 
assessing the prohability of achieving the performance conditions. As at December 3 i, 2006, 
the Company determined that one of the three performance conditions was met and estimated 
that it was probable that the other two performance conditions would he achieved. 
Consequently, the compensation expense recorded on the 2006 Employee Plan reflects the 
assumption that al1 of the awards granted wil1 vest, as far as the service condition is met. 

For the 2005 share award plan, the Company recorded compensation expense for the 
nonvested share awards based on the fair value of the awards at the grant date, which 
represents the $16.61 share price at the date of the grant The fair value of the nonvested 
shares affected by a market condition, reflects a discount of 49.50%, using a Monte Carlo 
path-dependent pricing model to measure the probability of achieving the market condition. 

The following assumptions were incorporated into the Monte Carlo pricing model to estimate 
the 49.50% discount: 

ZOO5 p m t  

Historieal share price valatility ,........_ 
Hisiorical volatility of rcfermce index 
Thrre-year average dividend yield ..... 
Risk-frn inlerst rales ued ....._..._._._. 

Consistent with fair value calculations of stock option grants in prior years, the Company has 
determined the historical share price volatility to be the most appropriate estimate of future 
price activity. The weighted average grant-date fair value of nonvested shares granted in 2005 
was $8.50. 

In 2006, the Company evaluated the impact of the modification of the Employee 2005 Plan 
following the creation of a local sub-plan in one of its subsidiary. However, in compliance 
with F R S  No. 2, Share-Based Payrnent, and considering that the modification of the plan did 
not result in an increase of the awards fair value, the Company continued to recognize the 
compensation expense of the whole original plan over the remaining original requisite service 
period No incremental cost is recognized over the modified extended service period. 

The following tahle illustrates the classification of share-based compensation included in the 
statement of income for grants of nonvested shares during the years ended at December 3 I ,  
2006 and 2005: 
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Denmber31,2006 Deiember 31,2005 
.................................................................. 

6 
3 
9 

cos1 af d c a  10 
Selling. gensral and administrativc 22 
R c a m h  and development 13 
Total rharcbucd compoutlon erprore .................. 45 

The compensation expense recorded for nonvested shares in 2006 ank 2005 included a 
reduction for estimated forfeihues, reflecting the histoncal trend of forfeitures on past stock 
award plans. This estimate wil1 be adjusted for actual forfeihues. For employees eligible for 
retirement dwing the requisite service penod, the Company records compensation expense 
over the applicable shortened penod For awards for whicb vesting was accelerated in 2006, 
the Company recorded immediately the unrecognized compensation expense as at the 
acceleration date. 

In 2006 and 2005, the Company recognized in the income statement total deferred income tax 
benefit related to nonvested share compensation expense amounting to $1 1 million and $2 
million respectively. It also recognized in total equity excess îax benefits amounting to $0 
million as at December 31, 2006 and $1 million 2005. Compensation cost capitalied as part 
of inventory was $5 million and $2 million at December 3 I, 2006 and 2005. As of December 
31,2006 there was $76 million of total unrecognized compensation cost'related to the grant 
of nonvested shares, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted average penod of 13 
months. ! 

17 - OTHER RESERVES 

17.1 - Other reserves 
The accumulated balances related to each component of other reserves were as follows: 

............................... 
............................................ 

Uorealhed 
Forelgo gsln OU Uarraltzed 

Share- rurrriicy svdlablc , gsin (iau) 
Canvrrlible bawd trsnslatlm for-male , on Total other 

drbt payment dilierenee reeurltla derlvaüvn reSeNe3 

78 1,097 - 59 IJ34 Bnlnoee as of December 31,2001 ..__... 
Convertible debi - equily componcni .., - - 
Employee share awards schemcs: I 

Value af senieca pmvided .............. 118 118 
Fareign currency translalion differencca. ( 7 W  I (764) 

Transfer 10 net income (59) (59) 
unrealucd l o s  ................................ 

~ (14) (14) 
Tax effe3 ........................................ 6 6 

Balaoee Ed of k r m b e r  31,2o(H .. "..... - 1% 333 - 521 , (8) 
Convertible debt - equily component ... 
Employee share war& schemca: - 

Value of services pmvided ....... 46 46 

- 

Cashflow hedge: 
.................... 

- - 

Foreign eumncy waslation diiíaences. 532 532 
Cash flow hedgc: 

8 8 
............................. 7 7 

Transfer 10 nci inmm 
Unrealked pmfit 

(1)  
1,113 

Tax effeci (1) 
......... 6 Bslsoee as of December 31,2006 - 242 865 - 

Certain prior year items have been reclassiíied to conform with current year preseniation. The 
disclosure contained within the consolidated statement of changes in shareholders' equity has 
been amended to more appropnately reflect the categorkation of other reserves and retained 
eamings. 

........................................ 

C3i 
lJ'1 
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17.2 - Dividends 

At the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders on April 27,2006, shareholders approved the 
disiribution of $0.12 per share in cash dividends. The dividend m o m t  of approximately 
$107 million was paid in the second quarter of 2006. 

At the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders on March 18, 2005, shareholders approved 
the distribution of $0.12 per share in cash dividends. The dividend m o m t  of approximately 
$107 million was paid in the second quarter of 2005. 

18 - EARNINGS PER SEFARE 

For the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, earnings per share (“EPS”) were 
calculated as follows: 

Year ended Yenr ended 
Decrmber31, December 31, 

ZOO6 2005 
Basic EPS 
Net profit amibutable U, shareholdm of the Company .................................. 
Weigbted average shares outstanding ............................................................. 896,1369969 892,760,520 

964 341 

Basic EPS ....................................................................................................... 1.08 0.39 

Diluted EPS 
Net profii amibutable U, shareholdm ofthc Company ........................ : ......... 
Convertible debt interest, net oftax ................................................................ 
Na profit amibulable U, sharehaldm af the Company adjusted .................... 

964 
62 

1,026 

347 

347 
- 

Weighted average shares outsta 896,136,969 892,760.520 
Dilutive effect afshare optia U.... 1,631 648,186 
Dilutive effect of nanvested shares ....... 2,409,309 2,516.646 
Dilutive effect af convertible debt .................................................................. 
Number afshare wed in calculating diluted EPS. ......................................... 959,49905 895,925,352 

Diluted EPS 1.W 0.39 

- 60,941,996 

19 - OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES 

19.1 -0ther income 
Other income consisted of the following: 

Yrsr rnded Ymr ended 
December 31, December 31, 

2006 2005 

19.2 - Other expenses 
Other expenses consisted of the following: 

110 92 
17 
2 12 
6 
3 

- 

- 
- 

138 104 
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eariy 2007, later than originally anticipated to accommodate unforeseen qualification 
requirements of the Company’s customers. 

in the fmt quarter of 2005, the Group decided to reduce its Access technology products for 
Cusbmer Premises Equipment (“CPE) modem products. This decision was intended to 
eliminate cerîain low volume, non-strategic product families whose returns in the current 
environment did not meet intemal targets. Additional restrucîuring initiatives were also 
implemented in the first quarter of 2005 such as the closure of a research and development 
design center in Karlsmhe (Germany) and in Malvern (UA), and the discontinuation of a 
development project in Singapore. 

in May 2005, the Group announced additionai resûuchinng efforts to improve profitabiliîy. 
These initiatives aimed to reduce the Group’s workforce by 3,000 outside Asia by the end of 
2006, of which 2,300 are planned for Europe. The Group plans to reorganize its European 
activities by optimizing on a global scale its EWS activities (wafer testing); harmonizing its 
support functions; sîreamlining its activities outside its manufachuing areas and by 
disengaging from cerîain activities. 

in 2006, the Company performed the impairment test on an annual basis in order to assess 
recoverabiliîy of the carrying value of goodwill and other intangible assets. in addition, the 
Company decided to cease product development kom technologies inherited from Tioga 
business acquisition. 

Impairment, resûucturing charges and other related closure costs incurred in 2006 and 2005 
are summarized as follows: 

Totai Impairmeaf 
reslructuring 

charges m d  olher 
Year rnded Resfrurhiring Othor mlnted reliled ciowre 

December 31,2006 Impairment charges elosure cosb C O S b  

I S O m m  lab plan ( i )  
2005 rcsmicturing iniiiativeo ....... (IJ 
2006 imammm1 rcviw. ........... 1101 

............................ 

- 
............................................. Totai in j  (39) 

O 

o 

O 

01 

(4) 
(49) 

1 5 h  fab plan - 
2005 rakuctunng initiativcs (37) 
Oihcr (1) 

Tolal (38) (53) (7) 

............................ 
........ 

- - ............................................. 
.............................................. (98) 

Impaiment charges 

In 2006, the Company performed the annuai review for impainnent of goodwill and other 
intangible assets. As a result of this review and pursuant to the decision of the Company to 
discontinue product development from technologies inherited from Tioga business 
acquisition, an impairment charge of approximately $10 miliion was recorded in the third 
quarter of 2006, of which $6 million corresponded to the write-off of Tioga goodwill and $4 

O 
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million to impairment charges on technologies purchased as pan 
acquisition which were detennined to be without any alternative use. 

In addition, impairment charges of approximately $2 million were ri 
following the decision of the Company to discontinue a production line 
facilities and for equipment and machinery identified without any altern; 
Company's European 150 mm site. 

In 2006, the Company identified certain machinery and equipment to b 
in one of its back-end sites in Momcco, following the decision of 
disengaged ûom SPG 'activities as pari of its latest restructuring initiati 
not generate any impament charge and were reflected at their carry 
"Other receivables and assets" of the consolidated balance sheet as at Dr 

In 2005, the Group recorded impairment charges as follows: 

I1 

. $10 million impainnent of goodwill pursuant to the decision 01 
its Access tecbpology products for Customer Premises Equipm 
The Group r@orts CPE business as part of the Access Cl 
Application Spkcific Products Group ("ASG") segment. Follo 
discontinue a portion of this CGU, the Group, in compliance witl 
of Assets, re-4easured using market comparables goodwill 
business to be V t i n u e d  and the portion of the CGU retainei 
$10 million goodwill impairment in 2005; 

$22 million of purcbased technologies were identified withoi 
following the discontinuation of CPE product h e s ;  

$6 million for technologies and other intangible assets pursuant 
Group to close! its research and development design center in I 
the discontindtion of a development project in Singapore, th 
EWS (wafer testing) in the United States and other intangib: 
obsolete. 

Al1 fabrication sites affected by the restructuring plan are owned by thr 
exception of the Rancho Bemardo, Califomia facility, were assessed for 
held-for-use model since these facilities did not satisfy al1 of the criteria 
sale status, as set forth in IFRS 5, Non-Current Assets Held for Sr 
Operations. 

Reriruciuring charges and other related closure cosfs 

Restruciuring charges,, and other related closure costs as at Dece 
summarized as follows: 
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Tau1 
r"tNCtlVing 

150mm Iab 2003 & athsr 
plan Otherrrhted r"tNcrmln8 r d u d  

Rntrumllnp EIOIUIC ram Tohl  1nid.tlv" omer Cl0a"IL cmh 
Fmvidali IS 11 k m k r 3 1 ,  2Wl .... 
Chargci incumd in 2WI ..................... 1 I 4 9 11 

(8) Amounh psid (2) 

Rmldoiiu~tDtrrmbn31.2W3 .... I 1 1 3 5 
C w  incumd in 2W4 ..................... 52 21 73 4 77 
Amounts psid (21) (21) (42) (4) (46) 

- - - - - - 

....................................... - (6) - (2) - - - - Cumnsy m h t i o n  effect ................... - 

....................................... 
2 cumcy ualuhtion cffeEt 2 - 

Pmvirioniiit Dsember31. 2004.... 34 I 35 3 38 
charga incumd in ZW5 ..................... 10 5 15 51 - 6 6  
Revmal ofpmvisim (6) (6)  (6)  
Amounh paid (23) (6) (29) (21) (2) (52) 

- 2 ................... - 
........................... 

....................................... 
(4) cumcy mlafion effst ................... (4) 

Pmviirianu at Dmmb€T31,2WS .... I1  L I  30 I 41 
..................... 56 charga incumd in Z w 6  6 12 18 38 - 

Amounts oaid ....................................... 112) (19) 171) 

- - (4) - 
- 

15ûmm fab plan: 

Restructuring charges incurred in the year ended December 31, 2006 primarily related to $6 
million termination benefits and $12 million of other closure C O S ~  mainly related to 
maintenance and decontamination incurred in Agrate (itaiy) and Rousset (France) sites. 

Restructuring charges incurred in 2005 amounted to $10 miiiion, mainiy related to 
termination benefits, and $5 million related to other closure costs. In 2005 management 
decided to continue a specific back-end fabrication h e  in ReMeS (France), whicb bad 
onginally been designated for full closure. The decision to continue arose due to unexpected 
diffícuities in qualifying the h e  at an altemative back-end facility. Tbis decision resulted in a 
$6 million reversal of the provision relating to the 2003 restrucîuring plan. 

2005 restructuring initiatives: 

The Group commenced several restrucîuring initiatives dwing 2005, including: 

Pursuant to tbe decision of reducing its Access technology products for Customer 
Premises Equipment ("CPE") modem products, the Group committed to an exit plan 
in Zaventem (Belgium) and recorded $4 million of workforce termination benefits. No 
additional cost was incurred in 2006. 

In order to streamline its research and development sites, the Group decided to cease 
its activities in two locations, Karlsruhe (Germany) and Malvem (USA). The Group 
incurred in 2005 $1 million restructuring charges correspondmg to employee 
termination costs and $1 million of unused lease charges relating to the closure of 
these two sites. These restruchuing initiatives were completed in 2005. 

In addition, charges totaling $2 million were paid in 2005 by the Group for voluntary 
termination benefits for cerîain employees. The Group also incurred a $2 million 
charge in 2005 related to additional resúucturing initiatives, mainly in the United 
States and Mexico. No additional cost was incurred in 2006. 

The Group defined a plan of reorganization and optimization of its activities. This 
plan focuses on workforce reduction, mainiy in Europe, hut will, whenever possible, 
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................................................................ and adminiswtivc expenses. (8,844) 

Employee benefit expet!se is detailed as follows: 

Year endcd 
Dnrmbcr31, 

in06 

O 

(8,362) 

Year ended 
Deeembrr31, 

i n r n  

O 

O 

O 

O 

O 

O 

................................................................................ wages andsalaries (2,041) 1 (1.7:q 
Compmsalion of Sak Member of he Managing Board (2) 

I (116) 
Sccial muiq COSD (444) 

I (71) 
Stock-baed compensation expensc : (28) 

(63) 

....................... 
.............................................................................. I (494) ................. .................................... 

.................................................. 
in cos1 af sales, rcs-h 

and development, and selling, general and administralive ups nses..... (2978) ‘ (2,395) I .  . The Compensation of Sole Member of tbe Managing Board includes a $ I  million bonus paid 
to the sole member of $e Managing Board and President and CE0 during +e 2006 f m c i a l  

! 
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year that was approved by the Compensation Commitîee and approved by the Supervisory 
Board in respect of 2005 fmancial year based on fulfilment of a number of predefined 
objectives for 2005. 

The Compensation of Sole Member of the Managing Board includes a $6 million bonus paid 
to the fomer sole member of the Managing Board and President and CE0 during the 2005 
f m c i a l  year that was approved by the Compensation Commitîee and approved by the 
Supervisory Board in respect of 2004 f m c i a i  year based on fulfilment of a number of 
predefmed objectives for 2004 and in recoguition of his career with the Group. 

22 - FWANCE INCOME AND FWANCE COSTS 

Total fmance income and finance costs consisted of the following: 

Y e u  ended Year ended 
Dceember31, Dccernber31, 

2006 2005 

Intemt incame ...................................................................................... 143 53 
ToLII tinance income ............................................................................ 143 53 

Interest expense .................................................................................... (96) (57l 
Totai Finance cosis (96) (57) ............................................................................... 

No borrowing cost was capitalized in 2006, while capitalized interest was $2 million in 2005. 
The capitalization mte used to detemine the amount of borrowing costs eligible for 
capitalization was approximately 2.50% for the year ended December 31,2005. 

For the penod ended December 31, 2006 $24 million and $37 million correspond to the 
interest expense of the liability component of the 2013 convertible debt and the 2016 
convertible debt respectively. For the year ended December 31,2005 $38 million correspond 
to the interest expense of the liability component of the 2013 convertible debt. 

In 2006, the Group repurchased substantially al1 outstanding 2013 Convertible Bonds for an 
amount paid of $1,377 million. The repurchased convertible bonds were equivalent to 42 
million shares and were cancelled. The outstanding long term debt corresponding to 2013 
convertible debt amounted to approximately $2 million as at December 31, 2006, 
correspondmg to the remaining 2,505 bonds valued at the August 5,2008 redemption pnce. 

interest expense also included charges related to the amortization of issuance costs incurred 
by the Company for the outstanding bonds. 

interest income on floating mte notes classified as available-for-sale marketable securities 
amounted to $5 million for the year ended December 31, 2006. In 2005 the Company 
invested available cash in credit-linked deposits issued by several primary b a h ,  which 
mahuity was scheduled before year-end. Interest income on these marketable securities for 
the year ended December 31,2005 amounted to $18 million. 

23 - INCOME TAX 

Profit before income tax expense is comprised of die following: 

O 

O 

O 
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Year rnded 
December 31, 

2006 

(64) 
1,092 
1,028 

....................... Profil (iass) recordcd in "he Nethnl anda.... 
ProAt ñom foreign opcratians ............................................................... 
prom befare income 1.x eipinw .._............ ................................... 
The Company and i+ subsidiaries are individually liable for in 
jurisdictions. Tax losses can only offset profits generated by the taxablc 
loss. 

Income tax benefit (expense) is comprised of the following: 

Year endcd 
Dmmbrr31,  

2006 

"he Neibcrlands tBxm -eurrmL (7) 
Foreign mes - c m t  :: (47) 
CYllent t.I.3 "" " ̂ ..... ""._..""" "...."......I (54) 

Foreip deferred mcs (8) 

Incomi tax e i ~ e ~ ~  ....................................................................... (62) 

.......................................................... 
........ .............................................................. .... ...................... .. ................ 

.................................................................. 

O 

O 

a 

O 

The principal items comprising the differences in income taxes computi 
statutory rate and the effective income tax rate are the following: 

Year endcd 
December31, 

zo06 

Incomc t ~ x  expms eomputed at stahmry ratc (306) 
Non dductiblc expensa (27) 
Valuation allowance (8) 

63 

4 
(1) .................................................................... I34 

d a t  different ram ............. 79 

(62) 

..................................... 
....................................................................... 

- 

........................ ...................... 

The tax holidays represent a tax exemption period aimed to attract 
investment in certain tax jurisdictions. The effect of the tax benefits I 

share was $0.15 and $0.05 for the years ended December 31, 2006 a: 
These agreements are present in various countries and include programs 
includmg 100% of iaxes in years affected by the agreements. The Group 
at various dates through the year ending December 31,2013. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities consisted of the following: 

O 
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200s 

(60) 
447 
387 

e taxes in their 
ity incurring such 

Year endcd 
December 31, 

2005 

(6) 
(49) 
(59  

16 

(39) 

t "he Netherlands 

Year eoded 
December 31, 

2005 

(95) 
(26) 

28 

4 
(2) 
48 

4 

(39) 

- 

- 
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December 31. December 31, 
2006 2005 

Tax lw carry forwards and investment credits 95 
Inventory vaiuation ................................................................................ 25 
Impainnent charges and restnichuing .................................................... 17 
Fmed asset dcpreciatian in mem ......................................................... 81 

.................. 9 
29 
I I  
63 

D e f d  (ax  sse ets ................................................................................. 330 

Accelerdted fixed assets depmiation (1 18) 
Acquirrd intsngible BSSC .......................... (72) 
Advances of govemmait ( 2 9  
Other tmiporq differaics .... (3 1) 

Defmed (ax liabilities ._ (246) 

Nel defemed Income b x  asset ....................................................... 84 

The gross movement of the deferred tax account is as follow: 

.................................................... 

57 
28 
25 
73 
8 

21 
II 
47 

270 

2006 2W5 

Beginning of the year ............................................................................. 77 
Exchange difierences ............................................................................. 16 
Income statement benefit (charge) (8) 
Tax charge to equity ................ ( 1 )  
End of the ye~ .  ....................................................................................... 84 

65 
(10) 

16 
6 

77 

As of December 31, 2006, the Company and its subsidiaries have net operating loss cany 
forwards and investment credits that expire starting 2007, as follows: 

Ye.r 
2W7 .................................................................................................................................................. 
2008 .................................................................................................................................................. 
2W9 ...................... ........... 
2010 .................................................................................................................................................. 
mereafla .......................................................................................................................................... 

50 
3 
O 
O 

42 

Tolal .................................................................................................................................................. 95 

Deferred tax assets not recognized in the consolidated balance sheet total $975 million and 
mainly relate to an agreement granting the Group certain tax credits for capital investments 
purchased through the year ending December 31,2006. Any unused tax credits granted under 
the agreement wil1 continue to increase yearly by a legal infiationary index (currently 7% per 
annum). ï h e  credits may be utilized through 2020 or later depending on the Group meeting 
certain program criteria. in addition to this agreement, the Group wil1 continue to receive tax 
credits on future years’ capital investments, wbicb may be used to offset that year’s tax 
liabilities. However, pmuant to the inability to utilize these credits currently and in future 
years, the Group did not recognize any of these deferred tax assets in its consolidated balance 
sheets as of December 3 1,2006 and 2005. 

In addition, other tax loss carryforwards for an amount of $54 million were not recognized in 
the consolidated balance sheet and corresponded to net operating losses acquired in business 
combinations and that wil1 more likely than not, not be utilized against future profits. 
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The amount of deferred tax expense (benefit) recorded in other resi 
expense and $6 million benefit in 2006 and 2005, respectively. This I[ 
tax effects of unrealied gains (losses) on derivatives (Note 17. i). 

24 -CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Cash and cash equivaldnts consisted of the following: 

Yeir eoded 
Decrmber31, 

2006 

Cash 81 tank and in hand .................. 2M 
Dcposits ai call with .................. 1,758 
Cash and cash equivalentP. .................... 1Só3 

The weighted average interest rate for the year 2006 and 2005 was 4.28' 
respectively. 

25 - SHORT TERTV~DEPOSITS 

in the fust quarter of 2006, the Company invested $903 million in shor 
maturity between three~ months and one year. These deposits are held ai 
A3/A- minimum ,long t e m  rating fmm at least two major rating ageni 
deposits is paid at maturity with interest rates fwed at inception fo 
deposits. The principal wil1 be repaid at fmal maturity. in 2006, the 
over $653 million of these short-term deposits, primarily pursuant to th 
cash of 2013 convertible bonk at the option of the holden which 01 

2006. At December 3 i! 2006 the total amount of short term deposit was 

26 -CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 

Cash generated üom operations is deiailed as follows: 

Yrsr ended 
Dmember 31, 

2006 

966 

1,791 
18 

...................... I26 
8 

Amortizalion af discount of eanveni 
Los$ on exlinguirhment of convertib - 

Aeemed income tax ........................................................................... 
share of In5 "f Bssoe131cs .......................................................... 
Impsimrn~, rcrmicninng charges and other rdatcd closure coss. 
nel of eash paymen ts .......................................................................... 
Trade rseivabla, nel ........................................................................ 
Invenloies, nel .............. 
Trade psyablcs ......... 

Cash geoersted from aperntlons ..................................................... 2,833 
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27 - COMMITMENTS 

Tbe Group's commitments as of December 31,2006 were as follows: 

2OW 2008 2009 2010 2011 "heresfter Total ----- 
(in mfl1iOM) 

304 54 44 40 31 28 107 - - . 1.052 959 68 25 - 
Equipmenrpurchme 467 461 - - - - 
Foun&ypurchnre. 373 373 - - - - - - .............................. 

................................. 
- - ,. 212 119 68 25 - - - - - - Hyni 32 32 

110 67 23 I 1  5 I 3 Othe 
Tot.1 "".."""....--..-.... 1,498 1,112 135 16 36 29 110 

The Group leases land, buildings, plants, and equipment under operating leases that e x p k  at 
various dates under non-canceüable lease agreements. Operating lease expense was $56 
million in 2006 and $61 million in 2005, respectively. 

As described in Note 3, the Company and Hynix Semiconductor signed on November 16, 
2004 a joint-venture agreement to build a front-end memory-manufacturing facility in Wwi  
City, Jiangsu Province, China. Tbe business license was obtained in April 2005 and the 
Company paid $213 million, including $1 million of deal-related expenses in 2006 and $38 
million of capital contributions in 2005. The Company has aiso entered int0 a debt guarantee 
agreement with a third party fmancial institution which wil1 loan up to $250 million to the 
joint venture. Repayment of the loan by the joint venture is guaranteed by a deposit from the 
Company to the bank in an offsetting amount As of December 31, 2006, $218 million has 
been loaned to the joint venture and a deposit placed by the Company witb the bank in a like 
amount. The remaining $32 million is expected to be loaned to the joint venture, with an 
offsetting deposit by the Company in the first quarter of 2007. Furthermore, the Company 
has contingent future loading obligations to purchase products from the joint venture, which 
have not been included in the table above because at this stage the amounts remain contingent 
and non-quantifiable 

Other obligations primariiy relate to contractual fm commitments with respect to 
cooperation agreements. 

28 - CONTiNGENCiES 

The Company is subject to the possibility of loss contingencies arising in the ordinary course 
of business. These include but are not limited to: warranty cost on the products of the 
Company, breach of contract claims, claims for unauthorized use of thiid party intellechial 
pmperty, tax claims and pmvisions for specifically identified income tax exposures as wel1 as 
claims for environmental damages. In determining loss contingencies, the Company 
considers the likelihood of a loss of an asset or the incurrence of a liability as wel1 as the 
ability to reasonably estimate the amount of such loss or liability. An estimated loss is 
recorded when it is probable that a iiabiiity has been incurred and when the amount of the 
loss can be reasonably estimated. The Company regularly reevaluates claims to determine 
wbether provisions need to be readjusted based on the most current information available to 
the Company. Changes in these evaluations could result in adverse, matenal impact on the 
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Company’s results of operations, cash flows or its financial position for i 
they occur. 

The Company previously received a tax assessment h m  the United Se 
which was under an appeals process. in 2006, the Company received t 
from the Joint Committb on Taxation with no adjusment to filed tax rehu 
a reversal of $90 million in income tax orovisions that the Comoanv had I 

ie period in which 

tes tax authorities, 
ie fmal settlement 
11s. This resulted in 
reviously recorded 
I 

. _  
to cover any potential iosses associated With the claim. 

The Company has issued guarantees totalmg $790 million related to its subsidianes’ debt I . .  . 

i 29 -CLAIMS AND LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 
1 
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30 - FINAh’CIAL INSTRUMENTS AM> RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Group is exposed to changes in f m c i a l  market conditions in the normal course of 
business due to its operations in different foreign currencies and its ongoing investing and 
f m c i n g  activities. Market risk is the uncertainty to which future earnings or asseîíliability 
values are exposed due to operating cash flows denominated in foreign currencies and 
various fmancial instruments used in the normal course of operations. 

Effective January 2006, Corporate Treasury has been reorgauized under the lead of a newly 
appointed Corporate Treasurer, reporting to the Chief Financial Oficer. Simultaneously, a 
Treasury Committee was created to steer treasury activities and to ensure compliance with 
corporate policies. Treasury activities are regulated by the Group’s policies, which defme 
procedures, objectives and controls. The policies focus on the management of financiai risk 
in terms of exposure to currency rates and interest rates. Treasury controls are subject to 
internal audits. Most treasury activities are centmlized, with any local treasury activities 
subject to oversight 60m head treasury office. The majority of cash and cash equivalent is 
held in U.S. dollars and Euro and is placed with financiai institutions rated at least a single 
“A” long term rating fiom íwo of the major raiing agencies, meaning at least A3 from 
Moody’s Investor Service and A- kom Standard & Poor’s and Fitch Ratings. Marginal 
amounts are held in other currencies. Foreign currency operations and hedging transactions 
are perfomed oniy to hedge exposures deriving 6om industrial and commercial activities. 

30.1 - Foreign Currency Risk 

The Group conducts its business on a global basis in various major international currencies. 
As a result, the Group is exposed to adverse movements in foreign currency exchange rates. 

Foreign Currency Forward Contract ond Curency Options Nof Designared as a Hedge 

The Group enters into foreign currency forward contracts and currency options to reduce its 
exposure to changes in exchange rates and the associated risk arising from the denomination 
of certain assets and liabilities in foreign currencies at the Company’s subsidiaries. in 
addition, forward contracts and currency options are also used by the Group to reduce its 
exposure to U.S. dollar fluctuations in euro-denorninated forecasted intercompany 
transactions that cover a large part of research and development expendiîures and certain 
corporate expenses incurred on the Group’s behalf by subsidiaries. These intercompany 
transactions are not closely linked to ultimate transactions with third parties. Consequently, 
these insûuments do not qualify as hedging instruments. 

At December 31, 2006, foreign currency forward contmcts and currency options were 
outstandmg. The notional amount of these contracts (foreign currency forward coniracts and 
currency options) totalled $574 million at December 31, 2006 and $1,834 million at 
December 31, 2005. The principal currencies covered are the Euro, the SGD, the MYR and 
the Japanese yen. 

Foreign currency forward contracts and currency options not designated as cash flow hedge 
outstanding as of December 31, 2006 have remaining terms of 5 days to 5 months, mahuing 
on average aîler 35 days. 
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The risk of loss associated with forward contracts is equal to the exchange rate differential 
from the time the contract is entered int0 until the time it is settied while the risk of loss 
linked to currency options is Iimited to the premium paid to purchase the options. 

Cash Flaw Hedges 

To furîher reduce its exposure to U.S. dollar exchange rate fluctuations, the Group also 
hedged in 2006 and 2005 a portion of its euro-denominated forecpted intercompany 
purchases of products whose underlying front-end manufacturing production costs of semi- 
fuiished goods are incurred in euros. 

For the period ended December 31, 2006 the Group recorded a positive impact on cost of 
sales of $5 million related to the realized profit incurred on such hedged pamactions. For the 
period ended December 31,2006 the Group did not discontinued any of its cash flow hedges. 
For the year ended December 31, 2005 the Group recorded as cost of sales $51 million 
related to the realized loss incurred on such hedged transactions.’ in addition, after 
determining that it was not probahle that certain forecasted transactions would occur by the 
end of the originally specified time period, the Group discontinued in the first quarter of 2005 
certain of its cash flow hedges and reclassified a net loss of $23 miliion as “other expenses” 
into the statement of income from “Other reserves’’. 

, 

The notional amount of foreign currency forward contracts and currency options designated 
as cash flow hedges and executed totaled $1,217 million as at December 31,2006 and $1,048 
million for 2005. The forecasted transactions hedged as at December 31, 2006 were 
determined to be probable of occurrence. 

As of December 3 I, 2006, $6 million of deferred profits on derivative instruments, net of tax 
of $1 million, included in other reserves are expected to be reclassified as eamings during the 
next six months based on the monthly forecasted semi-fuiished manufacturing costs. 

At December 31, 2006, foreign currency forward contracts and currency option contracts 
were outstanding. The notional amount of these foreign currency forward contracts and 
currency option contracts totalled $250 million at December 31, 2006 and $366 million at 
December 31,2005. I 

Foreign currency forward contracts and currency options designated ai  cash flow hedges 
outstandmg as of December 3 1,2006 have remaining t e m  of 4 days to 4 months, maturing 
on average after 44 days. 

Fair Value Hedges 

in 2006, the Company entered int0 cancellable swaps with a combined no/ional value of $200 
million to hedge the fair value of a portion of the convertible honds due 2016 carrying a futed 
interest rate. The cancellable swaps convert the futed raie interest expense recorded on the 
convertible bond due to 2016 to a variable interest rate based upon adjusted LIBOR. 

As of December 31, 2006 the cancellahle swaps met the criteria for designation as a fair 
value hedge and, as such, both the swaps and the hedged portion of the honds are reflected at 
their fair values in the consolidated balance sheet. The criteria for designating a derivative as 
a hedge include evaluating whether the instrument is highly effective at offseîting changes in 
the fair value of the hedged item attrihutable tn the hedged risk. Hedged effectiveness is 
assessed on both a prospective and retrospective basis at each reporting pkiod. At December 
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3 1,2006 the cancellable swaps are highly effective for hedging the change in fair value of the 
hedged honds atûibutable to changes in interest rates. 

Any ineffectiveness of the hedge relationship is recorded as a gain or loss on derivatives as a 
component of “other income” or “other expenses” as appropriate. If the hedge becomes no 
longer highly effective, the hedged portion of the bonds wil1 discontinue being marked to fair 
value while the changes in the fair value of the cancellable swaps wil1 continue to he recorded 
in the consolidated income statement. 

The net loss recognized in “other income and expenses, net” for the year ended December 31, 
2006 as a result of the ineffective portion of this fair value hedge was not material. 

30.2 - Concentration of credit risk 

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk 
consist primarily of interest-hearing investments, foreign currency contracts and trade 
receivahles. 

The company selects hanks andíor fmncial institutions that operate with the ST group based 
on the criteria of single “A” long term rating from hvo of the major rating agencies, meaning 
at least A3 from Moody’s Investor Service and A- from Standard & Poor’s and Fitch Ratings. 
A monthly review of the counterparty banks is conducted tn verie that the credit criteria still 
apply and prompt action is taken, if needed. The Company also sets limits for each 
instrument used. The maximum outstanding amount per instrument with each individual bank 
is set to a 20% threshold of the total outstanding. The Company monitors and manages its 
Treasury activities withii these limits. The credit risk exposure is calcuiated on 100% of cash 
and debt capital market instruments and on positive marked to market for foreip exchange 
forwards, interest rate swaps and currency and interest rate options. 

At December 31,2006 and 2005, one customer, the Nokia Group of companies, represented 
26.2% and 27.3% of trade accounts receivable, net respectively. Any remaining 
concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade receivables are limited due to the large 
numher of customers and their dispersion across many geogaphic areas. The Company 
monitors the creditworthiness of its customers to which it grants credit tem in the nonna1 
course of business. The Company does not anticipate non-performance hy counterparties, 
which could have a significant impact on its fiancial position or resuits of operations. 

30.3 -Fair value of financial instruments 

The estimates of fair value were obtained using prevaihg fiancial market information 
resulting from various valuation techniques. 
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December 31, December 31, 
2006 2005 

Sales Bi other services ....................................................................... I18 158 
R e n m h  and development expenses (43) (48) 
Other pwrhaseo (70) (16) 

(21) (12) 
Accounts receivable ........................ 20 29 

20 I2 
olher mets..... .. I1  

For the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, the related party transactions were 
primarily with significant shareholders of the Company, or their subsidiaries and companies 
in which management of the Company perform similar policymaking functions. These 
include, but are not limited to: Areva, France Telecom, Equant, Orange, Finmeccanica, Cassa 
Depositi e Prestiti and Thomson. 

Additionally the Company incurred in 2006 significant amounts from Hynix Semiconductor 
inc, with which the Company has a significant equity investment, Hynix ST joint venture, 
descnbed in detail in Note 3. in 2006, Hynix Semiconductor inc. increased its business 
transactions with the Company in order to supply products on behalf of the joint venture, 
which was not ready to fuily produce and supply the requested volumes to the Company. The 
amount of purchases and other expenses made in 2006 6om Hynix Semiconductor inc. was 
$161 million. The Company had a payable amount of $13 million as at December 31,2006. 

In addition the Group participates in an Economic interest Group (“E.I.G.”) in France with 
Areva and France Telecom to share the costs of cerîain research and development activities, 
which are not included in the previous table. The share of income (expense) recorded by the 
Group as research and development expenses incurred by E.1.G dwing 2006 amounted to $1 
million expense and to $5 million expense in 2005. At December 3 1,2006, the Company had 
no receivable or payable amount. At December 31, 2005, the Company had a net receivable 
amount of $1 million. 

The Group contributed cash amounts totalling $1 million for the penod ended December 31, 
2006 and $1  million for the year ended December 31, 2005 to the ST Foundation, a non- 
profit organization established to deliver and coordinate independent programs in h e  with its 
mission. Certain memhers of the Foundation’s Board are senior members of the Group’s 
management. 

in addition pursuant to the Supervisory Board‘s approval, the Group paid in 2005 a special 
contribution amounting to $4 million to a non-profit charitable institution in the field of 
sustainable development and social responsibility on behalf of its former President and Chief 
Executive Officer. 

The individual remuneration paid to the sole memher and the former sole member of the 
Managing Board was as follows: 

................................................ 
................................................................................ 

December 31,2006 December31,2005 

Wageo and salaries I I 
Bonus ................................................................................................ I 6 

The bonus paid to the former sole member of the Managing Board and President and CE0 
during the 2005 financial year was approved by the Compensation Committee and approved 
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by the Supervisory Board in respect of 2004 f m c i a l  year and in recobtion of his career 
with the Group, based Ön fulfilment of a number of predefined objectives Tor 2004. 

The Sole member of &e Managing Board was granted in 2006 and in 2005 for free 100,000 
nonvested shares subject to the acbievement of performance objectives 

The total amount paid as compensation in 2006 to the Company’s 23: executive officers, 
includmg the sole Member of the Managing Board, and the toy1 amount paid as 
compensation in 2005 to the Company’s 22 executive officers, including the sole Member of 

I 
1 
I 

the Managing Board, was as follows: ! 
December3t,ZOM 1 Deeember3t,ZOM 

9 
Banw ................................................................................................ 5 
Oiher Bmefits ................................................................................... I 

4 

I 
I The Company’s 23 executive officers, including the sole Member of i e  Managing Board, 

were granted in 2006 for h e  803,000 nonvested shares subject to i e  acbievement of 
performance objectives. The Company’s 22 executive officers, including ,the sole Member of 
the Managing Board, were granted in 2005 for free 665,000 nonvested shares subject to the 

The bonus paid to tbe,~ Company’s executive officers corresponds to a Corporate Executive 
Incentive Prograrn (the “EP’) established in 1989 that entitles seiected eXecutives to a yearly 
bonus based upon the individual performance of such executives. The maximum bonus 
awarded under the EIPllis based upon a percentage of the executives’ sal& and is adjusted to 
reflect the Groups’ overall performance. The patticipants in the E P  must satisfy certain 
personal objectives that are focused on return on net assets, customer service, profit, cash and 
market share. 

The executive officers and the Managing Board were covered in 2006 and 2005 under certain 
Group life and medical insurance programs, pension, state-run retirement and other similar 
benefit programs and other miscellaneous allowances that are included ip the $5 million of 
social charges and other benefits for the year ended December 3 I, 2006 and 2005. 

At the end of the year 2005, the Compensation Committee recommended y d  the Supervisory 
Board decided to grantlan additional pension benefit plan to the Company’s former President 
and Chief Executive O p  and sole member of the Managing Board 4 d  a limited number 
of senior executives that have made key contributions to the Group’s succy .  Pursuant to this 
plan, the Group wil1 make annual contributions of $200,000 to both its former and current 
President and Chef E F t i v e  Officers, $150,000 to its Chief Operating Officer and up to 
$100,000 to each other beneficiary per year. in order to meet the Grou$s future payment 
obligations under this plan or to insure fot tbem, the Group paid an “$1 amount of $10 
million in 2006 (of w$ich $3 million to fund payments for the former ps iden t  and Cbief 
Executive Officer and the balance for tbe other senior executives designated as beneficianes). 

achievement of performance objectives. I 
I 

I 
1 

I 

I 
I 
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Individual remuneration paid to Supervisory Board Members in 2006 and 2005 was: 

2006 2005 
US5 US5 

8. Sleve ............................................................................................... 205,oW 92,000 
F. Gavoir. ............................................................................................. 120,500 78,500 
A.% ................................................................................................. 6,000 62,000 
R 9,000 71,500 
R. 125,000 88,500 
T. 213,500 92,000 
M. ....................................................................................... 111,500 
O. Arbala. ........................................................................................... 205,000 68.500 
D. Lombard .................................................................. .... 120,000 48,000 
D. Dunn ....................................................................... .... I l I ,MM 64,500 
A. Tuicehi ................................................................... .... I10.000 

1,336,500 665,500 

Stock awards granted to Supervisory Board Members in 2006 and 2005 were: 

2006 2005 

Number af stock Aequi~itloa price Number of aweràa Crmted phce 
awaràa grnoted E W  granted EUR 

B. Steve .................................. 6,000 1.04 6,000 1.04 
M. Del Fante. 6,000 I .O4 6,000 1.04 
A. Turicchi. ........................... 6,000 I .o4 6,000 1.04 
F. Gavois ................................ 6,000 1.04 

6,000 I .u4 
R. White ................................. 6,000 I .04 6,000 1.04 

6,000 1 .04 6,000 1.04 
6,000 I .o4 6,000 1.04 

............................ 6,000 1 .o4 6,000 1.04 
6,000 1 .o4 6,000 1.04 

- - 

* In 2006 and 2005, Ihey declinei heir -Is of stael awards 

32 -SEGMENT INFORMATION 

Primary Reporîing Format - Business Segments 
The Company operates in hvo business areas: Semiconductors and Subsystems. 

In the Semiconducton business area, the Company designs, develops, manufactures and markets a 
broad range of products, including discrete, memories and standard commodity components, 
application-specific integrated circuits (“ASICs”), full custom devices and semi-custom devices and 
application-specific standard products (“ASSPs”) for analog, digital, and mixed-signa1 applications. In 
addition, the Company further patticipates in the manufacturing value chain of Smart card pmducts 
through its divisions, which include the production and sale ofboth silicon chips and Smartcards. 

The Company reports its semiconductor sales and operating income in three segments: 

0 Application Specific Product Group (“ASG”) segment, comprised of tbree product 
lines - Home, Personal and Communication Sector (“HPC”), Computer Peripherals 
Group (“CPG”) and new Automotive Product Group (“APG”); 

Memory Products Group (“MPG”) segment; and 
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i 
Micro, Power, Analog ("A"), previously known as Micro, Linear and Discrete 
("MLD) segment, has been subsequently renamed with no subs(ntia1 change in its 
perimeter or organization. 

I 
The Group's principalt'investment and resource allocation decisions in the Semiconductor 
business area are for expenditures on research and development and ca4ital investments in 
front-end and back-end manufacturing facilities. These decisions are not made by product 
groups, but on the basis of the Semiconductor Business area. AU these p$duct groups share 
common research and 'development for process technology and manufachiring capacity for 

In the Subsystems business area, the Group designs, develops, manufactures and markets 
subsystems and modules for the telecommunications, automotive and I industriai markets 
including mobile phone accessones, battery chargers, ISDN power supplies and in-vehicle 
equipment for electronic tol1 payment. Based on its immateriality to its bksiness as a whole, 

most of their products. I 
I 

the Subsystems segment does not constiíute a reportable segment. I 
I 

The following tables present the Group's consolidated total revenues and consolidated net 
profit by semiconductor product segment. For the computation of the /product segments' 
intemal financial measurements, the Group uses certain intemal d e s  of allocation for the 
costs not dmctly chdgeable to the Groups, including cost'of sales, selling, general and 
administrative expenses and a significant part of research and deveiopment expenses. 
Additionally, in compli,+ce with its intemal policies, certain cost items are not charged to the 
product segments, including impairmenî, restruchuing charges and .+er related closure 
costs, start-up costs of ~new manufachuing facilities, some strategic and special research and 
development programs; or other corporate-sponsored initiatives, includmg certain corporate 
level operating expenses and certain other miscellaneous charges. Starting in the fmt quarter 
of 2005, the Group allocated the start-up costs to expand its marketing and design presence in 
new developing areas to each product segment. There are no intersegment sales. 

Total consolidated revenues by product segment 

O 
Applicalion Specific Roduet Omups segment ......................................... 
Mmory Pmducrp Gmup segment ............................................................ 
Micm. Power. Analog segmnL u 4 3  

5,396 
2,137 

................................................................ 
4,991 
1,948 
1,882 

................................................................................................... 61 

.... ................................................................ I 8,882 

oihes"' 

Tolal consalidated re"0I"Fs !! 9.854 
( I )  Includcs revmucs fmm sales of subsystmis mainly and ather praducu not allocnted to ptoduet graups. 

O 
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The product segment results for the year ended December 3 1,2006 

Mlcm, 
Power snd 

Appllratlan Anslog 
Speclîïc Product Memory Product Group Other (I )  

Groups segment Group segment segment Uoalloested Graup 

635 81 3.93 ( t i l )  988 
Finance income. .................. 143 
Finsncc E O S ~  (96) 
Share af los8 ofassociat es. (7) 
Prnfit before income mes ....... 1,028 
Incame m upensc (62) 
Net profil 966 

(I) 

................................................ 
.......................... 

Operating pmfit (ioss) of “Others” includes item such as impairment, rstnichinng charges and othcr related closure 
cos&, sm-up costs, and other m l l m t e d  expenses, such as: smtegic or special research ad development programs, 
cemin corporatelevel Operating expenses, certain patent claims and litigations, and othm EOS@ that are nol dlmted to 
lhe product graups, as wel1 as operating eamings or loses afthe Subsystnns and Othcr Rcducts Gmup. Certain costs, 
mainly R&D, fomerly in !he “Others” category, are now being allccated to the p u p s ;  eamparable amounts rcported 
in this category have been reclassified aceordingly in the above table. 

The product segment results for the year ended December 3 1,2005 

Micro, 
Power aod 

AppUcatloa Anilog 
SpciBe Product Memory Product Croup Other“) 
Croupr segment Group segment segment Uoailoeated a 

operanng prom .- ” ........ ””” .......... 395 (lts) 256 (139) 394 
Finance incame .............................................. 53 
Finance cos1 (57) 
Share of loss of a%scciates (3) 
Profit before income m e s  387 
Income m expense (39) 
Net profit ....................................................... 348 

(I) 

................................................... 
........... 

................... 

Operating pmfit (10s) of “Others” ine luh item such as impaimenf resmichinng charges and ather related clonur 
costs, sm-up costs, and other wiallocated expenses, such as: smtegic or special research and development programs, 
cemitain corporate-level operating expenses, cemiain patent claims ad litigations, and 0th- cosis that are nat allocated to 
thc praduct pups, as wel1 as operaling eamings or losses of the Subsystems and Othcr Products h u p .  Certain costs, 
mainly R&D, fomcrly in the ”Others” categary, are w w  being allocated to the p u p s ;  comparable muts reported 
in this categoiy have been reclassified accordingly in the abave table. 

The following tables present the Group’s consolidated total assets and liabilities by 
semiconductor product segment as they result from allocation keys. 

Inventones, goodwill and capitalized development are directly atûibuted to each business 
segment. Receivables are allocated by business segment revenues which represent a specific 
and appmximate allocation basis. However, the three product segments share the Group’s 
significant Semiconductor business area resources, M I ~ Y  manufacniring capacity and 
process developments, throughout the useful life of fabs, production equipment and common 
technologies. The majonty of these assets and related liabilities are therefore Group resources 
that are utilized based on short and medium term Semiconductor area manufachuing resource 
planning. Such assets and liabilities cannot be directly atûibuted or specifically allocated to 
the business segments. The Group intemally adopts certain allocation methodologies to 
establish a performance benchmark to measure the fmancial return on assets at various levels 
of accountability. As a result such methodologies are not the most appropnate accounting 
methodology to apply to histonc f m c i a l  results by product segment. A mathematical 
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computation bas been ‘adopted in tbis financial report by allocating the 
revenues, as revenues enable a weighting to both volumes produced and i 
prices achieved Volude is a reasonable measure of the use of such assets 
prices allows some weighting of the allocation towards more co; 
techologies. This measure therefore gives some account to the greater ca[ 
modem proces equip*t such products may require. The allocation key 
accurately reflect the significant differences in the capital intensity of the 
Assets and liabilities by product segments, as reported, might consequentl 
cannot be adopted as ~a basis to compute the return on capital of eacl 
Consequently, the Company has not allocated and disclosed the~ 
amortization charges by product segment 

li 

;e assets based on 
verage unit selling 
ind average selling 
nplex and recent 
ital intensity of the 
however might not 
~arious businesses. 
f be inaccurate and 
product segment. 
depreciation and 

Total consolidated Liahilities by product segment 

................................... 2,216 
865 
835 
27 

Application Speeific Roducl GrOupr segment 2,463 
M ~ O V  Praducts ~roup segmknt 976 

1,024 
36 

Total camlidated liabilitieo ............................................................... 4,499 3,943 

Secondary Reporting Format - Geographical Segments 
The following is a sUmmary of operations hy entities located withm the i@cated geographic 
areas for 2006 and 2005. Total revenues represent sales to third parties p m  the country in 
which eacb entity is, located. A significant portion of property, p l i t  and equipment 
expenditures is atûibutable to kont-end and back-end facilities, IocaFd in the different 
counûies in which the l,Group operates. As such, the Group mainiy allocafes capital spending 
resources according to geographic areas rather than along product segment areas. 
Consequently, depreciation and amortization expense is als0 reported according to the 
geogmphic segments. !In addition, the balance sheet positions of asSe4 and liabilities are 
managed and reviewed intemally by geographic segments, as reported in the tables below. 

I 
Dccember31, 1 Dece;tn 31, 

2006 

I 

I .  

I 
I 
I 
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Total consolidated revenues 

December 31, December 31, 
2006 2005 

The Nelherlands ........ ........... ........... 3,114 2,864 
Francs ................................................................................................. 240 268 

........................................................................................... 230 203 

........................................................................................... 1.030 1,066 
Singapore ............................................................................................ 4,698 4,041 

400 306 
142 134 

Taal consolidateà menues 9,854 8,882 

Capita1 expendihe 
December 31, December 31, 

2006 2ws 

1 3 
473 294 
292 336 
96 56 

116 160 
382 492 
114 95 
81 87 

Tolal .................................................................................................... 1,555 1,523 

Total consolidated Assets 
December 31, December 31, 

2006 2005 

The Nelherlands 3,657 2,962 
2,875 2,254 
2,581 2,310 

451 372 
USA .................................................................................................... 774 737 

3,155 2,946 
........................................... 595 527 

591 535 

14,619 12,643 

33 -SIGNIFICANT CATEGORIES OF REVENUE 

December 31, Deccmbrr31, 
2006 2005 

................... 8,876 
6 

92 

Sales af gwds 
License revenue and pamf mya ty Income 

Finance income ................................................................................... 143 53 

Total ........... ......... 10,lM 9,027 

'15 
Research and development hinding .................................................... 110 

O 

e 

e 

e 

O 

e 
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34 - SüBSEQüENT,EVENTS 
On January 22, 2007, a new option agreement was enacted with an inc’-Tendent foundation, 
Stichting Continuiteit ST (the “Stichting”), which wil1 have an indepe ent board. The new 
option agreement provides for the issuance of up to a maximum of 5‘ 000,000 preference 
shares. The Stichting wouid have the option, which it shall exercise in i sole discretion, io 
take up the preferencel shares. The preference shares would be issuab if the board of the 
Stichting determines that hostile actions, such as a creeping acquisition an unsolicited offer 
for the Company’s copnon shares, would be contrary to the interest! f the Company, its 
shareholders, or its o‘er stakeholders. If the Stichting exercises its ca >ption and acquires 
preference shares, it must pay at least 25% of the par value of such F Cerence shares. The 
new option agreementlwith the.Stichting reflects changes in Dutch leg requirements, nota 
response to any hostiieipkeover attempt. 
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STMICROELECTRONICS N.V. COMPANY BALANCE SHEETS AS AT 
DECEMBER 31 

(before proposd approprisiioo of ioeome) 

k . 3 1 .  -31. 

O 

D-31. Dec.31. 

O 

Shon-Tem dcposiu .............. 
Carh and cJrh equ~valcnls ....... 

Total currtnl s m b  ................ 
O 

. .  
16 250 - aecmd Iiabiliiico ............ 50 96 

1.072 1,898 Accrued incame Lu ......... 33 6 

3.951 3828 TouI rhon-tm Iiabdiiicn IJ45 2.994 
TOTâL 
SHAREHOLDEIIS' 

TOTAL ASSETS ............... "... ËQUITY AND 
12,125 11,677 LIABILITIES ......._....._... 1 12,725 11,677 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements., 

- 129- 



P 

O 

O 

STMICROELECTRONICS N.V. COMPANY 
STATEMENTS OF INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 

2006 2005 
(In Mllions of U.S. dollars) 
Proílt sfter taxe, ........................................................................ """." .................... " 496 208 
Incame fmm subsidi anes ......................................................................................................... 470 139 
Net Profit .... " .."_".. ................................................................................................. 966 347 

The accompanying notes are an integrai pari of these financiai statements. 
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STMICROELECTRONICS N.V. 1 
NOTES TO THE C0.MPANY FINAYCIAL STATE.MENTS 

1 - GEXERAL 
I 

A description of STMicroelectronics N.V. (“he Company”), its activiries and group structure 
are included in the Consolidated Financial Statements, prepared on the basis of accounting 
policies that conform with International Financial Reponing Standards CIFRS”) as endorsed 
by European Union. The Company hol& investments in subsidihes operating in the 
semiconductor manufachring industry. Additionally, rhe Company operaies through a branch 
in Switzerland, which markets a broad range of semiconductor integrated circuits and devices 
used in a wide variety of microeleetronic applications. 

! 
2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

I 
The functional and presentation currency of the Company is the U.S. dollar. 

I 
Certain prior year items have been reclassified to conform with current year presentation. 
Other and Iegal rcserves at January 1st 2006 have been amended to more appropriately reflect 
categorization. I 

I 

3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

General 
in accordance with article 2362 Part 8 of the Netherlands Civil Code, 
N.V. (“the Company”)? has prepared its company fmancial statements 
accounting : principles [generally accepted in the Netherlands apply 
principles as adopted inlthe consolidated fmancial statements. 

Valuation of Subsidiaries 

investments in subsidianes are stated at net asset value as the Compan) 
the operational and financial activities of these investments. The net asse 
on the basis of the IFRS accounting principles applied by the Compan 
fmncial statements. ’ 

The Company provides’for any negative net asset values in its subsidiarie 

O 

O 
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ralue is determined 
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4 - INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS 

TechnologIer and 

developed soliw.re CapltaUzed 
ueeaaes, i n t r r m y  

(USD in millions) Goodwlll nnd purchasc software development eosts Total 
HISTORICAL COST 
Balance at lanuary I ,  2006 ........................ 128 420 236 784 

Impairments ................................................ (17) (6) (23) 
Balance at December 31, 2006 .................. 128 460 541 1,129 

..................................................... 70 31 I 381 Additions . .  

Disposal ...................................................... (13) (13) 

ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATION 
Balance at January 1, 2006 ........................ - 24 I 2 243 
Charge for the year ..................................... - 69 21 90 

(13) ............................................... Impairments - (13) 
Balance at December 31, 2006 .................. - 2 9 l  23 320 
XET BOOK VALUE 

O 

At December 31 . 2006 .............................. 128 1 63 518 809 
At December 31, 2005 ............................... 128 179 234 541 

5 - TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS 

e 
Furnihire sad Computer snd 

(USD In mlllloas) llxturer R&D equipmrnt Other Total 
HISTOIUCAL COST 
Balance at January I ,  2006 .............................. 3 16 2 21 
Additions (1) .......................................................... I 

(4) Disposals (4) 
Balance at December 31. 2006 ........................ 2 12 3 17 

.......................................................... 

ACCUMLILATED DEPRECIATION 
Balance at January I ,  2006 .............................. 2 9 I 12 

........................................... 2 1 2 Charge for the year (1) 
(4) Disposals (4) 

Balance at December 31, 2006 ........................ 1 7 2 10 
NET BOOK VALUE 
At December 3 I ,  2006 ..................................... 1 5 1 7 
NET BOOK VALUE 

.......................................................... 

At December 3 I ,  2005 ..................................... 1 1 1 9 

6 - WVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIMES 

(USD la millloas) 2W6 2005 
Balance January I 7,241 7,696 
Income fiom subsidiaries ................................................................................. 470 139 

47 (1) 
(953) (608) 
107 778 

Translation effect of exchange rates ......... 526 (763) 
1,438 1,241 

............................................................................................ 

.................... 

O 

O 

O 
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2006 capital innease mainly relates 10 capital canlribution to subsidaries in Canada and C 
$105 millian. 2005 capital increasc mainly relates to capital conbibution 10 subsidiarie 
amount ofS750 Mllion. 

ï h e  investmenis in significant consolidated group companies as at Dec 
presented below: ~ 

Legd scat Nsmo 
Australia - Sydney STMicroelectronics PTY Ltd 
Belgium - Zaventem 
Belgium - Zaventem 
Brazil - Sao Paolo 
Brazil - Sao Paolo 
Canada - Ottawa 
China -Shenzhen 
China - Shenzhen 
China - Shenzhen 
China - Shenzhen 
China - Shanghai 
China - Shanghai 
China - Shanghai 
China - Shanghai 
China - Beijing 
Czech Republic - P r n e e  
Finland- Lohja 
France - Crolles 
France - Montrouge 
France - Rousset 
France - Toun 
France - Grenoble 
Germany - Grasbtunn 
Germany - Grasbrunn 
Hong Kong - Hong Kong 
India - Noida 
Israel - Netanyn 
Italy - Catania 
Italy - Aosta 
Itnly - Agrate Brianza 
Italy - Naples 
Italy - Agrate Brianza 
Japan - Tokyo 
Malaysia - Kuala Lumpur 
Malaysia - Muar 
Malta - Kirkop 
Mexico - Guadalajara 
Mexico - Guadalajara 1, 

Morocco - Rabat 
Morocco - Casablanca y 
Netherlands - Amsterdam 
Singapore - Ang Mo Kio y 
Singapore - Ang Mo Kio i; 
Spain - Madrid 
Sweden - K i m  
Switzerland - Geneva ~ 

Switzerland - Geneva 
Switzerland - Geneva 

STMicroelectronics Belgium N.V. 
Proton World International N.V. 
STMicroelectronics Ltda 
Incard do Brnsil Ltda 
STMicroelectronics (Canada), lnc. 
Shenzhen STS Microelecuonics Co. Ltd 
STMicroelecUonics (Shenzhen) Co. Ltd 
STMicmlectmnics (Shenzhen) Manufaauring Co. Ltd 
STMicrwlectronics (Shemhen) R&D Co. Ltd 
STMicroelectronics (Shanghai) Co. Lui 
STMicroelecUonics (Shanghaiì R&D Co. Ltd 
Shanghai Blus Media Co. Ltd 
STMicroelectronics (China) Investment Co. Ltd 
STMicroelectronics (Beijing) R&D Co. Ltd 
STMicroelectronics Design and Application s.r.0. 
STMicroelectronics OY 
STMicroelectronics (Crolles 2) SAS 
STMicroelectronics SA 
STMicmlecbonics (Rousset) SAS 
STMicroelectronics (Tours) SAS 
STMicroelecboonics (Grenoble) SAS 
STMicroelectronics GmbH 
STMicroelectronics Design and Application GmbH 
STMicroelectronics LTD 
STMicroelectronics Pvt Ltd 
STMicroelectroooics Ltd 
CO.RI.M.ME. 
DORA S.P.A. 
ST Incard S.r.1. 
STMicroelectronics Services S.r.1. 
STMicroelectronics S.r.1. 
STMicroelectronics KK 
STMicrcelectronics Marketing SDN BHD 
STMicroelectronics SDN BHD 
STMicroelectronics Ltd 
STMicroelectronics Marketing, S .  de R.L. de C.V. 
STMicroelectronics Design and Applications, S. de 
R.L. de C.V. 
Electronic Holding S.A. 
STMicroelecIonics S.A. 
STMicroelecbonics Finance E.V. 
STMicroelectronics ASLA PACIFIC Pte Ltd 
STMicroelecbonics Pte Lid 
STMicroelecuonics S.A. 
STMicroelecuonics A.B. 
STMicroelectronics SA 
INCARD SA 
INCARD Sales & Marketing SA 
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I O0 
I O0 
I O0 
100 
50 
1 O0 
60 

I O0 
100 
100 
I O0 
100 
65 
100 
100 
I O0 
I O0 
I O0 
I O0 
100 
I O0 
I O0 
100 
I O0 
100 
I O0 
I O0 
100 
100 
100 
100 
100 
100 
100 
100 
100 
100 
1 O0 

IW 
100 
100 
100 
100 
100 
1 O0 
I O0 
I O0 
I O0 
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Percentage ûwaerablp 
Legal Scat Name (Direct or Indirect) 
Turkey - letanbul STMicroeiecuonics Elekuonik Arastirma ve I O0 

United Kingdom - Marlow STMicroeiecuonics Limited 100 
tinited Kingdom - Marlow STMicroelectronics (Research & Development) 1 O0 

United Kingdom - Marlow Syiad Technologies Limited 100 
United Kingdom - Bristol Inmos Limited I O0 
tinited States - Carrollton STMicroeiecuonics Inc. I O0 
United States - Wilmington STMicrwleckonics (North America) Holding, Inc. 100 
United States - Wilsonville î h e  Portland Group, Inc. I O0 

Gelistinne Anonim Sirketi 

Limited 

7 - INVENTOMES 

The balance for inventones conîains oniy finished goods. 

8 - TRADE RECEIVABLES 

Trade receivables are expected to be recovered within one year except for a $5.5 million 
receivable expected to be paid in 2008. This amount has been discounted in order to reflect 
its net present value. 

9 - SHORT-TERM INTERCOMPANY LOANS 

Short-tem intercompany loans consist of the following: 

üerrmber31,1006 Drmiber31.2W5 
ST Incard Srl (Italy) 

STMicroelectronics L t d  (Israel) 

ST Microeiectronica Inc. (Canada) 

ST Microelectronlcs A.S. (Turkey) 

Total short-term intercompany loans 66 123 

Loan due 2006 karing interest at 3-month LIBOR plus 0.50% .......... 

Loan duc 2006 bearing interest at 3-montù LIBOR plus OSO?! ..... :.... 
Loan due 2006 bearing interest at 3-month LIBOR plus 0.375 % ........ 
Laan due 2006 beaing interest at I-month LIBOR plus 0.063% ........ 

59 

5 

53 

5 

65 - 

- 2 

10 - GROUP COMPANIES 

(USD In millions) Decembr31,2W6 December31 2005 
Trade receivabies ............................................................................................. 1,293 1,101 
Other receivahles ............................................................................................. 221 205 
Total group companies Receivables ................................................................. 1,514 1,306 

1,015 1,277 
10 I I  

215 234 
.............................................................. 1,522 1440 

e 

O 

O 

01 

O 

O 

~ 

I 
O 

e 
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11 - SHAREHOLDEFW EQUITY 
I 

O 

O 

O 

O 

O 

biued Addition 
nnd oald sl mld In Rctaiacd Tremww Mhrr 
In capital rapltd e s d o g ,  Shares Rescrvra ----- (USD in millions) 

Balance January I .  2006 ........... 1,118 1,561 5,182 (348) 874 . .  
Net income ................................ 
Rights acquired on vested stock 
awards ....................................... 
Issuance of shares ** ................ 
Stock-baxd compcnsation ........ 
Dividends paid. ......................... 
Net income ................................ 
Development expendimes ........ 
Unrealized gaio on dcnvatives, 
"el of tax ................................... 
Translation adjusment' ............ 
Baluice December 31,2006 .... 

126 
1,247 1,585 5,121 (332) 920 

Resewe year Total 
(84) 347 8,650 

-___- 
~ (347) - 

16 

27 
30 

(107) 
966 966 

285 

14 
532 

'4 
406 
621 966 10,128 

! 
ihe share capimi of &e Company is denorninated in eums and the jmiod-oid balance is har@ated into U.S. dollars at 
ihc year-nid exchange rate (eumRiSD 1.317). ihc hanslation differences are taken to thc non-dirtributable cumulative 
mmlation adjumient account. 
Irrunce of sharen is hec of tax. ** 

Certain prior year items have been reclassified to conform with current year presentation. Other and 
legal reserves at January 1st 2006 have been amended to more appropnately reflkt categonzation. 

Other reserves and legal reserve consist of fair value of services provided under share award 
schemes, unreaiized gains or losses on marketahle securities classified as available-for-sale and 
foreign currency translation adjusimenu, al1 net of tan. 

Ordmaiy shares: Euro 1.04 nomina1 value, 1,200,000,000 shares authorized, 910,157,933 
shares issued, 897,395,042 shares outstandmg. 

Preferred shares: 540,000,000 shares authorized not issued. 

The euro equivalent of the issued share capital at December 31, 2006 amounts to euro 
946,564,250 (2005: euro: 944,137,250). For the changes in issued and paid in capital, 
additionai paid in capital and other reserves, see the consolidated f m c i a i  statements of the 
Company. 

Treasury stock 
in 2002 and 2001, the Company repurchased 13,400,000 of its own shard, fora total amount 
of $348 million, which were reflected at cost as a reduction of the shareholders' equity. No 
treasury shares were acquired in 2003,2004,2005 and 2006. 

Treasury shares of 9,200,000 have been designated to be used for the Company's share-based 
remuneration programs. As of December 31, 2006, 637,109 of the ordinary shares 
repurchased had been transferred to employees under the Company's share-based 
remuneration programs, following the vesting as of April 27,2006 of the fint tranche of the 
stock award plan granted in 2005. For details on the Company's stock award plans, see the 
consolidated financial statements of h e  Company. 

I 

I 

I 
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12 - LONGTERM LOANS 

in August 2003, the Group issued $1,332 million principal amount at mahuis- of zero coupon 
unsubordinated convertible bon& due 2013. The bon& were issued with a negative yield of 
0.5% that resulted in a higher principal amount at issuance of $1,400 million and net 
proceeds of $1,386 million. The bon& are convertible at any time by the holders at the rate of 
29.9144 shares of the Group’s ordmary shares for each one thousand dollar face value of the 
bonds. The holden had the option to redeem their convertible bonds on August 5,2006 at a 
pnce of $985.09, on August 5, 2008 at $975.28 and on August 5, 2010 at $965.56 per one 
thousand dollar face value of the notes. As a result of this holder’s redemption option in 
August 2006, the outstanding amount of 2013 bonds was classified in the consoiidated 
balance sheet as “current portion of long-term debt” as of December 31,2005. At any time 
from August 20,2006 the Group had the option to redeem for cash at their negative accreted 
value al1 or a portion of the convertible bonds subject to the level of the Group’s share pnce. 

When applying the fmt-time adoption requirements as set out in IFRS I, the Group assessed 
for separate accounting in 2005 the two elements of equity and liability for the 2013 
convertible bond, because it was the only convertible debt outstandmg at the IAS 32 I 39 
transition date on January 1 ,  2005. The fair value of the liability component and the equity 
conversion component were determined at issuance of the bond The bond terms enable the 
holder to receive cash settlement under certain chumstances and, consequently, the Group 
has classified the share conversion option as a financial liability. The value at issuance of 
this share conversion option was $1 14 million, which has been reduced and fully reflected in 
adjusted retained earnings at January 1,2005 because of the market expectation that the bond 
wil1 be redeemed without any holder converting. Adjusted retained eamings at Januaiy 1, 
2005 also included the cumulative amortized interest cost recorded on the bond totalling $54 
million. The fair value of the liability component of the convertible debt amounted to $1,356 
miìlion as of December 31, 2005. Based on the existing market conditions at issuance, 
management estimated that separately valuing the embedded share conversion option would 
not be matenally different from calculating the share conversion value as the residual amount 
of the total bond proceeds, after deducting the fair value of the debt component. The Group 
determined the fair value of the debt component using a market interest rate for an equivalent 
non-convertible debt over the penod of fuhire probable cashflows as estimated on the date of 
issuance. This was determined to be a three-year timeframe corresponding to the penod to the 
fmst date of redemption for cash at the option of the holder. The fair value was calculated 
using cash flows discounted at a rate based on the non-convertible debt rate of 2.96%. The 
embedded nghts of the bond holder to extend the bond beyond the probable three year penod, 
by not exercising their redemption option, were rneasured at fair value through profit and 
loss. The fair value of these embedded nghts was not matenal at the end of 2005. 

F’ursuant to the terms of the convertible bonds due 2013, the Company was required to 
purchase, at the option of the holders, 1,397,493 convertible bonds, at a pnce of $985.09 each 
between August 7 and August 9, 2006. This resulted in a cash payment of $1,377 million. 
The Company may be required to purchase, at the option of the holder, the outstanding 
convertible bonds for cash on August 5,2008 ader August 5,2010 at a pnce of $975.28 and 
$965.56 per convertible bond, respectively. The outstandmg 2013 convertible debt amounted 
to approximately $2 million as at December 3 1, 2006, corresponding to the remahing 2,505 
bonds. 

In Febmary 2006, the Company issued $974 million principal amount at maíurity of zero 
coupon senior convertible bonds due in Februaiy 2016. The bon& were issued at 100% of 
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%e convertible debt recognized in the balance sheet is calculated as follows: 

Convertible debt 2013: December31. 
rnnr 

1,400 
(136) 

Accumulated interest recognized on retained m i n @  ......... ............................................... 91 
Rcpayment in cash al redemption date (1.377) 

Liabillty component at h u n  ................... (22) 
Interest expenw recognized in ................................................ 

................................. ..................................................... 

............................................. 24 
2 

Convertible debt 2016: December 31, 
2006 

Face ualue of Ihe convrmblr &bi irsued in Feb- 2006 ................................................. 974 
Cun\ersian opuon clasrified ag a f i m i a i  habili ry... (274) 

I.inbllity ~ompanrnl al issumcc.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  700 
Interat upenw recagnueà in 2006 conialidat ed..... 
Ilalmenl O f  Income .......................................................................................................... 17 
E f f m  orinurcs1 rausuap.. ............................................................................. 
CooverribIr drbl 2016 as of December 31. 2006.. ............. 737 

.......................... 

........................................... 

13 - LOANS AND BANKS 

ï ñ e  Company has revolving lines of credit agreements with several fmancial institutions 
totalling $269 million at December 31,2006 (2005: $221 million). At December 31,2006 no 
amounts were drawn on these available lines of credit (2005: nii). 

.14 - GUARAh’TEES 

Guarantees given by the Company to its subsidiaries for the benefit of third parties amounted 
to approximately $1,379 million at December 31,2006 (2005: $906 million). 

15 - AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 

in 2006, the Company invested $460 million of existing cash in eleven floating rate notes 
with primary fmancial institutions with minimum rating “AI/A+” with a maturity between 
twenty one months and six years. These marketable sectuities were reported as current assets 
as at December 31, 2006 since tbey represent investments of funds available for current 
operations. These fmancial assets are ciassified as available-for-sale and are recorded at fair 
value, which is slightly lower than the canying value as at December 3 1,2006, with changes 
in fair value recognized as a separate component of “other reserres” in the consolidated 
statement of changes in shareholders’ equity. Subsequentiy, tbe Company entered int0 a basis 
asset swap for one floating rate note for a notional amount of $50 million purchased at par. 
Even if strictly related to the underlying note, the swap is contractually transferable 
independently of the marketable sectuity to wbicb it is atîached. As such, the asset swap was 
recorded separately from the underlying f m c i a l  asset and was reflected at its fair value in 
the consolidated balance sheet on the line “Other receivables and assets” as at December 3 1, 
2006. The changes in the fair value of this derivative instrument were recorded in the 
consolidated statement of income as part of “Other income and expenses, net” and did not 
exceed $1 million for the year ended December 3 1,2006. 

O 

O 

O 

O 
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16 -SHORT TERM DEPOSITS 

In the fust quarter of 2006, the Company invested $903 million in short term deposits with a 
maturity between three months and one year. These deposits are held at vinous b& with a 
A3/A- minimum long t" rating fiom at least Wo major rating agencies. interest on these 
deposits is paid at mapiîy with interest rates fixed at inception for the duration of the 
deposits. The principall,wiIl be repaid at final maturity. In 2006, the Company did not rol1 
over $653 million of these short-term deposits, pnmarily pursuant to the early redemption in cash 
of 2013 convertible bon+ ai the option of the holders which occurred on August 7, 2006. At 
December 3 1,2006 the total amount of short term deposit was $250 millioh. 

I 
I 
I 
I 

17 - WAGES, S A L A R I E S  AM> SOCIAL CHARGES 

(USD in Mllions) ! 2006 200s 
Wages and saùuies .......................................................................................................... 1 43 43 
Social charges ................................................ 6 
Stock award compensatian expense ............... 
Pension service casts ......... ~ ..... 
Complementary pension scheme 9 
ûther employee benefits ...I - 

7 
6 

............................ 3 
i 51  14 

The average number of;persons employed by the Company during the yey  ended December 
31, 2006 was 254 out of which 235 outside The Netherlands (2005: 259, out of which 239 
outside The Netherlands). I 

I 
18 - REMIJNERATION TO MANAGING BOARD AND SUPERVISORY BOARD 

MEMBERS 

FOK details on the remieration to Managing Board and Supervisory Board memben, see the 
consolidated f m c i a l  statements of the Company (Note 3 i). I 

I 
March 20,2007 

I Sole Member of the Managing Board, e 

O 

o 

Carlo Bozotti 

I 

I Members of the Supervisory Board 

Gérald Arbola I 
B m o  Steve 

Tom de Waard 

Matteo Del Fante 

Douglas Dunn 
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STMICROELECTRONICS N.V. 

OTHER INFORMATION 

DECEMBER 31,2006 I 

I 

1. AUDITORS’ REPORT 

The report of the auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers Accountants N.V., i s  presented in the 
following pages. 

2. APPROPRUTION OF RESULT - PROVISIONS IN C O M P W S  
ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION 

The Managing Directors, with the approval of the Supervisory Board, are hllowed to allocate 
net profit to a reserve fund. The Articles of Association provide that the net result for the 
year, after deduction of the aforementioned allocation to the reserve fun$ is subject to the 
disposition by the AGM. 

In the case that a net loss for the year exceeds retained earnings, no divipend payments are 
allowed until the loss has been recovered from net profit in future years. 

PROPOSED 2006 CASH DIVIDEND ANû RETAINED EARNINGS ANû 
DIVIDEND POLICY 

, 
3. 

Upon the proposal of the Managing Board, the Supervisory Board decided to recommend to 
the 2007 AGM a cash dividend of $0.30 per share. 

This recommendation is consistent with the Company’s dividend polici as communicated 
and discussed at the 2005 AGM whereby: 

a. The Company seeks to use its available cash in order to develop and enhance its 
position in the very capital-intensive semiconductor market :while at the same 
time managing its cash resources to reward its shareholders for their investment 
and trust in the Company. l 

, 
b. Based on its annual results, projected capital requirements e wel1 as business 

conditions and prospects, the Managing Board proposes each year to the 
Supervisory Board the allocation of its eamings involving whenever deemed 
possible and deshble in h e  with the Company’s objectps and fmancial 
situation, the distribution of a cash dividend, and 

The Supervisory Board, upon the proposal of the Managing Board, decides each 
year, in accordance with this policy, which portion of the profits shall be retained 

c3 
c::, 
! 

<i)< 
Li-\ 

b..> 
<:.i 

...I 

I 

c. 
~ .< 
c:! in reserves to fund future growth or for other purposes and makes a proposal to 

the shareholders conceming the amount, if any, of the annual c k h  dividend. 
I 
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4. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

On January 22, 2007, a new option agreement was enacted with an independent 
foundation, Stichting Continuiteït ST (the “Stichting”), which wil1 have an 
independent board. The new option agreement provides for the issuance of up to a 
maximum of 540,000,000 preference shares. The Stichting would have the option, 
which it shall exercise in its sole discretion, to take up îhe preference shares. The 
preference shares would be issuahle if the board of the Stichting detemines that hostile 
actions, such as a creeping acquisition or an unsolicited offer for the Company’s 
common shares, would be contrary to the interests of the Company, its shareholders, or 
its other stakeholders. If the Stichting exercises its cal1 option and acquires preference 
shares, it must pay at least 25% of the par value of such preference shares. The new 
option agreement with the Stichting reflects changes in Dutch legal requirements, not a 
response to any hostile takeover attempt. 

O 

O 
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To the Generai Meeting of Shareholders of 
STMicroeiectronics N.V. 

AUDITOR’S REPORT 

Report nn the financial statements 

We have audited the ‘kcompanying financial statements 2006 of STA 
Amsterdam as set out on pages 57 to 140. The financial statements consi 
financial statements andl the company financial statements. The consolidate 
compnse the consolidat$ balance sheet as at 31 December 2006, the pn 
statement of changes in Fuity and cash flow statement for the year then enc 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes. The compan: 
compnse the company balance sheet as at 3 I December 2006, the company pro 
the year then ended and the notes. 

:roelectronics N.V., 
of the consolidated 
financial statements 
it and loss account, 
1 and a summary of 
financial statements 
and loss account for 

i 
The direclors ’ responsibilify I 

The directors of the comiany are responsible for the preparation and fair presenktion of the financial 
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards/as adopted by the 
European Union and witl! Part 9 of Book 2 of the Netherlands Civil Code, and for the preparation of 
the management board report in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Netherlyds Civil Code. This 
respoosibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining intemal co?trol relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of ihe financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or  error; selecting and applying appropnate accounting policies; and making 
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances. I 

I 
I 
I Audilor’s responsibility 

Our respnnsibility is to ,express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted OW audit in accordance with Dutch law. This law requires that we/comply with ethica1 
requirements and plan aftd perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement. 

I 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the nsks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considm internal control relevant to the 
company’s preparation apd fair presentation of the financial statements in o$er to design audit 
procedures that are appropnate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of efpressing an opinion 
nn the effectiveness of lithe company’s intemal conhol. An audit als0 includes evaluating the 
appropnateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by 
the directors, as wel1 as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

I 
I 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suficient and appropnate to provide a basis 
for OW audit opinion. i 
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Opinion wiih respect 10 the consolidatedfinanciaI statements 

In OUT opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a m e  and fair view of the financial position 
of STMicroelectronics N.V. as at 31 December 2006, and of its result and its cash flows for in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union and 
with Part 9 of Bmk 2 of the Netherlands Civil Code. 

Opinion with respect to ihe companyfinancial statements 

In our opinion, the company financial statements give a úue and fair view of the financiai position of 
STMicroelectronics N.V. as at 3 I December 2006, and of its result in accordance with Part 9 of Book 
2 of the Netherlands Civil Code. 

Report OU other legal snd regulatory requirements 

F'ursuant to the legai requirement under 2:393 sub 5 part e of the Netherlands Civil Code, we report, 
to the extent of OUT competence, that the report of the managing board is consistent with the financial 
statements as required by 2:391 sub 4 of the Netherlands Civil Code. 

Amsterdam, 23 March 2007 

PricewaterhouseCoopers Accountants N.V. 

R.M. van Tongeren RA 

O 
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